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Gardenia Bakeries  
(East Malaysia) 

Sdn. Bhd.
(“Gardenia”)

100%

PT Gardenia  
Bakeries Indonesia
(“Gardenia Indonesia”)

99%

Kim Teck Cheong 
(Sarawak) 
Sdn. Bhd.

(“KTC Sarawak”)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong  
Sdn. Bhd. 

(“KTC Sdn Bhd”)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong 
(Borneo) Sdn. Bhd.  

(“KTC Borneo”)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong 
Brands Sdn. Bhd.. 

(“KTC Brands”)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong 
Retail Sdn. Bhd.

(“KTC Retail”)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong 
Niaga Sdn. Bhd. 

(“KTC Niaga”)  
(Formerly known as Kim Teck 

Cheong Distribution Sdn. Bhd.)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong 
Technologies 
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(“KTC Technologies”)
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(“Creamos”)
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(“KTC Shipping”)
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Kim Teck Cheong 
Development  
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(“KTC Development”)
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Kim Teck Cheong 
Academy Sdn. Bhd. 

(“KTC Academy”)  
(Formerly known as Kim Teck 

Cheong Agriculture Sdn. Bhd.)

100%

Kim Teck Cheong  
Grand Top Sdn. Bhd.

(“KTC Grandtop”)

60%

Kim Teck Cheong 
Corporate Services 

Sdn. Bhd..
(“KTC Corporate 

Services”)

100%

KIM TECK CHEONG 
CONSOLIDATED BERHAD

CORPORATE
STRUCTURE
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•	 Establishment of 
Kim Teck Cheong by 
founder, the late Datuk 
Lau Yeong Ching

•	 Incorporated Kim Teck 
Cheong Sdn Bhd to 
provide market access 
& coverage of CPG in 
Kota Kinabalu, Sabah

•	 Started a 
departmental store in 
Kota Kinabalu

•	 Incorporated Kim Teck 
Cheong (Tawau) Sdn. 
Bhd. (“KTC Tawau”) 
for distribution of CPG

•	 Established 
distribution center in 
Tawau, Sabah

1938 19751946 1983

•	 Extended product 
range to cover OTC 
drugs and health 
supplements

•	 Incorporated 
AMDA Marketing 
(Sabah) Sdn. Bhd. 
(subsequently known 
as KTC Borneo) 
to provide market 
access and coverage 
of Procter & Gamble 
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. 
(“P&G”) products in 
Sabah and Labuan

•	 Established 
distribution center in 
Labuan

•	 Established 
distribution center in 
Sandakan, Sabah

2007 20032006 2000

•	 Started distribution of 
own brands of CPG 
namely “Bamble” and 
“Orie”

•	 Incorporated KTC 
Brands to distribute 
products under own 
brands

•	 Acquired 80% 
equity interest in 
IKH Enterprise 
Sdn. Bhd. based 
in Sibu, Sarawak. 
(subsequently known 
as KTC Sarawak)

•	 Incorporated Creamos 
to manufacture bakery 
products

•	 Set-up distribution 
center in Kuching and 
Miri, Sarawak

•	 KTC Distribution 
commenced its 
distribution activity and 
took over consumer 
packaged F&B products 
from KTC Sdn Bhd 

•	 Commenced 
manufacturing business 
in bakery products

2011 20132012 2014

CORPORATE
Milestone
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•	 Transfer of listing from 
the ACE Market to the 
Main Market of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities 
Berhad

•	 Change of KTC 
Distribution to KTC 
Niaga to commence 
trading business in 
West Malaysia

•	 Change of KTC 
Agriculture to KTC 
Academy with 
principally provide in 
house training to the 
Group’s employees

•	 Incorporated of KTC 
Development  
with principally 
engaged in  property 
development 

•	 Incorporated of KTC 
Agriculture  
with principally engaged 
in  distribution of 
perishable goods 

•	 Our Group have 
implemented 
digitalization system, 
namely Hummingbird 
to improve the internal 
processes by way of 
automation

•	 Incorporated of 
Gardenia Indonesia 
with principally 
manufacturing bakery 
under the brand of 
Gardenia in Indonesia

•	 Purchased additional 
18 trucks to cater our 
customers’ demand 
throughout East 
Malaysia

•	 Change of KTC Tawau 
to Gardenia and 
started commenced 
manufacturing bakery 
under the brand of 
Gardenia in East 
Malaysia 

•	 Change of Popular 
Trading (Borneo) 
Corporation Sdn. Bhd. 
to KTC Retail as master 
distributor for twelve-
selected products 
categories for all Mesra 
and mini Mesra store in 
Sabah and Sarawak

2023 20212022 2020

•	 Listed on the ACE 
Market of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities 
Berhad

•	 Acquire 60% equity 
interest in KTC 
Grandtop

•	 Acquire 100% 
equity interest in 
Kim Teck Cheong 
Transpacific Sdn. Bhd. 
(subsequently known 
as KTC Shipping)

•	 Acquired 100% equity 
interest in Popular 
Trading (Borneo) 
Corporation Sdn. Bhd 
(subsequently known 
as KTC Retail)

•	 Extended distribution 
right for P&G products 
to Sarawak and Brunei

•	 Set-up distribution 
center in Bintulu, 
Sarawak

•	 Change of Grandtop 
Marketing Sdn Bhd to 
KTC Grandtop

•	 Acquire remaining 
20% equity interest in 
KTC Sarawak

2015 20172016 2019

Corporate Mi lestone
(Cont’d)

2024

•	 Incorporated of KTC 
Technologies with 
principally distribution 
of telecommunications 
products

•	 Purchased additional 
35 trucks to cater our 
customers’ demand 
throught East Malaysia 
and Brunei

•	 We have ventured into 
West Malaysia through 
KTC Niaga

•	 We have secured 4 new 
agencies for supplies 
of baby care products, 
food and beverage 
products as well as 
telecommunication 
products.
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CHAIRMAN’S
MESSAGE

The achievement of record-breaking revenue for KTC Group 
in FYE 2024 also complemented by a stronger financial 
position, with total assets rising to RM418.11 million (FYE 
2023: RM347.44 million).

In October 2023, KTC Group being appointed as Maxis’ 
Hotlink distributor and is tasked with ensuring the availability 
of Hotlink SIM packs and products on-ground in Sabah 
and Labuan as well as drive channel expansion for Hotlink 
products for easy accessibility to all customers in Sabah 
and Labuan. Such distributorship deal has contributed a 
total revenue RM117.17 million, representing 12.38% of KTC 
Group’s total revenue for FYE 2024. KTC Group is proud to 
be part of Maxis’ plan to pursue new opportunity in areas 
across mass market channels and expand into new channels 
in the region.

The financial year ended (“FYE”) 30 June 2024 
marks a greater growth for Kim Teck Cheong 
Consolidated Berhad (“KTC”) and its subsidiaries 
(“KTC Group” or the “Group”) subsequent to the 
successful transfer of the listing of and quotation 
for the entire share capital of KTC from the ACE 
Market to the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) towards 
the end of last financial year. KTC Group has 
achieved the record-breaking revenue since the 
IPO of KTC Group of RM946.34 million for FYE 2024, 
representing a growth of 29.74% as compared to 
previous financial year.

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), it 
gives me great pride to deliver the Annual Report 
of KTC Group for the FYE 30 June 2024.

Dear Valued Shareholders,

Performance review

Despite the achievement of a remarkable revenue in FYE 
2024, KTC Group recorded a Profit Before Tax of RM25.50 
million which is lower as compared to previous financial 
year of RM34.48 million, premise on a higher selling and 
distribution costs especially on the logistic services segment. 
Our synergistic expansion into the logistic services across 
East Malaysia will continue to be a long-term companion for 
our distribution network and coverage.

A more in-depth review of our Group’s financial performance 
will be discussed in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis as set out from pages 9 to 13 of this Annual Report.
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Chairman’s Message
(Cont’d)

Transforming with growth momentum

Corporate citizenship and governance

Sustainability as core principle in our business

As a leading CPG player in East Malaysia and Brunei, our 
growth momentum is not stopping as we continuously 
pursuing to be a holistic leading CPG player with our 
logistic services. KTC Group has been growth organically 
through the distribution of consumer package products. 
The excitement to partner with Hotlink, a brand known for 
its commitment to excellence in mobile service, will be a 
booster for growth momentum for KTC Group’s distribution 
of telecommunication products. 

Maxis will be able to invest more in East Malaysia and the 
collaboration is win-win not only Maxis and KTC Group, but 
also to the enhance lives for people in Sabah and Labuan 
through the affordable connectivity and superior mobile 
experience. The continuous government efforts to increase 
the minimum wage levels and the government aid to the 
lower-income groups should support consumer spending. 
KTC Group is poised to reap the growth as a leading CPG 
player.

We continue to play a pivotal role in corporate social 
responsibilities to give back to its communities through 
the corporate social responsibility initiatives, including 
donations, involvement in community projects, and many 
others, we also advocate the social-economic aspect to 
promote local tourism and encourage external investments 
into East Malaysia that bring the impact to the larger 
community. 

We firmly believe the people in KTC Group are our most 
valuable assets that play a vital role in ensuring the Group’s 
prosperity as they dedicate a substantial daily time with us 
and is our responsibility for a vibrant workplace. In June 
2024, we launched the new open-concept office at Lot 22, 
Jalan Kilang Light Industrial Estate to create a happier and 
healthier workplace community and make the office a more 
inviting space.

We are committed to maintaining the highest standards 
of corporate governance. Our governance framework is 
designed to ensure transparency, accountability, and integrity 
in all our operations. We have adhered to the best practices 
as outlined in the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 
(MCCG) and Bursa Malaysia’s Corporate Governance Guide. 
A more in-depth discussion in our Corporate Governance 
Report as set out in pages 40 to 50 in this Annual Report.

Sustainability remains at the core of our operations and 
corporate strategy. Our Group constantly practice good 
corporate governance, reflecting its belief that robust 
governance practices, processes, and culture are always 
the core principle in accelerating our organisational growth 
and business goals. To support the long-term sustainability 
of our operations and to build greater public trust, the 
Group diligently integrates sound principles of sustainable 
governance into our work environment and business 
processes.

We remain committed to strengthen and integrate 
sustainability agendas to manage risks and sustainability 
to ensure long term value creation for our stakeholders. A 
comprehensive elaboration of our commitment, progress 
and initiatives on sustainability are addressed in our 
Sustainability Statement as set out from pages 24 to 39 of 
this Annual Report.
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Assessing future, embracing strategic priorities

Notes of appreciation

On behalf of the Board, I would like to convey sincere 
gratitude to the long-standing support, co-operation and 
guidance of our customers and partners for their trust and 
collaboration. Your continued faith in our vision and strategy 
is a cornerstone of our success. We are equally grateful to 
our loyal management team and energise employees in 
building career path with KTC Group. Your relentless pursuit 
of excellence, hard work, dedication and commitment to 
sustainability drive our achievements daily is the engine that 
powers our growth. 

KTC Group is here today because of confidence in us by 
various stakeholders that once again allows us to reach 
greater heights year after year. We will continue to uphold 
your trust and confidence in the Group.

Lastly, I would like to take this opportunity to express my 
heartfelt gratitude to my fellow board members for their 
dedication in discharging their duties and responsibilities 
and valuable insights steering KTC Group. I look forward to 
your continued support. I remain your humble and obedient 
servant and pledge to continue my dedication and diligence 
to KTC Group.

Y. Bhg. Tun Richard Malanjum
Chairman

Chairman’s Message
(Cont’d)

Bank Negara forecasted Malaysia’s GDP growth rate for 2024 
to range from 4.0% to 5.0%, supported by resilient domestic 
demand in both the private and public sector as well as 
improvement in external demand. Such GDP growth rate 
is being revised upward in the Budget 2025 to range from 
4.8% to 5.3% signalling a stronger economic momentum. 
Domestic monetary conditions are favourable while financial 
markets foresee further appreciation of the ringgit in 2024 
and beyond, with continued strengthening anticipated into 
2025. 
 
As the forefront of East Malaysia, the economy growth is 
expected to be driven by tourism-oriented industries and 
the government initiatives to develop and upgrade the 
infrastructures by allocating development funds to East 
Malaysia. The imminent rollout of the nation’s dual 5G 
network model would also be optimistic for KTC Group with 
the distributorship of Hotlink products.

Casting an eye to the near-term future, we expect that 
economic uncertainty, market volatility and inflationary 
pressure will remain. I would like to proceed with cautious 
optimism on our growth prospects. KTC Group will continue 
focusing on its strong sales network and backed by decades 
of industry experience and fundamentals. However, our 
resilient performance during the past year, allied with 
proactive efforts to grow new and sustainable revenue 
streams, provides us with optimism that we will navigate 
these challenges effectively and deliver sustainable top and 
bottom-line growth moving forward.

The Group is weighing all options and will decide on the 
best course of action moving forward and will act in the best 
interest of its shareholders.



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD 9ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Management’s Discussion and
Analysis

Our business was founded in 1938 with the establishment of Kim Teck Cheong started its initial business activity as an 
operator of a sundry shop in Sabah. With our business philosophy has and continues to be based on achieving business 
success and continuity through integrity and ethical business practice. This is encapsulated in our company name,  
Kim (“金”) Teck (“德”) Cheong (“昌”). In 2014, Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad was incorporated as an investment 
holding company to consolidate various subsidiaries and was listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. 
In 2023, Kim Teck Consolidated Berhad achieved another new milestone which our Group transfer listing from the ACE 
Market to the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

With over 86 years of industry experience, the business has been profitably managed by the Lau family. It continues to 
expand its business presence and branding throughout East Malaysia and Brunei.

Our Group is principally a provider of market access and coverage of Consumer Package Goods (“CPG”). We are involved 
in the distribution and warehousing of a range of CPG, namely foods and beverage products, personal care products, 
household products, and over-the-counter drugs and health supplements, and baby care products covering mainly East 
Malaysia. Today, Kim Teck Cheong (“KTC”) is a first-tier provider of market access and coverage in the distribution of CPG 
in East Malaysia, namely Sabah, Sarawak, Labuan and Brunei with over 12,000 sales and distribution points covering more 
than 80 districts, involves more than 54 brand owners. In 2024, our Group has also expand our distribution business to 
distribution of telecommunication products.

KTC is also involved in manufacturing, distributing, selling and marketing its in-house brand bakery products, namely 
Creamos, based on our own recipes. In 2020, KTC entered into license agreements that granted KTC the rights to use the 
trademarks of ‘Gardenia’ to manufacture, supply and distribution of bread in East Malaysia and Indonesia. To date, we have 
9 and 9 products manufactured under Creamos and Gardenia, respectively.

In 2023, our Group has actively expanded our business into transportation support services. Today, KTC has 139 fleet of 
trucks moving across East Malaysia and Brunei. 

Our core business is supported by 17 distribution centers with warehousing facilities in East Malaysia and Brunei. Of the 
17 distribution centers, 14 of the distribution centres support the distribution of CPG, 2 of the distribution centres support 
our shipping business while the remaining 1 support the distribution of bakery products. 

During the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024, our Group has incorporated a new company, namely KTC Technologies 
principally involved in distribution of telecommunication products.

  

OVERVIEW OF THE GROUP’S BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets out a summary of the audited consolidated financial information for the past 3 financial years 
ended 30 June (“FYE”) 2022, FYE 2023 and FYE 2024.

Audited Changes 
(FYE 2023 vs FYE 2024)

FYE 2022
RM’000

FYE 2023
RM’000

FYE 2024
RM’000 RM’000 %

Revenue 705,838 729,390 946,340 216,950 29.74

Profit before tax 29,502 34,479 25,500 (8,979) (26.04)

Profit for the year 22,270 25,106 18,641 (6,465) (25.75)

Profit attributable to owners of KTC 20,400 21,802 16,410 (5,392) (24.73)

Shareholders’ equity 153,680 176,851 193,272 16,421 9.29

For the past 3 FYEs 2022 to 2024, our Group recorded revenue of RM705.84 million, RM729.39 million and RM946.34 million, 
respectively, representing a 3 years compounded annual growth rate (“CAGR”) of approximately 10.27%. 

Revenue

Our revenue by business segment and geographical regions are tabulated as below:

REVENUE BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS

–

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

600,000

700,000

900,000

800,000

70
8,

94
3

80
0,

82
6

Distribution of 
CPG

18
,5

31

18
,9

76

Manufacturing of 
bakery products

1,
91

6

9,
36

5

Provision of 
transportation 

support services

–

11
7,

17
3

Distribution of 
telecommunication 

products

FYE 2023 FYE 2024

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL REGIONS

FYE 2023
RM’000

FYE 2024
RM’000

Sabah Sarawak Brunei and others

Our Group registered growth in revenue by RM216.95 million or 29.74% to 
RM946.34 million for FYE 2024 as compared with the previous financial year 
of RM729.39 million. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in 
our core business, distribution of CPG segment and new segment, distribution 
of telecommunication products, which collectively contributed 97.01% of our 
Group’s total revenue for FYE 2024. 

122,015

124,586

585,876

419,757

238,449

185,047

Management’s Discuss ion and Analys is
(Cont’d)

RM
’0

00
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  (Cont’d)

Distribution of CPG Segment

As our mainstay, the distribution of CPG segment remains the primary contributor to our Group’s total revenue for FYE 
2024, which registered growth in revenue to RM800.83 million for FYE 2024 compared with the previous financial year of 
RM708.94 million, representing an improvement of RM91.89 million or 12.96%.
 
The increase in revenue from the distribution of CPG segment was mainly attributable to the growth in demand for foods 
and beverage products as well as personal care and cosmetics products. 

Manufacturing of bakery products segment

Our Group’s manufacturing of bakery products segment registered a growth in revenue by RM0.45 million or 2.43% to 
RM18.98 million for FYE 2024 compared to RM18.53 million in the previous financial year. The revenue growth was primarily 
contributed by higher demand from our Gardenia’s products.

Provision of transportation support services segment

Our Group’s revenue for provision of transportation support services segment increased by RM7.45 million or 388.02% to 
RM9.37 million for FYE 2024 as compared to RM1.92 million in the previous financial year. The increase was mainly due to 
our Group has secured more customers to provide transportation support services. 

Distribution of telecommunication products

As a new segment, our Group recorded revenue of RM117.17 million, represented 12.38% of our total revenue for FYE 2024. 

Revenue analysis by geographical regions

Our Sabah operation has remained our primary contributor to our Group’s revenue, which recorded RM585.88 million or 
61.91% of our total revenue for FYE 2024. The increase was contributed mainly by the higher sales from the distribution of 
GPG segment and the sales recorded from the distribution of telecommunication products. 

For FYE 2024, our Sarawak operation contributed RM238.45 million or 25.20% of the Group’s total revenue, showing an 
increase in revenue by RM53.40 million or 28.86% as compared to the previous financial year, mainly due to higher demand 
for food and beverage products as well as personal care and cosmetics products. 

Our Brunei and others operations contributed the remaining RM122.02 million or 12.89% to the total Group’s revenue, which 
recorded a decrease in revenue of RM2.57 million or 2.06% as compared to the previous financial year mainly due to the 
decrease in sales for food and beverage from our Brunei operations.

Profit before tax and Profit after tax

Despite our Group recording revenue growth of 29.74%, our 
Group has registered a lower profit before tax of RM25.50 
million for FYE 2024 as compared to RM34.48 million to the 
previous financial year. Correspondingly, our Group has also 
registered lower profit after tax of RM18.64 million for FYE 
2024 as compared to RM25.11 million to the previous financial 
year. The lower profit before tax and profit after tax was mainly 
attributable to the higher selling and distribution expenses 
mainly due to higher staff costs incurred resulted from the staff 
adjustments as well as our Group’s diversification in providing 
logistic services to our customers, which required a gestation 
period to expand our customer base.
 

Management’s Discuss ion and Analys is
(Cont’d)
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REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  (Cont’d)

Financial position

Our Group recorded a net asset of RM207.59 million as at 30 June 2024, representing an increase of RM18.81 million or 
9.96% compared to RM188.78 million as at 30 June 2023, resulting from our improved financial performance and position. 
Thus, our Group registered net assets attributable to our owners per share of 30.44 sen as at 30 June 2024 as compared 
with 27.69 sen as at 30 June 2023. 

ANTICIPATED OR KNOWN RISK

Credit risk

The normal trade credit terms granted by our Group for trade 
receivables range from 30 to 90 days. Any significant delay 
or default in payment by our major customers could result 
in impairment being put through for credit losses which in 
turn, would adversely affect our financial position and results. 
Our Group review ageing reports monthly to identify slow 
paying customers for actions to be taken for recovery and 
provision, if necessary.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that our Group will encounter 
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of 
funds. Our Group exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily 
from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and 
liabilities. As part of the overall liquidity management, our 
Group maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible 
investments to meet its working capital requirements. In 
addition, our Group strives to maintain available banking 
facilities at a reasonable level to its overall debt position.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. 

Our Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises mainly from 
its loans and borrowings. Most of our Group’s loans and 
borrowings are charged a fixed interest rate plus or minus 
the financial institutions’ base lending rate or cost of fund 
per annum. The fixed interest rate is reviewed annually. 

Technology

Technology has vastly transformed both the social and 
business environments. Technology often deals with 
methods or tools used to gather, process, store and 
communicate information. The advancement of technology 
has enabled our Group to reduce business costs and at the 
same time minimise the returns of inventories.

Downtime risk

From operational perspective, our manufacturing of bakery 
products and warehouse division is exposed to downtime 
risk. This risk could occur in the unlikely event of a fire, flood, 
power outage, workers on strike or machinery breakdown, 
and environmental factors (including natural disaster and 
outbreak of diseases), thus resulting in production and 
delivery delays as well as reputational damage to our Group. 
Our manufacturing has been practicing strict Covid-19 
Prevention SOP since the pandemic and operators are 
going through self-test monitoring according to government 
regulations. 

Management’s Discuss ion and Analys is
(Cont’d)
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Our Group is optimistic about the distribution business 
segment and expects it to be satisfactory and continue 
to be the major contributor in terms of revenue and 
profit to our Group. We will continue to be bullish in 
our performance in the coming year by focusing on 
serving our existing customers better by maintaining 
high service standards while offering innovative service, 
at the same time focusing on organic growth through 
strategic sign-ups with new agencies and brands to 
complement our Group’s highly diversified agencies 
portfolio as well as achieving our ideal operating cost-
efficient structure. For our manufacturing of bakery 
products segment, the invention of PT Gardenia Bakeries 
Indonesia has also brought our Group to expand our 
presence in Indonesia. Furthermore, with the provision 
of transportation support services, our Group believe 
that these services will contribute to the growth in our 
profit. Our Group remains cautiously optimistic about 
the delivery of a satisfactory performance in the next 
financial year. It will continue its prudent business 
strategy to ensure sustainable growth.

 

Our Group presently does not have any formal dividend 
policy and the declaration of dividends and other 
distribution are subject to the discretion of our Board. 
However, the Board of Directors shall consider various 
factors when recommending dividends for approval 
by our shareholders or when declaring any interim 
dividends.  Amongst others include the availability of 
adequate distributable reserves, the level of cash and 
indebtedness of our Group, our expected results of 
operations and future level of operations, our projected 
levels of capital expenditure and other investment plans, 
and any material impact of tax laws and other regulatory 
requirements.

FUTURE PROSPECTS DIVIDEND POLICY

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing
Managing Director

Management’s Discuss ion and Analys is
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
9 December 2019

Qualification

He graduated with LLB(Hons)(London) from the University of London in 1975 
and proceeded to obtain the Barrister At Law, a professional qualification in 
law from the Inns of Court School of Law. He was then called to the English 
Bar in 1976. He is a member and a Master of the Bench with Gray’s Inn London. 
In 1977 he was admitted as an Advocate and Solicitor of the High Court of 
Sabah and Sarawak in Sabah and Barrister with the Australia Capitol Territory 
(ACT) Bar in 1991. He is also a trained mediator. Recently he was admitted as 
an Advocate and Solicitor of the High Court of Sabah and Sarawak in Sarawak.

Working experience and occupation

He began his legal career in 1975 upon graduation as an administrative officer 
cum legal officer with the Sabah State Attorney Chambers until 1981. He 
then left for private practice. He had a successful legal practice until he was 
appointed in 1992 as a Judicial Commissioner of the High Court of Sabah 
and Sarawak.

He was elevated as a High Court Judge of the High Court of Sabah and Sarawak 
in 1993. In 2002, he was elevated to the Court of Appeal and thereafter as the 
Justice of the Federal Court in 2005. He was then appointed as the Chief Judge 
of the High Court of Sabah and Sarawak in 2006 until his appointment as the 
Chief Justice of Malaysia in 2018.

Profile of
Directors

Tun Richard Malanjum
Independent Non-Executive Chairman

72
years

Board Committee belongs

Nil

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Berjaya Land Berhad

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Nil

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6
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Date of appointment: 
17 October 2014

Qualification

He completed his high school education in 1965.

Working experience and occupation

He worked in an enterprise, a family owned departmental store situated in 
Kota Kinabalu. Subsequently in 1967, he was responsible for the day-to-day 
management of the business and later he took over the operation in 1973.

In 1975, he was involved in setting up KTC Sdn Bhd which provide market 
access and coverage of third party brands of personal care products namely 
skin care products in Sabah. 

In 1983, he co-founded KTC Tawau with his brother-in-law, Lim Hui Kiong. In 
2000, he set up the distribution centre in Sandakan and in 2003, he established 
AMDA Marketing (Sabah) Sdn. Bhd. (now known as KTC Borneo), in which 
established KTC’s strong footing in Sarawak. 

Currently, he is the National Vice President of the Malaysia-China Chamber of 
Commerce and Honorary Life Adviser to the Malaysia-China Chamber of 
Commerce, Sabah Branch. 

He is also the Honorary Life President of the United Sabah Chinese 
Communities Association and the Honorary Life Chairman of Kota Kinabalu 
Hokkien Association and Sabah Ann Koai Association, an Honorary Advisor 
for the Kota Kinabalu Journalists Association. 

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing
Non-Independent Managing Director

78
years

Board Committee belongs

Member of Remuneration Committee

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Nil

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Spouse of Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook 
Len @ Lim Su Chin

Brother in law of Lim Hui Kiong
Father of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei 

Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau
Father of Lindfay Laura Lau

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
2 December 2014

Qualification

She obtained a Diploma in Executive Secretary & Management at West London 
College in 1976.

Working experience and occupation

She joined Kumpolan Sabah Sdn. Bhd. as a Marketing Manager in 1977. 
Thereafter, she joined KTC Sdn Bhd in 1978 as a Senior Manager responsible 
for the administrative and supply chain operations. Since then, she has been 
with our Group. In 1983, she assisted in the setting-up of KTC Tawau and was 
subsequently promoted to the position of Director in KTC Tawau in 1989. 
Between 1989 and 1997, she assisted in the operations of KTC Sdn Bhd and 
KTC Tawau in the area of supply chain management. From 1997 until 2012, 
she has been assisting in the supervision and management of the operations 
of our Group on an informal and ad-hoc basis. 

Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

70
years

Board Committee belongs

Nil

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Nil

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Spouse of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh 
Sing @ Lau Kok Sing

Sister of Lim Hui Kiong
Mother of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei 

Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau
Mother of Lindfay Laura Lau

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
17 October 2014

Qualification

He obtained his Bachelor of Law from the University of Kent, Canterbury, United 
Kingdom in 2001. He completed the Bar Vocational Course at the Inns of Court 
School of Law, and was subsequently, called to the Bar of England and Wales 
as at member of Lincoln’s Inn of the United Kingdom in 2002.

Working experience and occupation

He started his career as the General Manager of AMDA Marketing (Sabah) Sdn. 
Bhd. (subsequently known as KTC Borneo) in 2003 and was appointed as a 
director of KTC Borneo and KTC Tawau in the same year. He was promoted to 
Vice President of the Group in 2009. In 2012, he established Creamos, putting 
our Group on the map of the bakery industry in East Malaysia. 

During his tenure with the Group, he has been responsible for managing the 
day-to-day business operations and planning strategies for the future direction 
of our Group. He was selected to become a member of the Young Presidents’ 
Organisation since 2010. 

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau
Non-Independent Executive Director

45
years

Board Committee belongs

Nil

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Nil

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Son of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing 
@ Lau Kok Sing and Y. Bhg. Datin 
Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin

Nephew of Lim Hui Kiong
Brother of Lindfay Laura Lau

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
2 December 2014

Qualification

He completed his high school education in 1979.

Working experience and occupation

He started his career as a Sales Representative at Kilat Jaya, a company 
involved in wholesale distribution. He then furthered his O-levels at Tresham 
College of Further and Higher Education, United Kingdom in 1979. Thereafter in 
1981, he joined Diethelm (M) Sdn Bhd (subsequently known as DKSH Malaysia 
Sdn Bhd) as a Sales Representative in 1982. In 1983, he left Diethelm (M) Sdn 
Bhd and co-founded KTC Tawau with Datuk Lau. He played a key role in growing 
the company by focusing on providing market access and coverage of CPG 
products in the east coast of Sabah. He was instrumental in building up the 
network of suppliers and customers particularly in east coast of Sabah. In 2013, 
he was appointed as a director in KTC Sarawak. He has since accumulated 
over 41 years of experience in the wholesale distribution industry. 

Lim Hui Kiong
Non-Independent Executive Director

65
years

Board Committee belongs

Nil

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Nil

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Brother in Law of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau 
Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing

Brother of Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook 
Len @ Lim Su Chin

Uncle of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick 
@ Dexter Dick Lau

Uncle of Lindfay Laura Lau

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
28 September 2018

Qualification

She obtained her Advanced Diploma in Commerce from Tunku Abdul Rahman 
College in 1997. In 1998, she obtained her professional accounting qualification 
from the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom.

She has a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a fellow member 
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, she has been 
a member of the Institute of Corporate Directors Malaysia since November 
2021.

Working experience and occupation

She began her professional career at Messrs. Baker Tilly Monteiro Heng in 
1997. She was subsequently promoted to Senior Audit Manager, Associate 
Director and Executive Director of Transaction Reporting Division in 2005, 2007 
and 2011 respectively. She left the firm in 2015. 

In 2016, she joined Dolphin Application Sdn Bhd (a subsidiary of Dolphin 
International Berhad, which is listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad) as Corporate Affairs Director. She left Dolphin Application 
Sdn Bhd in 2017 to pursue her own business venture, Avia Alliance Sdn Bhd, a 
business and finance consultancy firm. 

During her more than 18 years of experience in audits of small and medium size 
companies and public listed companies as well as Reporting Accountants for 
various corporate exercises, she had acquired in-depth knowledge in auditing, 
accounting, taxation, Companies Act, Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad and the Securities Commission guidelines. 

She is currently involves in corporate exercises and handling special local and 
overseas projects as well as providing financial related services. 

Phang Sze Fui
Independent Non-Executive Director

52
years

Board Committee belongs

Chairperson of Audit and Risk
 Management Committee
Member of Remuneration
 Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Orgabio Holdings Berhad
Skyworld Development Berhad

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Nil

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
26 October 2018

Qualification

She earned her Masters in Economics from University of Malaya in 2006 and 
in 2011, graduated from the National Institute of Public Administrative (INTAN) 
Malaysia under the Advanced Leadership Management Programme.

Working experience and occupation

She began her career in 1983 with the Ministry of Works where she was 
responsible for the budgeting, coordination, and management of public roads, 
government buildings and water projects in Sarawak, Sabah and Labuan. 
In 1988, she left the Ministry of Works and joined the Ministry of Finance 
Malaysia. During her tenure there, she was involved in the preparation of loan 
agreements, facilitation of multilateral loan agreements between the Malaysian 
government and international organisations, consolidation of financial laws into 
the Financial Services Act and Islamic Financial Services Act with Bank Negara 
Malaysia as well as the establishment of standard operating procedures for 
terms and conditions in the granting of house loans to civil servants. 

In 2017, she left the Ministry of Finance as the Deputy Under Secretary 
(Investment Evaluation Sector) of the Strategic Investment Division. She then 
joined the Prime Minister’s Department soon after as the Deputy Director 
General (Special Project) of the Public Private Partnership Unit. Here, she 
contributed in the fast-tracking the conclusion of a high priority Public-Private 
Partnership contract negotiations together with relevant government ministries/
agencies/company. She then retired in 2018 as a senior superscale government 
officer. 

Wong Wen Miin 
Independent Non-Executive Director

67
years

Board Committee belongs

Chairperson of Remuneration 
Committee

Member of Audit and Risk 
Management Committee

Member of Nomination Committee

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

OSK Holdings Berhad
SHH Resources Holdings Berhad

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Nil

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
3 December 2018

Qualification

He earned his Masters in Business Administration from Drake University, Lowa, 
USA and a Bachelor’s Degree in Mathematics from Knox College, lllinois, USA.

Working experience and occupation

He is a Director of Ikram Education Sdn. Bhd. and a member of the Board of 
Governers of Infrastructure University Kuala Lumpur since 2012.  In September 
2018, he was also appointed as the Chairman of Protasco Development Sdn. 
Bhd.

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor
Independent Non-Executive Director

65
years

Board Committee belongs

Chairman of Nomination Committee
Member of Audit and Risk 

Management Committee

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

S&P International Ltd

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Nil

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
7 August 2018

(Alternate Director to Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin)

Qualification

She obtained Master in Ophthalmology from University of Malaya in 2017. In 
2006, she obtained bachelor’s in medicine, Surgery and Arts of Obstetrics. She 
was awarded Honors in Bachelor in Medical Science from University College 
Dublin (Ireland) in 2004.

Working experience and occupation

She began her career as medical and surgical internship in Waterford Regional 
Hospital, Ireland in 2006. Thereafter, she returned to Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, 
Malaysia and joined Sabah Women and Children Hospital and specialises 
in Obstetric and Gynaecology in 2009. In 2014, she joined Klinik Kesihatan 
Penampang for General Practice. In the same year, she joined University Malaya 
Medical Centre, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and specialise in Ophthalmology.

Subsequently, she continues to specialise in Ophthalmology and she joined 
Shah Alam Hospital, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia in 2016. In the same year, she 
left and returned to Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia and joined Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital. 

Lindfay Laura Lau 
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

42
years

Board Committee belongs

Nil

Other directorship in 
public companies and 
listed corporations

Nil

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Daughter of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh 
Sing @ Lau Kok Sing

Daughter of Y. Bhd. Datin Lim Fook 
Len @ Lim Su Chin

Sister of Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick 
@ Dexter Dick Lau

Niece of Lim Hui Kiong

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

Number of Board meetings
attended

6/6

Profi le of  Di rectors
(Cont’d)
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Date of appointment: 
24 October 2024

Qualification

Mr Teh Yong Khim holds a Bachelor of Accounting Degree from University of 
Malaya. He is a member of Malaysian Institution of Accountants (“MIA”) and 
Associate of Chartered Certified Accoutants (“ACCA”).

Working experience and occupation

During his final year of study at the university, he worked as part-time staff at 
HS Teoh & Co. After graduating from university in 2008, he pursued his career 
as an auditor in KPMG Singapore for 3 years where he gained solid experience 
in the areas of auditing and accountancy.
 
In 2011, he left KPMG Singapore and joined Focus Lumber Berhad as an 
Accountant in 2012. He was then promoted to the position of Financial 
Controller in 2018 before his appointment as an Executive Director. He had 
participated in various corporate exercises of Focus Lumber Berhad such as 
bonus issue of shares and implementation of Employee Share Option Scheme.
 
In 2024, he left Focus Lumber Berhad and and joined Kim Teck Cheong 
Consolidated Berhad as Finance Director overseeing the Group finance 
department.

Teh Yong Khim
Finance Director

40
years

Other directorship in public 
companies and listed corporations

Nil

Family relationship with
director/major shareholder

Nil

Conflict of interest

Nil

List of convictions for offences 
within the past 5 years if any

Nil

PROFILE OF
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
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1.	 INTRODUCTION

SUSTAINABIL ITY
Statement

	
	Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad (“KTC”) and its group of companies (“KTC Group” or “the Group”) are committed 
towards creating long-term value for our stakeholders through sustainable practices. We strive to integrate our sustainability 
agenda across all aspects of our business operations.

	KTC is pleased to present our Sustainability Statement, which outlines the Group’s Economic, Environmental and Social 
(“EES”) performances. This Statement reflects our ongoing journey towards embedding sustainability into our daily operations 
and business practices while considering the interests of our stakeholders and business growth. This Statement also sets 
out KTC’s approach towards sustainable development and management of EES risks and opportunities, after considering 
the impact of our business endeavours on the EES facets the Group interacts with.

1.1	 SCOPE AND BOUNDARIES

	 KTC is an investment holding company, the Group is principally involved in the distribution and warehousing of consumer 
packaged goods and prepaid reload sim cards, manufacture of bakery products and provision of transportation 
support services. The scope of this Statement mainly relates to our Group’s distribution, manufacturing and logistic 
operations in Malaysia, save for Brunei, this Statement also provides comparative historical data.

1.2	 REPORTING PERIOD AND CYCLE

	 This statement describes the Group’s sustainability activities covering both, financial and non-financial aspects for 
the period from 1 July 2023 to 30 June 2024, and up to the date of this Statement, unless otherwise specified.

1.3 	 GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS

	 Bursa Malaysia’s Sustainability Reporting Guide (3rd Edition) was referenced in the preparation of our Sustainability 
Statement 2024.

1.4 	 STATEMENT QUALITY AND ASSURANCE
	
	 This Statement has not been subjected to an assurance process. The data reported in this Statement has been 

internally sourced and verified by the respective business units or information owners. The Group shall continue to 
strengthen its data collection and analysis procedures to enhance the quality and accuracy of its data.    
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1.	 INTRODUCTION (CONT’D)

1.5 	 GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
	

	 The Board of Directors of KTC adopts a sustainability governance approach that is fit for the Group’s purpose, after 
considering amongst others, our culture, needs, sustainability-related risks and opportunities and level of maturity of 
the sustainability intellect and readiness.

	
	 The diagram below highlights the key roles and responsibilities of KTC in relation to EES matters:

 

Board of 
Directors

Board Audit 
and Risk 
Management 
Committee

Sustainability 
Working 
Group

	 Oversees and governs the Group’s sustainability 
agenda and strategy

	 Embeds EES within the Group’s EES strategy
	 Approves the Group’s EES strategy

	 Approves targets and market disclosures
	 Develops EES strategy and recommend appropriate 

revision to the Board
	 Evaluates overall EES risks and opportunities

	 Support the Board and ARMC in the implementation 
of sustainability related strategies

	 Oversees departments/functions in ensuring 
robustness of system in relation to EES management

	 Report management targets
	 Develop plan and timeline for relevant disclosures

 

2.1 	 OBJECTIVES

	 The objective of the materiality assessment process is to identify and prioritise the sustainability matters which are 
material to the business of the Group as well as to its stakeholders. This enhances the Group’s strategic planning, 
implementation, business decision-making, and to enable stakeholders to make better informed decisions.

	 The Board considers it appropriate in this regard to limit the scope of materiality assessment and by extension the 
sustainability disclosure to the active companies within the Group. As the Group endeavours to enhance socioeconomic 
benefits and create a positive social impact on the immediate communities surrounding its operations in East Malaysia, 
the geographical boundary of the Group’s materiality assessment is confined within East Malaysia, save for Brunei. 
The assessment process covers distribution, manufacturing and logistic operations in East Malaysia.

2.	 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS 

Sustainabi l i ty  Statement
(Cont’d)
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2.	 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS (CONT’d)

2.2 	 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
	
	 Engaging with stakeholders allows the Group to gain a clearer understanding of how its operations affect the economic, 

environmental, and social. This interaction uncovers our key stakeholders’ key concerns. To facilitate this, the Group 
follows a three-step process for engaging stakeholders:

 
	
	 Identify 

Key 
Stakeholders

Identify key stakeholders who 
are pertinent to the Group’s 

activities, products, services, 
and business strategy, or who 
are impacted by its operation

Prioritise Key 
Stakeholders

Prioritise key stakeholders 
based on their levels of 

dependency and influence on 
the company.

Understand 
their Key 
Concern

Understand key stakeholder’s 
concerns and identify strategic 

actions to manage key 
stakeholder concerns. 

			 
	

	
	 Our stakeholders encompass group affected by our Group’s business decisions and activities and the parties whose 

actions and decisions will influence the Group’s business growth. KTC continuously maintains regular engagement 
with its key stakeholder groups, which enables the Group to identify and align their key priorities and concerns within 
the Group’s business practices and strategies towards addressing material sustainability matters. 

	

Stakeholders

Investors & 
Shareholders

Government & 
Regulators

Media

Lenders/ 
Financiers

Employees

Customers

Local Community

Suppliers

Sustainabi l i ty  Statement
(Cont’d)
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2.	 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS (CONT’d)

2.2 	 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT’D)

	 We value our stakeholders’ views and undertake various engagement approach to understand their interests and 
concerns towards our business operations and sustainability performance. The approaches we engaged with 
stakeholders are detailed below:

Stakeholders Stakeholder’s Concerns Engagement Approach Frequency

Employees The Group’s growth and success is dependent on a diverse and capable workforce to drive 
our business objectives and achieve our long-term goals, it is critical for us to ensure the 
wellbeing of all our employees and support their career growth and advancement.

•	 Fair employment practice 
and diversity

•	 Training and career 
progression

•	 Safe and healthy working 
environments

•	 Employee benefits and 
welfare

•	 Regular feedback 
mechanisms (surveys, 
reviews)

•	 Communication about 
safety treatment 

•	 Data protection policies 
and communication 
about privacy safeguards 

•	 Annually

•	 Monthly

•	 As needed

Customers 
(ie. Retailers 
& Chain Stores)

Understand their evolving needs and concerns to cultivate positive long-term relationships 
with our customers and improve our services and quality.

•	 Unsatisfactory products 
(ie. Product issues) and 
services (ie. Delays in 
deliveries)

•	 Personal data protection

•	 Quality Management 
System

•	 Competitive pricing
•	 Customer engagement

•	 As needed

•	 As needed
•	 As needed

Suppliers 
(ie. Distributors / 
Principals)

Our suppliers / distributors / principals enable us to continue delivering quality development 
to our customers. Maintaining sustainable relationship with our suppliers / distributors / 
principals build ethical and trustworthy alliances.

•	 Prompt payment
•	 Continuous and future 

business opportunities

•	 Constant and regular 
engagement and 
coordination

•	 Process improvement
•	 Quality assessment

•	 Monthly

•	 As needed
•	 As needed

Government and 
Regulators

Relationship with the Government and regulators enables the Group to keep abreast 
on relevant changes to regulations, ensuring continued compliance with local laws and 
requirements and obtain necessary approval for our operations.

•	 Ensuring company 
adherence to applicable 
regulations (Environmental 
and Occupational Safety 
and Health Act etc)

•	 Upholding corporate 
governance and best 
business practices

•	 Engagement with 
regulatory bodies and 
government agencies

•	 Compliance management 
(I.e. legal checklist)

•	 Participation in training 
provided by relevant 
agencies

•	 As needed

•	 As needed

•	 As needed

Sustainabi l i ty  Statement
(Cont’d)
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS (CONT’d)

2.2 	 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Stakeholders Stakeholder’s Concerns Engagement Approach Frequency

Lenders/
Financiers

Lenders/Financiers support us through the provision of short- and long-term capitals 
enabling us to manage our operation and achieve our business objectives. (i.e development 
projects, working capital, etc).

•	 Sustainable performance, 
where KTC can repay the 
loans

•	 KTC’s commitment towards 
EES and sustainability 
practices.

•	 Adequacy of corporate 
governance, risk 
management and internal 
controls

•	 Company website

•	 Corporate and media 
announcement

•	 Loan covenant and 
compliance reporting

•	 Ad-hoc company festive 
event

•	 Company 
website

•	 Corporate 
and media 
announcement

•	 Loan covenant 
and compliance 
reporting

•	 Ad-hoc 
company 
festive event

Shareholders and 
Investors

Shareholders and investors provide us the necessary resources to execute our strategy 
and achieve growth. In return, we need to operate responsibly, thus delivering strong and 
sustainable financial returns.

•	 Sustainable performance, 
where the Company can 
build/improve confidence 
level of shareholders, 
boost share price and can 
continue to pay dividends 
to their shareholders 

•	 Corporate governance, risk 
management and internal 
controls

•	 Quarterly reporting and 
regular audit

•	 Financial performance 
results

•	 Bursa announcements
•	 Press conferences and 

media releases
•	 Annual reports

•	 Quarterly
•
	 Quarterly 

•	 As needed
•	 As needed

•	 Annually

Media The media serves as a crucial link in the chain of communication between the Group and 
its stakeholders. They play a crucial role in disseminating relevant news about the Group’s 
financial performance, property launches and developments. This promotes brand image 
and public confidence.

•	 Transparency and 
promptness in sharing 
information and progress 
updates with stakeholders.

•	 Quarterly Report
•	 Corporate and media 

announcement
•	 Social Media/Company 

Website
•	 AGM/EGM
•	 Annual report

•	 Quarterly
•	 As needed

•	 As needed

•	 Annually
•	 Annually
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2.	 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS (CONT’D)

2.2 	 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Stakeholders Stakeholder’s Concerns Engagement Approach Frequency

Local 
Communities

Our operations may impact the surrounding communities where we operate. Local 
community engagement is important to ensure the social and economic benefits concerned 
are addressed. 

•	 Impact of operations on 
surrounding communities 
and environment

•	 Financial assistance and 
donations

•	 Corporate Social 
Responsibility (“CSR”) 
events and programmes 
with community

•	 Job opportunities
•	 Festive events

•	 As needed

•	 As needed

•	 As needed
•	 As needed

	
2.4 	 MANAGING MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS

	 These material matters have been verified and endorsed by the Board and is subject to continuous updates and 
revision. Although our material matters have remained mostly the same, we have revised our material matters in a 
more streamline manner, as well as identifying new issues which are material to Group and removing issues that are 
deemed not material to the Group.

	 We have prioritised the material matters in accordance to their level of influence on the Group’s businesses as well 
as the decisions of stakeholders. Accordingly, the prioritisation of material matters is illustrated in the Materiality 
Matrix below:

	

Very High

High

Medium

Low

Very Low

Insignificant Minor Moderate Major Catastrophic

Impact to the Business

In
flu

en
ce

 o
n 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

Local Communities

Market Presence

Ethics and Intergrity

Product and
Service Quality

Waste Management
Energy and 

Water Management

Employee Growth and
Career Development

Occupational Growth
& Safety

Emissions
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2.	 MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT PROCESS (CONT’D)

2.4 	 MANAGING MATERIAL SUSTAINABILITY MATTERS (CONT’D)

	

3.1.1 	Product and Service Quality
	
	 At KTC, customer satisfaction is one of our top priorities. We strive to always deliver exceptional service, 

built on a foundation of clear communication, knowledgeable staff, and a genuine commitment to customer 
satisfaction. Being involved in both the distribution and bakery business, the Group is committed to provide the 
highest quality of products and services on both fronts. 

	
	 The implementation of the Hummingbird system – our in-house system for warehousing and distribution activities 

has continuously assisted in our daily operational activities. Through the use of this system, our warehousing 
management has become not only more efficient but the speed and accuracy of our warehouse picking has 
also improved. 

	 For our distribution division, we obtained Halal certifications for our logistics processing in Kota Kinabalu 
Industrial Park (“KKIP”) in managing the distribution of frozen goods for certain restaurant chains in Sabah 
region.

	 As we also manufacture bakery products, KTC is committed to assuring our customers that our food is of 
quality. We maintain “Makanan Selamat Tanggungjawab Industri” (“MeSTI”) and Halal certifications to show 
that our manufacturing processes are always up to standard.

MeSTI Certification 

Food Safety is a key responsibility of the food industry and MeSTI is the minimum Food Safety Assurance 
Programme that ensures adequate quality control over the processing operations of food manufacturing 
premises. This is a system of organised practices that is documented and provides the assurance that 
consumption of any specific type of food will not be harmful to the consumer. MeSTI certificate is granted 
to Creamos (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (“CMSB”) and Gardenia Bakeries (East Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (“GBSB”) by the 
Ministry of Health Malaysia (“MoH”). The certificates are renewed and valid from 21 October 2022 to 20 
October 2025 and 15 December 2022 to 14 December 2025
respectively.

Through MeSTI certification, CMSB and GBSB are ushered into the development and implementation of 
the Food Safety Assurance Programme. Both companies have undertaken the responsibility to provide 
assurance to customers in terms of food safety and hygiene practices as well as the handling and preparing 
of food items.

ECONOMIC

Product & Service Quality
Ethics and Integrity

Market Presence

ENVIRONMENT

Energy and Water 
Management

Emissions
Waste Management

SOCIAL
Occupational Health & 

Safety
Employee Growth & Career 

Development
Local Communities

3.1     Economic

3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES 
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.1     Economic

3.1.1	Product and Service Quality (Cont’d)

Halal Certification

Bakery

KTC commenced manufacturing of bakery products in 2014 and holds a Halal certification under Creamos 
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd (“CMSB”). CMSB sold its products in Kota Kinabalu and Sandakan, and its products 
are available at various outlets, including hypermarkets, supermarkets, sundry shops, convenience stores, 
petrol kiosks, Chinese medical halls and school canteen.

In addition, the Halal certificates granted to CMSB and GBSB by Department of Islamic Development 
Malaysia are renewed and valid from 16 March 2023 to 15 March 2025. Through halal certification, CMSB 
and GBSB have undertaken the responsibility to ensure and preserve the halal integrity of products by 
ensuring a controlled quality management system through the supply chain. In addition, CMSB and GBSB 
also ensures the Company consistently complies with the standards and requirements set by the authority.

Distribution

KTC commenced third party logistics of frozen food products to certain restaurants chain in 2016 under 
Kim Teck Cheong Distribution Sdn Bhd (“KTCD”) across Sabah region.

In addition, the Halal certificates granted to KTCD by Department of Islamic Development Malaysia are 
renewed and valid from 1 November 2022 to 31 October 2025. Through halal certification, KTCD has 
undertaken the responsibility to ensure and preserve the halal integrity of the whole logistic process by 
ensuring a controlled quality management system throughout the logistic process. In addition, KTCD also 
ensures the Company consistently complies with the standards and requirements set by the authority.

3.1.2 	Ethics and Integrity
	
	 Upholding the highest standards of business conduct is paramount at the Group. This means acting with integrity 

in our business dealings and adhering to the best practices in corporate governance. The Group’s policies and 
communications clearly outline our positions, commitments, and expectations for stakeholders.

	 Anti Bribery and Anti-Corruption
	
	 The Group adopts zero-tolerance stance against bribery and corruption. KTC has established Anti-Corruption 

Policies and Procedures and Code of Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) to guide our Directors, management 
and employees of the Group. The Code requires all employees to observe high ethical business standards, and 
apply these values in all aspects of the Group’s business and its shareholders. 

	 The Anti-Corruption Policies and Procedures is not only applicable to Directors and employees but also the 
Group’s suppliers and business associates to ensure all our operations, including those carried out by our service 
providers are conducted fairly.

	 Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures

	 The Anti-Corruption Policies and Procedures and the Code are supported by the Whistleblowing Policy to empower 
all employees of the Group to report or disclose through an established whistleblowing channel, which reports 
in good faith any illegal, unethical, questionable practices, wrongdoings, or improper conduct committed or 
about to be committed within the Group without fear of being subject to detrimental conduct including reprisal 
and retaliation.

	
	 Employees are expected to conduct themselves professionally and with integrity and shall not engage in any 

form of corrupt or illegal acts. Any allegation or suspicion of corruption or illegality is taken seriously, and every 
employee is to uphold its promulgated business ethics when carrying out their tasks and responsibilities. 
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.1     Economic

3.1.2 	Ethics and Integrity (Cont’d)

	 Whistleblowing Policies and Procedures (cont’d)
	
	 The Code of Conduct for Directors and Whistleblowing Policy are made available on our corporate website 

(http://www.kimteckcheong.com).

	 In FYE2024, there was no bribery and corruption case reported and our Group aims to maintain this record by 
promoting a positive culture of compliance. None of our employees were disciplined or dismissed due to non-
compliance with the Anti-Corruption policy. KTC remains committed towards preserving this record and will 
continue to uphold high levels of integrity and ethical standards.

3.1.3 	Market Presence

	 KTC is committed to ensure the achievement of economic sustainability growth for shareholders. Apart from 
organic growth within the Group, current business segments through the addition of new supplier / distributor 
/ principal. We are also constantly exploring potential ventures to ensure there is a diversification of revenue 
stream. In FYE2024, the Group expanded their revenue through new business venture in the form of KTC Niaga 
Sdn Bhd - Distribution of goods to West Malaysia and KTC Technologies Sdn Bhd - Distribution of prepaid reload 
sim card in Sabah and Labuan. 

3.2.1 	Energy and Water Management

	 Water
	
	 The Group acknowledges the critical global challenge of water scarcity, heightened by the persistent threats of 

climate change and drought. Although none of the Group operations are in water-stressed areas, we adopt a 
practical approach to responsible water management, aiming to improve water efficiency and promote water 
conservation.

Financial Year 2022 2023 2024

Total water usage (Megalitre) (“ML”) 11.674 15.330 19.438

Revenue (RM’000) 705,838 729,390 946,340

Water (ML) per Revenue (RM’000) 0.0000165 0.0000210 0.0000205

	 Overall water usage has increased to 19.438ML as compared to 15.330ML, which is approximately a 27% increase 
from the previous year. Much like last year, this increase can largely be attributed to undetected underground 
water leakages from November of 2023 to February of 2024. Due to the nature of the leakage, it slipped past 
our detection for an extended period of time before we were able to address and rectify the issue. In addition 
to our current measures to manage and reduce our water usage, where possible, we will also explore options 
to prevent the recurrence of undetected water leakages at our facilities.

3.2     Environment
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.2     Environmental

3.2.2 	Energy and Water Management (Cont’d)
	
	 Electricity
	

Financial Year 2022 2023 2024

Total electricity usage (Megawatt) 1,232 1,535 1,657

Revenue (RM’000) 705,838 729,390 946,340

Eletricity (Megawatt) per Revenue (RM’000) 0.001745 0.002104 0.001751

	 Overall electricity usage for the year has also increased. This was due to the expansion of business through 
the opening of 2 new offices and warehouses during the year at a total of 4 locations. 

		 As an effort to reduce energy consumption to combat climate change, we have implemented several energy-
saving initiatives across our operations. Firstly, we have transitioned to energy-efficient lighting such as LEDs 
to reduce overall energy usage. Additionally, we emphasize simple yet impactful practices like switching off 
electronics, lights, and air conditioners when not in use and maintaining air conditioner temperatures at 24 
degrees Celsius to optimise efficiency. Recognising the importance of upkeep, we conduct periodic maintenance 
on our cold rooms and equipment, ensuring that they operate at peak efficiency. This not only minimises energy 
consumption but also extends the lifespan of our assets, contributing to a more sustainable operation.

	 Natural Gas

	 KTC Group’s Management has progressively replace the use of LPG with natural gas since November 2021, which 
is a higher quality energy source and is also more efficient and economical for use. Liquefied Petroleum Gas 
(“LPG”) and Natural Gas is being regularly used in the production process of our bakery division. Approximately 
85,816kgs of LPG were purchased in the FYE2022 for production usage by Creamos (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd. 

	 The purchase of LPG has been ceased in FYE2023 which is fully replaced by Natural Gas. The replacement of 
LPG to Natural Gas is part of the Group’s efforts to minimise the negative impact on the environment and to 
raise awareness on the importance of energy conservation.

Financial Year 2022 2023 2024

Total LPG usage (KGS) 85,816 – –

Natural Gas (SM3) 62,695 149,096 171,107

3.2.2 	Emissions Management

	 We acknowledges that Green House Gas emissions contribute to climate change impacts. The Group recognises 
that as a corporate citizen, the Group is responsible for reducing its carbon footprint while also embracing 
opportunities that unfold while making the transition to a low-carbon economy.

	 As our main distribution businesses rely heavily on logistics and transportation, carbon emissions are an 
inevitable side-effect of our daily operating activities. Although we have not yet reached a point where we are 
able to acquire the equipment and technology that would reduce a significant portion of our emissions, we are 
committed to reduce our carbon footprint wherever possible.

	 Out of the 97 total forklifts and reach trucks that are currently in our fleet, we have a total of 80 units that are 
battery-powered. These battery-powered forklifts and reach trucks can be charged through any standard wall 
socket and eliminate the need for conventional usage of diesel fuel. We endeavour to achieve 100% of our fleet 
to be battery-powered in the near future, thereby eliminating the need for diesel fuel in this area of our operations. 
Aside from the reduced carbon emissions from the use of these battery-powered vehicles, the noise level and 
air quality in and around our warehouses have been amicable for our employees.
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.2     Environmental

3.2.2 	Emissions Management (Cont’d)

	 The Hummingbird system assists us in route planning, allowing us to plan more efficient routes for our delivery 
drivers, thus also increasing the efficiency and timeliness of our deliveries. We also implement regular vehicle 
upkeep schedules to reduce the emission and fuel consumption.

	 The measurement of the Group’s carbon emissions currently focuses on Scope 2 (Indirect) emissions. The 
emission of is calculated based on the emission factors as per the table below:

Scope Details Emission Factor

Scope 2 CO2e Purchased electricity o	 0.39 kgCO2e/kWh
	 Source: EPA eGRID2021, February 

2023 (Table 1. Subregion Output 
Emission Rates)

	 The total Scope 2 emissions of Carbon (“CO2e”) for the past 3 financial year are summarised in the table below:
	

Financial Year 2022 2023 2024

Scope 2 CO2e (Metric tonnes) 476,329 593,382 640,593

	 The increase in the scope 2 emission is due to the increase in the overall electricity usage, as the Group expended 
its number of business location from 11 to 13. 

	 We recognised the increasing value of the remaining info on Scope 1 (direct) and 3 (limited to business travel 
and employee commute) carbon emissions information, and have implemented measures to capture this data. 
Effective 1 July 2024, KTC will begin collecting data regarding the Scope 1 and 3 carbon emissions arising from 
the Group.

3.2.3 	Waste Management
	
	 As of FYE2024, we have yet to begin data collection for waste generated from our businesses due to the low 

amount of waste being generated. From our distribution activities, the waste generated is generally from 
packing materials of goods received from suppliers such as plastic wrap and cardboard cartons/boxes. We are 
able to reuse most of these packaging materials, for example to deliver goods in the same packaging in which 
they arrived, the amount of waste generated on our end is minimal. In terms of our bakery business, defective 
batches and near expiry bread are reworked and thereafter sold or donated to breeders to be used as feed for 
farm animals.

	 As part of our sustainability efforts as a responsible corporation, we will begin collecting data on all our waste 
generated effective 1 July 2024. 
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.3.1 	Occupational Safety and Health
	
	 Occupational safety and health is and always will be one of our top priorities here at KTC. The importance of 

the wellbeing of our employees in the workplace cannot be understated as we continuously strive to provide a 
safe space for our workforce to carry out their duties. 

	 We have identified our logistics personnel to be facing some of the highest risk of incidents on the job due to 
their long hours of driving along their assigned delivery routes across East Malaysia. To alleviate the stress 
placed upon them, we assign each driver an assistant to not only assist with the driver’s tasks but also to keep 
an extra pair of vigilant eyes on the roads. Aside from our drivers, we also have safety measures in place in the 
warehouse.

	 Unfortunately, despite our best efforts, we have recorded 2 incidents this year that resulted in a total of 228 
lost time incident hours. These incidents both occurred in the bakery division due to human error. The incidents 
resulted in minor injury and both cases, and the affected employees were able to return to work after a few days 
of recovery.

Financial Year 2022 2023 2024

Number of Work-Related Injuries (number) 1 0 2

Total Lost Time Incident Hours (hours) 204 0 228

	 We have implemented relevant measures after these incidents to mitigate future occurrences to safeguard the 
wellbeing of our employees.

3.3.2 	Employee Growth and Career Development
	
	 We are proud to announce the launch of our new training centre division, KTC Academy that was officially 

launched in September 2023 and began its training activities commencing October 2023. Since then, training 
has been conducted for over 900 employees across the Group. 

	 We have invested a total of RM17,133.70 since the conception of KTC Academy to provide internal training 
to every business division. From corporate to sales to the bakery, the most experienced and knowledgeable 
members of our staff were enlisted to capitalise on their experience and insight to coach our other employees. 

	 For the first cycle of training that has recently concluded, 
our main objective was to educate our employees on the 
overall goals and focus of the Group as well as provide 
them with the needed skills and knowledge to enhance 
their performance in their respective departments. 
Moving forward, we plan to look into specific training 
based on the needs of our employees, as well as 
providing certification after the completion of training.  

	 Employee feedback to the training conducted by KTC 
Academy has been overwhelmingly positive, with over 
95% of training attendees agreeing that the quality 
and experience of the training sessions were to their 
satisfaction. 

3.3	 Social
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.3	 Social

3.2.2 		Emissions Management (Cont’d)
	
	 Employee Diversity and Equal Opportunity
	
	 The human capital of KTC remains as one of our largest assets. 

We are dedicated in improving the management of our human 
capital. To this end, we adopt the mindset of equal opportunity 
in our hiring. By hiring based only on the merits of a candidate, 
we eliminate the room for discrimination. As a byproduct of this 
practice, we also pride ourselves on the diversity in the workforce 
at KTC. We have the privilege to operate in Sabah and Sarawak – 
the states with some of the most diverse ethnic representations 
in the country, and we are proud that our workforce reflects this 
diversity in a way.

	 The total number of employees in our workforce has increased 
from 699 to 991 during the financial year ended 30 June 2024.

	 As of 30 June 2024, approximately 68% of KTC’s workforce are 
male whilst 32% are female. There has also been a slight increase 
in the proportion of males to females in our workforce as compared 
to the year ended 30 June 2023 – 68:32 from 65:35 respectively.

	We recognise the value that ethnic 
diversity provides to our organisation. 
We are proud to be a workplace that 
celebrates individuals from various cultural 
backgrounds.  
	
	Our diverse workforce is a microcosm 
of the communities we serve, allowing 
us to better understand and cater to 
the needs of our customers. We believe 
that a workplace where people from 
different ethnicities fosters creativity, 
innovation, and a deeper connection with 
our stakeholders. By creating an inclusive 
environment that respects and appreciates 
diverse perspectives, we aim to build a 
stronger and resilient organisation. 

	 Employee Welfare
	
	 Our employees are our greatest assets and one of the main driving forces behind the success of the Group. We 

believe that an organisation that does not take care of its employees is inherently unsustainable. Therefore, we 
are determined to ensure that our employees are well taken care. 

	 The remuneration of our employees is in accordance with the minimum wage labour law and a standard wage 
is applied at entry level regardless of the employees’ background. Our employees are awarded based on their 
merit and talent without any discrimination on gender, ethnicity, or nationality. 

	 All employees are covered under the Group Personal Accident Insurance Policy in order to provide adequate 
coverage for accidental death and disablement as well as to defray costs of hospitalisation and critical illness 
treatments if it were to occur.

Total Employees by Gender 
FYE 2024
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% of Employees by Ethnicity

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

BAJAU

CHIN
ESE

DUSUN
IBAN

KADAZAN

MALAY

OTHERS

12.41%

28.56%

8.88% 8.68%
4.24%
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3.	 SUSTAINABILITY INITIATIVES (CONT’D)

3.3	 Social

3.2.2 		Emissions Management (Cont’d)

	 Employee Welfare (cont’d)

	 To further strengthen the bonds between our employees, festive celebrations are held and our employees 
are encouraged to participate. These events provide opportunities for employees to interact socially, build 
relationships, and strengthen our culture. By celebrating diverse cultural traditions, we endeavour to demonstrate 
respect for employees’ backgrounds and promote inclusivity. Furthermore, such celebrations boost employee 
morale, alleviate stress, and enhance overall job satisfaction, ultimately contributing to a positive and productive 
work environment.

3.3.3 	Local Communities

	 Thanks to our long history of operating in East Malaysia, we at KTC are exceedingly proud to be a corporate 
member of the local community, and we are determined to continue to support and strengthen it. 

	 We frequently cooperate with the Community Development Leader Units (UPPM) to provide donations to 
disaster victims and the less fortunate. In the past years, we have consistently worked with UPPM to provide 
various sustenance such as drinking water, buns, and breads to victims of floods, fires, and the less fortunate 
in society. 

	 Some of the Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) activities that we have conducted during the year include 
donation of breads and buns to the local society and community and Hari Raya shopping with orphans and 
children of single parents.

Financial Year 2022 2023 2024

Contribution (RM) 838,132 893,764 1,215,721

Number of beneficiary 147 135 170

 

Chinese New Year Celebrationchristmas Celebration
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Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Bursa (Anti-corruption)

Bursa C1(a) Percentage of employees who
have received training on anti-corruption by
employee category

Management Percentage 0.00

Executive Percentage 0.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(b) Percentage of operations
assessed for corruption-related risks

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(c) Confirmed incidents of
corruption and action taken

Number 0

Bursa (Community/Society)

Bursa C2(a) Total amount invested in the
community where the target beneficiaries
are external to the listed issuer

MYR 1,215,721.00

Bursa C2(b) Total number of beneficiaries of
the investment in communities

Number 170

Bursa (Diversity)

Bursa C3(a) Percentage of employees by
gender and age group, for each employee
category

Age Group by Employee Category

Management Under 30 Percentage 11.00

Management Between 30-50 Percentage 74.00

Management Above 50 Percentage 15.00

Executive Under 30 Percentage 41.00

Executive Between 30-50 Percentage 53.00

Executive Above 50 Percentage 6.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Under 30 Percentage 50.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Between
30-50

Percentage 47.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Above 50 Percentage 3.00

Gender Group by Employee Category

Management Male Percentage 46.00

Management Female Percentage 54.00

Executive Male Percentage 68.00

Executive Female Percentage 32.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Male Percentage 72.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Female Percentage 28.00

Bursa C3(b) Percentage of directors by
gender and age group

Male Percentage 70.00

Female Percentage 30.00

Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Between 30-50 Percentage 10.00

Above 50 Percentage 90.00

Bursa (Energy management)

Bursa C4(a) Total energy consumption Megawatt 1,657.00

Bursa (Health and safety)

Bursa C5(a) Number of work-related
fatalities

Number 2

Bursa C5(b) Lost time incident rate ("LTIR") Rate 0.00

Bursa C5(c) Number of employees trained
on health and safety standards

Number 0

Bursa (Labour practices and standards)

Bursa C6(a) Total hours of training by
employee category

Management Hours 546

Executive Hours 1,469

Non-executive/Technical Staff Hours 3,627

Bursa C6(b) Percentage of employees that
are contractors or temporary staff

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C6(c) Total number of employee
turnover by employee category

Management Number 37

Executive Number 144

Non-executive/Technical Staff Number 414

Bursa C6(d) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning human rights
violations

Number 0

Bursa (Supply chain management)

Internal assurance External assurance No assurance (*)Restated

PERFORMANCE DATA TABLE
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PERFORMANCE DATA TABLE (CONT’D)

Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Bursa (Anti-corruption)

Bursa C1(a) Percentage of employees who
have received training on anti-corruption by
employee category

Management Percentage 0.00

Executive Percentage 0.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(b) Percentage of operations
assessed for corruption-related risks

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(c) Confirmed incidents of
corruption and action taken

Number 0

Bursa (Community/Society)

Bursa C2(a) Total amount invested in the
community where the target beneficiaries
are external to the listed issuer

MYR 1,215,721.00

Bursa C2(b) Total number of beneficiaries of
the investment in communities

Number 170

Bursa (Diversity)

Bursa C3(a) Percentage of employees by
gender and age group, for each employee
category

Age Group by Employee Category

Management Under 30 Percentage 11.00

Management Between 30-50 Percentage 74.00

Management Above 50 Percentage 15.00

Executive Under 30 Percentage 41.00

Executive Between 30-50 Percentage 53.00

Executive Above 50 Percentage 6.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Under 30 Percentage 50.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Between
30-50

Percentage 47.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Above 50 Percentage 3.00

Gender Group by Employee Category

Management Male Percentage 46.00

Management Female Percentage 54.00

Executive Male Percentage 68.00

Executive Female Percentage 32.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Male Percentage 72.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Female Percentage 28.00

Bursa C3(b) Percentage of directors by
gender and age group

Male Percentage 70.00

Female Percentage 30.00

Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Between 30-50 Percentage 10.00

Above 50 Percentage 90.00

Bursa (Energy management)

Bursa C4(a) Total energy consumption Megawatt 1,657.00

Bursa (Health and safety)

Bursa C5(a) Number of work-related
fatalities

Number 2

Bursa C5(b) Lost time incident rate ("LTIR") Rate 0.00

Bursa C5(c) Number of employees trained
on health and safety standards

Number 0

Bursa (Labour practices and standards)

Bursa C6(a) Total hours of training by
employee category

Management Hours 546

Executive Hours 1,469

Non-executive/Technical Staff Hours 3,627

Bursa C6(b) Percentage of employees that
are contractors or temporary staff

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C6(c) Total number of employee
turnover by employee category

Management Number 37

Executive Number 144

Non-executive/Technical Staff Number 414

Bursa C6(d) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning human rights
violations

Number 0

Bursa (Supply chain management)

Internal assurance External assurance No assurance (*)Restated

Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Bursa (Anti-corruption)

Bursa C1(a) Percentage of employees who
have received training on anti-corruption by
employee category

Management Percentage 0.00

Executive Percentage 0.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(b) Percentage of operations
assessed for corruption-related risks

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C1(c) Confirmed incidents of
corruption and action taken

Number 0

Bursa (Community/Society)

Bursa C2(a) Total amount invested in the
community where the target beneficiaries
are external to the listed issuer

MYR 1,215,721.00

Bursa C2(b) Total number of beneficiaries of
the investment in communities

Number 170

Bursa (Diversity)

Bursa C3(a) Percentage of employees by
gender and age group, for each employee
category

Age Group by Employee Category

Management Under 30 Percentage 11.00

Management Between 30-50 Percentage 74.00

Management Above 50 Percentage 15.00

Executive Under 30 Percentage 41.00

Executive Between 30-50 Percentage 53.00

Executive Above 50 Percentage 6.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Under 30 Percentage 50.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Between
30-50

Percentage 47.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Above 50 Percentage 3.00

Gender Group by Employee Category

Management Male Percentage 46.00

Management Female Percentage 54.00

Executive Male Percentage 68.00

Executive Female Percentage 32.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Male Percentage 72.00

Non-executive/Technical Staff Female Percentage 28.00

Bursa C3(b) Percentage of directors by
gender and age group

Male Percentage 70.00

Female Percentage 30.00

Under 30 Percentage 0.00

Between 30-50 Percentage 10.00

Above 50 Percentage 90.00

Bursa (Energy management)

Bursa C4(a) Total energy consumption Megawatt 1,657.00

Bursa (Health and safety)

Bursa C5(a) Number of work-related
fatalities

Number 2

Bursa C5(b) Lost time incident rate ("LTIR") Rate 0.00

Bursa C5(c) Number of employees trained
on health and safety standards

Number 0

Bursa (Labour practices and standards)

Bursa C6(a) Total hours of training by
employee category

Management Hours 546

Executive Hours 1,469

Non-executive/Technical Staff Hours 3,627

Bursa C6(b) Percentage of employees that
are contractors or temporary staff

Percentage 0.00

Bursa C6(c) Total number of employee
turnover by employee category

Management Number 37

Executive Number 144

Non-executive/Technical Staff Number 414

Bursa C6(d) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning human rights
violations

Number 0

Bursa (Supply chain management)

Internal assurance External assurance No assurance (*)Restated

Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Bursa C7(a) Proportion of spending on local
suppliers

Percentage 96.00

Bursa (Data privacy and security)

Bursa C8(a) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of
customer privacy and losses of customer
data

Number 0

Bursa (Water)

Bursa C9(a) Total volume of water used Megalitres 19.438000

Bursa (Waste management)

Bursa C10(a) Total waste generated Metric tonnes -

Bursa C10(a)(i) Total waste diverted from
disposal

Metric tonnes -

Bursa C10(a)(ii) Total waste directed to
disposal

Metric tonnes -

Bursa (Emissions management)

Bursa C11(a) Scope 1 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e

Metric tonnes -

Bursa C11(b) Scope 2 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e

Metric tonnes 640,593.00

Bursa C11(c) Scope 3 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e (at least for the categories of
business travel and employee commuting)

Metric tonnes -

Internal assurance External assurance No assurance (*)Restated

Indicator Measurement Unit 2024

Bursa C7(a) Proportion of spending on local
suppliers

Percentage 96.00

Bursa (Data privacy and security)

Bursa C8(a) Number of substantiated
complaints concerning breaches of
customer privacy and losses of customer
data

Number 0

Bursa (Water)

Bursa C9(a) Total volume of water used Megalitres 19.438000

Bursa (Waste management)

Bursa C10(a) Total waste generated Metric tonnes -

Bursa C10(a)(i) Total waste diverted from
disposal

Metric tonnes -

Bursa C10(a)(ii) Total waste directed to
disposal

Metric tonnes -

Bursa (Emissions management)

Bursa C11(a) Scope 1 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e

Metric tonnes -

Bursa C11(b) Scope 2 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e

Metric tonnes 640,593.00

Bursa C11(c) Scope 3 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e (at least for the categories of
business travel and employee commuting)

Metric tonnes -

Internal assurance External assurance No assurance (*)Restated

Sustainabi l i ty  Statement
(Cont’d)
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Corporate Governance
Overview Statement

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad (“KTC” or “the Company”) is committed to uphold 
the high standards of corporate governance throughout KTC and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) with the ultimate objective 
of realising long-term shareholder value while taking into account the interest of other stakeholders. This Corporate 
Governance Overview Statement sets out the extent to which the Company has applied the practices encapsulated in 
the Principles of the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance (“MCCG”) except where stated otherwise. In view of the 
enhancements in the corporate governance regulations, the Board has reviewed and updated the existing policies and 
procedures to ensure that they are kept contemporaneous and be relevant to the Company’s needs. The Board will further 
look into the enhancement or developments of corporate governance policies and procedures, as the case may be.

Details of the Group’s application of each practices set out in the MCCG are disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, 
which is available on the Group’s website at www.kimteckcheong.com.

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS

I.	 Board Responsibilities

Board Charter and Board Committees

	 The Board is responsible and is accountable to shareholders for managing the business of the Group. The Board 
retains full and effective controls of the Company and is committed to take full responsibility for the overall corporate 
governance of the Group, including its strategic business direction and overall wellbeing.

	 The Board has retained for itself decisions in respect of matters significant to the Group’s business operations which 
include the approval of key corporate plans, major business transactions involving either the acquisitions or disposal 
of business, interests and/or assets, consideration of significant financial matters and announcements of financial 
results, appointments to the Board and control structure within the Group.

	 In performing its duties, the Board is guided by the Board Charter that sets out amongst others its roles, composition, 
responsibilities, powers, board committees and board meeting procedures. The key elements of governance 
principles embedded in the Board Charter regulate the Board’s conducts and guide the business strategic initiative of 
the Group. The Board Charter is available on the Company’s website at www.kimteckcheong.com.

	 The Board has established three (3) Board Committees, namely Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nomination 
Committee and Remuneration Committee that are delegated with specific responsibilities and authorities to assist 
the Board in executing its duties and to provide the Board with recommendations and advice. The delegation of 
authority to the Committees enables the Board to achieve operational efficiency, by empowering each Committee to 
review, report and make recommendations to the Board on matters relevant to their roles and responsibilities. Each 
Committee is governed by its own Terms of Reference which sets out its functions and duties, composition, rights 
and meeting procedures. These Terms of Reference are reviewed periodically in accordance with the needs of the 
Company and taking into account the changes in the business, governance and legal environment that may have an 
impact on the discharge of the Committees’ duties and responsibilities.

	 The Chairman of the various committees will report to the Board the outcome of the Committee meetings which will 
be recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting. The ultimate responsibility for decision making, however, lies with 
the Board.



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD 41ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

I.	 Board Responsibilities (Cont’d)

Company Secretary

	 The Board is assisted by a qualified and competent Company Secretary who is a Fellow member of the Malaysian 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. The Company Secretary provides support to the Board in 
carrying out its fiduciary duties and stewardship role in shaping the standard of corporate governance of the Group. In 
this respect, she plays an advisory role to the Board, particularly with regards to the Company’s Constitution, Board’s 
policies and procedures as well as its compliance with regulatory requirements, codes, guidelines, legislations and 
the principles of best corporate governance practices.

	 The Company Secretary also attends all Board, Board Committee and general meetings, and ensure that deliberations 
at the meetings are accurately minuted and kept in the minutes books and subsequently communicated to the 
relevant party for necessary actions. Such minutes of meetings are confirmed by the respective Board Committees 
and signed by the Chairman of the meeting.

	 All Directors have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary for the purposes of the 
Board’s affairs and the business of the Group. 

Information and support for Directors 

	 In order to manage the Group’s business effectively, the Board meets on a quarterly basis to review the Group’s 
financial and operational results, major investments, report from various Board Committees, related party 
transactions, strategic decisions and the overall direction of the Group. Additional meetings may be convened when 
urgent and important decision needs to be taken between the scheduled meetings. All the Directors had committed 
their time to the board meetings held during the financial year. Prior to the meetings, notice of agenda together with 
previous minutes and other relevant information were circulated to all directors on a timely basis in order to enable 
the directors to be well informed and briefed before the meetings. 

	 Besides board meetings, the Board also exercises control on matters that require its approval through the circulation 
of resolutions. 

	 All the Directors have full and free access to all relevant Company’s information, access to management and may 
obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense that are deemed necessary to carry out their 
duties, subject to prior consultation with the Chairman. 

	 The External Auditors also briefed the Board members on the latest Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards that 
would affect the Group’s financial statements during the year. 

Code of Conduct and Ethics 

	 Good governance at all levels is essential for sustainable development. The Board is committed to embrace the 
highest standards of corporate governance practices and ethical standards throughout the Group. 

	 In this respect, the Group has established a Code of Ethics and Code of Conduct to provide direction and guidance to 
all Directors, Senior Management, employees and external parties in the discharge of their duties and responsibilities 
that will be in the best interest of the Group. The Code of Ethics and Conduct had been uploaded on the Company’s 
website at www.kimteckcheong.com. 
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Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)

PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

I.	 Board Responsibilities (Cont’d)

Whistle-blowing Policy 

	 The Board is committed to achieve and maintain high standards of corporate governance practices across the Group. 
A Whistle-blowing policy has been implemented to provide a channel to enable Directors, Employees, Shareholders, 
Vendors or any parties with a business relationship with the Group with an avenue to report suspected wrongdoings 
that may adversely impact the Group. The Company treats all reports in a confidential manner and at the same time 
provides protection to anyone who reports such concerns in good faith. 

Further details pertaining to the Whistle-blowing Policy can be found at the Company’s website.

Ii. 	 Board Composition

	 The Board recognises the importance of having a diverse Board in terms of age, ethnicity and gender as this provides 
the necessary range of perspectives, experience and expertise in bringing value to the Company and achieve effective 
stewardship.

	 The present Board, comprises eight (8) Directors i.e. one (1) Independent Non-Executive Chairman, Three (3) 
Independent Non-Executive Directors, one (1) Non-Independent Managing Director, two (2) Non-Independent 
Executive Directors and One (1) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director.

	 The Executive Directors are responsible for the making of the day-to-day business and operational decisions and 
implementation of Board policies. There is a clear division of duties and responsibilities amongst them in order to 
maintain a balance of control, power and authority within the Management.

	 The Independent Non-Executive Directors are responsible in exercising independent judgement and to act in the best 
interests of the Group in ensuring that decisions made by the Board are deliberated fully and objectively with regard 
to the long-term interest of all stakeholders. They have declared themselves to be independent from management 
and free of any relationship which could interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement and objective 
participation and decision making process of the Board.

	 The Board is confident that its current size and composition reflects an appropriate balance of Executive and Non-
Executive Directors which is adequate for the scope and nature of the Group’s business and operations.

	 In compliance with the recommendations of Malaysian Code On Corporate Governance, all of the Independent 
Directors of the Company has tenure not exceeding a cumulative term of nine (9) years.

Diversity on Board and Senior Management

	 The Board and the Nomination Committee take into account the current diversity in the skills, experience, age, race/
ethnicity (cultural background) and nationality of the existing Board in seeking potential candidate(s). The Committee 
has the responsibility to ensure that the Board comprises suitably qualified members that demonstrate appropriate 
qualities and experience that contribute to the effective oversight and stewardship.

	 The Board is of the view that the existing composition of the Board enables effective oversight, delegation of 
responsibilities and productive discussions amongst members of the Board.
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Ii. 	 Board Composition (Cont’d)

Gender Diversity

	 The Board has no specific policy on gender, age and ethnicity for candidates to be appointed to the Board. The 
evaluation of the suitability of candidates is based on the candidates’ competency, character, time commitment, 
integrity and experience in meeting the needs of the Company.

	 The Nomination Committee, will however continue to take steps to ensure that gender, age and ethnicity of the 
candidates will be taken into consideration as part of its recruitment exercise.

Nomination Committee

	 The Board has established a Nomination Committee to provide advice and assistance to the Board in matters relating 
to appointment of new Directors, board composition, training program and performance evaluation on effectiveness 
of the Board, Board Committees and individual directors. Full details of the Nomination Committee’s duties and 
responsibilities are stated in its Term of Reference which is available on the Company’s website.

	 The Nomination Committee comprises exclusively of Independent Non-Executive Directors and chaired by the 
Independent Director. The Committee meets as and when required, at least once a year. During the financial year, one 
(1) meeting was carried out, with attendance as follows: 

Name of Directors Designation No. of Meetings Attended

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor Chairman 1/1

Ms. Phang Sze Fui Member 1/1

Madam Wong Wen Miin Member 1/1

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee had carried out the following activities:

(a)	 Assessed the performance of the Board, Board Committees and individual Director, including the term of office 
and performance of the Audit and Risk Management Committee and each of its members;

(b)	 Assessed the independence of all three (3) Independent Directors;

(c)	 Reviewed the performance of retiring Directors and recommended them to the Board for re-election at the 
forthcoming AGM;

(d)	 Reviewed the size of the Board against the size of the Group and the complexity of the business to assess the 
impact of the number upon its effectiveness; and

(e)	 Ensure all Directors receive appropriate continuous training programmes.

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Ii. 	 Board Composition (Cont’d)

Evaluation of Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors 

	 The Nomination Committee annually performs a board self-evaluation to evaluate the performance of the Board, 
Board Committees and individual Directors, in order to verify that the Board is operating effectively and efficiently 
as a whole. Each Director completed a detailed questionnaire in the Directors’ Performance Evaluation which 
covered matters relevant to the Board performance, among other things, contribution to interaction, quality of input, 
understanding of role and personal developments. An evaluation of each Board Committee was done by assessing 
the structure, roles and responsibilities, performance of the respective Chairman, as well as Committee’s performance 
against its Term of Reference. The assessment was internally facilitated, whereby results of the assessments had 
been compiled, documented and reported to the Board accordingly, as part of the Company’s ongoing corporate 
governance practices. 

	 Based on the assessment carried out during the financial year, the Nomination Committee had concluded the 
following:

(a)	 The Board was found to be competent and had a dynamic and balanced mix of skills and experience wherein 
the Directors were able to contribute effectively to the Board’s decision-making process;

 
(b)	 The current structure, size and composition of the Board, which comprises people who possess a wide range 

of expertise and experience in various fields with diverse backgrounds and specialisations, would enable the 
Board to lead and manage the Company effectively;

 
(c)	 The Directors had discharged their responsibilities in a commendable manner, acted competently, contributed 

effectively to the Board and demonstrated full commitment to their duties as Directors;
 
(d)	 The Board and Board Committees had contributed positively to the Company and its subsidiaries and were 

operating in an effective manner;

(e)	 The Board Chairman had performed in an excellent manner and contributed to the Board; and

(f)	 The performances of the Board Committees were found to be effective.

	 The Board recognises the importance of continuous training to remain abreast of the latest developments in related 
industry and changes to the regulatory environment. The assessment on individual directors also provided the Board 
with valuable insights into training and development needs of each Director, to ensure that each Board member’s 
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. 

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Ii. 	 Board Composition (Cont’d)

Evaluation of Board, Board Committees and Individual Directors (Cont’d)

	 During the financial year, all the Directors had participated in various training programs. Particulars of the several 
seminar/conference/workshop attended are as follows: 

Name of Directors Date Seminar / Conference / Workshop

Tun Richard Malanjum Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ 
Lau Kok Sing

Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ 
Lim Su Chin

Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ 
Dexter Dick Lau

Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Mr. Lim Hui Kiong Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Ms. Phang Sze Fui July 2023 •	 Bursa: Conflict of Interest and Governance of Conflict 
of Interest

Sep 2023 •	 ACCA Technical Symposium 2023

Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Feb 2024 •	 ESG Briefing

Apr 2024 •	 E-Invoicing Preliminary Briefing

Madam Wong Wen Miin Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim 
Bin Mohd Nor

Jan 2024 •	 Tax 2024 Budget Briefing

Iii.	 Remuneration

	 Remuneration Policy

	 The Board has recognized the need to establish a fair and transparent Remuneration Policy with the objective to 
guide the Group in attracting, retaining and motivating highly qualified individuals to serve on the Board and key 
senior management. On a yearly basis, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board 
the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, while the remuneration for the Non-Executive Directors was 
determined by the Board as a whole. Fees and benefits payable to the Directors are subject to approval by the 
shareholders at the Company’s AGM. The affected Directors had abstained from participation in deliberations and 
decisions regarding their individual remuneration. 

	 In making its recommendation, the Remuneration Committee considered the principles set out in the Remuneration 
Policy. The remuneration was structured to align rewards to corporate and individual performances besides 
adequately compensate the Directors for risks and complexities of the duties and responsibilities they assumed. The 
Remuneration Committee also obtained data for similar roles of other public listed companies in the same industry 
for comparison. 

	 All Executive Directors and key Senior Management are subject to an annual performance rating which serves as a 
basis to determine their variable compensation payments. The Remuneration Policy also covers bonus framework 
for the Executive Directors and key Senior Management, which link their appraisal process to specific reward and 
incentive outcomes. The appraisal process will assess the individual performance against the Key Performance 
Indicator targets and competency capability in meeting the Group’s core values and Leadership and Management 
Expectations.

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Iii.	 Remuneration (Cont’d)

Remuneration Committee 

	 The Remuneration Committee was established to assist the Board in developing remuneration policies and 
procedures that enable the Group to attract, motivate and retain qualified Directors and key Senior Management 
personnel. Full details of the functions and duties of the Remuneration Committee are stated in its Term of Reference 
which is available on the Company’s website. 

	 Majority of the Remuneration Committee Members are Independent Non-Executive Directors. During the financial 
year, one (1) meeting was carried out with attendance as follows: 

Name of Directors Designation No. of Meetings Attended

Madam Wong Wen Miin Chairperson 1/1

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing Member 1/1

Ms. Phang Sze Fui Member 1/1

The responsibilities of Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(a)	 Reviewed and assessed the performance and the remuneration package of the Executive Directors and key 
Senior Management;

(b)	 Reviewed and assessed the Directors’ fees and benefits payable for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024;

(c)	 Reviewed and updated its Term of Reference;

(d)	 Reviewed the Board Remuneration Policy; and

(e)	 Provide clarification to shareholders during general meetings on matters pertaining to remuneration of directors 
and senior management. 

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE A - BOARD LEADERSHIP AND EFFECTIVENESS (Cont’d)

Iii.	 Remuneration (Cont’d)

Remuneration of Directors 

	 Pursuant to the respective service contracts with the Company and its subsidiaries, the details of individual Directors’ 
remuneration are as follows:-

Group and Company Level

Name of Directors

Fees/Salaries 
and Other 

Emoluments
(RM’000)

Bonus 
(RM’000)

EPF, Socso
 and EIS

(RM’000)

Benefits 
in Kind 

(RM’000)
Total

(RM’000)

Non-Executive Directors

Tun Richard Malanjum 55 – * – 55

Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin 55 – * – 55

Ms. Phang Sze Fui 65 – * – 65

Madam Wong Wen Miin 55 – *  – 55

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor 55 – * – 55

Executive Directors

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing
@ Lau Kok Sing

1,977 – 1 – 1,978

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick 
@ Dexter Dick Lau

1,530 – 168 – 1,698

Mr. Lim Hui Kiong 273 – 8 – 281

*	 Amount less than RM500

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the Senior Managements are set out as follows:-

Range of Remuneration Number of Senior Management

RM200,001 to RM250,000 1

RM250,001 to RM300,000 –

RM300,001 to RM350,000 –

RM350,001 to RM400,000 –

	 (The details of senior management’s remuneration are not shown, as the Board considers the information of the said 
remuneration to be sensitive and proprietary in view of the competitive nature of the human resource market and 
to support the Company’s efforts in retaining executive talents. The Board is of the view that the transparency and 
accountability aspects of corporate governance as applicable to senior management’s remuneration are appropriately 
served by the disclosures in the RM50,000 bands. The total remuneration paid to each senior management reflects the 
time and effort devoted to fulfil his or her responsibilities on the Board and linked to the Group’s performance.) 

 

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE B - EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT 

I.	 Audit and Risk Management Committee

The Audit and Risk Management Committee consists of the following members:

Name of Directors Designation

Ms. Phang Sze Fui Chairperson

Madam Wong Wen Miin Member

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor Member

	

	 The Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is not the Chairman of the Board. In addition, the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee comprises wholly of Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Audit and 
Risk Management Committee Report is set out separately in this Annual Report. Full details of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee’s duties and responsibilities are stated in its Terms of Reference which is available on the 
Company’s website.

Oversight of External Auditors 

	 The external auditors of the Company fulfill an essential role in giving assurance to the Company’s shareholders on 
the reliability of the Group’s financial statements. 

	 The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviews the independence, performance and remuneration of the 
External Auditors before recommending them to the shareholders for re-appointment in the AGM on an annual basis. 
The External Auditors would provide written assurance to the Board in respect of its independence to act as the 
External Auditors of the Group. The Audit and Risk Management Committee would convene a private session with 
the External Auditors and Internal Auditors without the presence of the Executive Directors and Management. During 
the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024, the Audit and Risk Management Committee had conducted private sessions 
with the External Auditors without the presence of the Executive Directors and Management.  

Details of the audit and non-audit fees paid/payable for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024 are as follows:

Group
(RM)

Company
(RM)

Statutory audit fees paid/payable	 319,452 39,000

Non-audit fees paid/payable 101,879 14,000

	 The full details of the role of the Audit and Risk Management Committee in relation to the External Auditors is set out 
in the Audit and Risk Management Committee Report of this Annual Report.

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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PRINCIPLE B - EFFECTIVE AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

II.	 Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

	 The Board acknowledges that risk management and internal control system are an integral part of effective 
management practice. As risk is inherent in all business activities, hence it is not the Group’s objective to eliminate 
risk totally. There is an on-going process in place to identify, evaluate, monitor and manage key risks faced by the 
Group and the Board reviews the key risks highlighted to ensure the relevant action is taken to mitigate the risk of the 
Group to safeguard shareholders’ investment and Group’s assets.

	 The Board is assisted by the Risk Management Committee to ensure the risk and control framework is embedded 
into the culture, processes and structure of the Group.

	 Further details of the Group’s state of risk management and internal control systems are reported in the Statement 
of Risk Management and Internal Control of this Annual Report.

Internal Audit function

	 The Board has established an Internal Audit function and appointed RESOLVE IR SDN BHD as the Outsourced Internal 
Auditor. Functionally, the Internal Auditor reports to the Audit and Risk Management Committee directly and RESOLVE 
IR SDN BHD is responsible for conducting periodic reviews and appraisals of the effectiveness of the governance, 
risk management and internal control processes within the Group.

	 The scope of work covered by the internal audit function during the financial year, summary of activities carried out, 
including its observations and recommendations, are provided in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal 
Control and Audit and Risk Management Committee Report of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPLE  C  -  INTEGRITY  IN  CORPORATE  REPORTING  AND  MEANINGFUL  RELATIONSHIP  WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS

I.	 Engagement with Stakeholders

	 The Company refers to Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities as a fundamental basis for the ongoing 
disclosure and announcement to Bursa Securities. The Board is advised by Management, Company Secretaries, 
the External Auditors and Advisors on the contents and timing of disclosure of the financial results and various 
announcements in accordance with the listing requirements.

	 The Board is committed in providing accurate, useful and timely information about the Company, its business and its 
activities. Realising the importance of timely and thorough dissemination of material information to the shareholders, 
investors and the public at large, the Company maintains an open communication policy with its shareholders, 
investors and public at large and welcome feedback from them.

	 The Group’s information is disseminated through various disclosures and announcements made to Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad. This information is also published at the Company’s website at www.kimteckcheong.com.

Integrated Reporting

	 The nature and pace of change in businesses today have evolved over time and stakeholders are now placing greater 
emphasis on the future performance and non-financial information of a company. In tandem with the growing 
demand, the Company would consider adopting integrated reporting in the near future; as such integrated reporting 
is still new in the current market.

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD50 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

PRINCIPLE  C  -  INTEGRITY  IN  CORPORATE  REPORTING  AND  MEANINGFUL  RELATIONSHIP  WITH 
STAKEHOLDERS (cont’d)
 
II.	 Conduct of General Meetings

Notice of general meeting 

	 The Board recognises the rights of shareholders. In order to continue encouraging shareholders participation in 
the general meetings, the Board would ensure that the Notice of AGM is sent to shareholders at least twenty-eight 
(28) days ahead of the date of general meeting and to provide sufficient time and opportunities for shareholders to 
seek clarifications during general meetings on any matters pertaining to the issues in the Annual Report, corporate 
developments in the Group, the resolutions being proposed and the operational and financial performance of the 
Company. 

Attendance of directors at general meetings 

	 The Annual General Meeting is the key element of the Company’s dialogue with its shareholders. During the AGM, 
shareholders are encouraged to ask questions about the resolutions being proposed, about the Company’s operations 
in general or about the annual reports of the Company and of the Group. All the Directors, Senior Management 
and External Auditors are available in the Annual General Meeting to provide responses to questions from the 
shareholders. 

	 The Chairman plays a vital role in fostering constructive dialogue between the Board and the shareholders. All the 
members of the Board and the respective chairman of the Board’s Committees are present at the meetings to address 
queries raised by the shareholders which are relevant to their areas of responsibility. 

Voting 

	 Paragraph 8.29(A) of the Main Market Listing Requirements provides that any resolution set out in the notice of 
any general meeting, or in any notice of resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at 
any general meeting, shall be voted by poll. Furthermore, at least one (1) scrutineer will be appointed to validate the 
votes cast at the General Meeting who must not be an officer of the Company or its related corporation, and must be 
independent to the person undertaking the polling process. 

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 

The Board is satisfied that the Group has substantially complied with the majority of the practices of the Malaysian Code 
On Corporate Governance throughout the financial year. In pursuit of safeguarding the interest of the shareholders and 
other stakeholders, the Board is committed and will continue to strengthen its application of the best practices in corporate 
governance. 

This Corporate Governance Overview Statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated 
24 October 2024.

Corporate Governance Overv iew Statement
(Cont’d)
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the report on the Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”) of the Board for the 
Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024. The ARMC was established on 3 December 2014 by the Board to assist the Directors 
to carry out their responsibilities. The ARMC is guided by its Terms of Reference as approved by the Board. The ARMC a 
combined Audit Committee supports and assumes the oversight function in governance, risk management and internal 
control hence Risk Management Committee was established. In carrying out their duties, the ARMC updated the Board on 
the issues and concerns discussed during their meetings including those raised by the auditors and where appropriate, 
made the necessary recommendations to the Board and shall continue to do so from time to time. The AMRC had private 
meetings with the External Auditors and Internal Auditors respectively. The ARMC had deliberated at length the Audit 
Review Memorandum and Internal Audit Reports presented by the External Auditors and Internal Auditors respectively as 
part of the ongoing process to strengthen the internal control system and financial reporting framework. The Company 
Secretary acts as the secretary to the ARMC and circulates the minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings to all members of 
the Audit Committee. The Chairperson of the ARMC presents the Committee’s findings after their deliberation to the Board. 
The ARMC would also update the progress and status of recommendations of the internal audit findings to the Board on 
quarterly basis. 

MEMBERSHIP AND MEETINGS

ARMC members and details of their attendance at ARMC meetings held during the financial year are as follows:

Name of the Committee Members Designation No. of Meetings Attended

Ms. Phang Sze Fui Chairperson 6/6

Madam Wong Wen Miin Member 6/6

Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor Member 6/6

The Group Financial Controller (“GFC”) was invited to all ARMC meetings to facilitate direct communication in relation to 
the Group financial results and to provide information regarding the Group’s Risk Management activities. The Internal Audit, 
relevant members of Management, and the External Auditors were also invited to attend the meetings of the Committee, 
where appropriate, to brief the ARMC on the relevant audit findings. 

The ARMC held one (1) private meeting with the External Auditors in Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024 without the 
presence of the Management. At these meetings, the ARMC enquired about Management’s co-operation with the external 
auditors, their sharing of information and the competencies and adequacy of resources in the financial reporting functions. 

The ARMC Chairperson also permitted the External Auditors to contact ARMC at any time that they became aware of 
incidents or matters in the course of their audits or reviews that needed the attention ARMC or the Board. No such contacts 
were made during Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024. 

Minutes of each ARMC meeting were recorded and tabled for confirmation at the following ARMC meeting and subsequently 
presented to the Board for notation.

Report of The Audit and 
Risk Management Committee
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES 

The ARMC reports regularly to the Board on its activities, deliberations and recommendations in discharging its duties and 
responsibilities, which the Committee has reviewed to ensure it is in line with the Main Market Listing Requirements of 
Bursa Securities. 

The main activities undertaken by the ARMC during the financial year are as below: 

Risk Management and Internal Control 

•	 Reviewed the internal audit plan for adequacy of scope and coverage and risk areas using the risk-based approach.
•	 Reviewed the risk assessment results and the mitigation actions reported by Internal Auditor and regularly review 

the update on the action plans to ensure significant internal controls are promptly implemented to mitigate the risks 
identified.

•	 Reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of governance, risk management, operational and compliance processes.
•	 Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of corrective actions taken by Management on all significant matters 

raised.
•	 Continuously monitored whistleblowing program and procedures as part of the risk management structure and good 

corporate governance practice.

External Audit

•	 Reviewed and discussed with the external auditors’ audit planning memorandum covering audit scope, audit plan, 
key audit areas and proposed fees for the statutory audit and other non-audit services based on the external auditors’ 
presentation of the audit strategy and plan to ensure that their scope of work adequately covered the activities of the 
Group.

•	 Reviewed and approved the external auditor’s audit plan and the scope for the annual audit.
•	 Reviewed and discussed with the external auditor on the audit results, audit reports and financial statements of the 

Group. 
•	 Met with the external auditors without the presence of Executive Directors and Management.

Financial Results

•	 Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements of the Company and Group, including announcements, 	a n d 
recommended them to the Board for approval.

• 	 Reviewed the quarterly unaudited financial results of the Company for Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024 together 
with the GFC, focusing particularly on significant changes to accounting policies and practices, significant or unusual 
events, compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements, and the going concern assumption prior 
to recommending the same to the Board of Directors for approval and release to Bursa Securities. 

Related Party Transactions 

Reviewed any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or its Group 
including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity (where applicable).

Others

•	 Review the quality of the internal audit function.
•	 Reviewed the Incident Reports by the GFC on a quarterly basis.

Repor t  of  the Audit  and Risk Management Committee
(Cont’d)
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Internal audit function constitutes part of KTC Group’s assurance mechanism which serves to review the Group’s system 
of internal control. The internal audit function is guided by a formal Term of Reference and reports independently to the 
ARMC. The role of the internal audit function is to undertake independent, objective, regular and systematic reviews of 
the systems of internal controls and governance practices of the Group so as to provide reasonable assurance that such 
systems continue to operate effectively in managing the Group’s risk.

The Group’s internal audit function has been outsourced to an independent professional services firm, namely Resolve IR 
Sdn Bhd (“RESOLVE”). RESOLVE has confirmed that they free from any relationship or conflict of interest position which 
would impair their independence and objectivity in the conduct of their roles and responsibilities. 

The outsourced internal audit function has carried out independent internal audits in accordance with the approved risk-
based internal audit plan and was guided by the International Professional Practices Framework (“IPPS”) issued by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors.

During the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024, the outsourced internal audit function has carried out internal audits on the 
following processes: 

•	 Sales and marketing of KTC Sarawak and fleet management of KTC Shipping;
•	 Supplier incentive management of the Group
•	 Follow-up on previous internal audit report of the Group.
 
Results of the abovementioned internal audits, including the relevant audit findings, improvement opportunities, as well 
as Management responses and appropriate recommendations with the areas mentioned above were documented in 
the internal audit report to the ARMC. Follow-up reviews were conducted to assess the implementation of action plans 
provided by Management in accordance with the timeline specified. The total cost incurred on the internal audit function 
of the Group for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024 was approximately RM48,000.

Repor t  of  the Audit  and Risk Management Committee
(Cont’d)
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INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Paragraph 15.26(b) of the Main Market Listing Requirements (Main LR) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
(“Bursa Securities”) and the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control: Guidelines for Directors of Listed Issuers, 
the Board is pleased to present the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control for the Financial Year Ended 30 
June 2024, which outlines the nature and scope of risk management and internal control of the Group during the financial 
year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD

The Board, in maintaining its commitment towards a sound risk management and effective internal control system, 
continuously reviews and evaluates the adequacy and integrity of the Group risk management and internal control 
systems. The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for maintaining the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s 
risk management and internal control system, which covers financial, operations and compliance with relevant regulations, 
policies and procedures with the objectives of safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets, and to discharge 
their stewardship responsibilities in identifying and reviewing risks and ensuring the implementation of appropriate internal 
control system to manage these risks.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board recognises that such system has inherent limitations as it is designed to manage 
and control, rather than eliminate the risks of failure towards achieving the Group’s business objectives. Therefore, such 
system of internal control can only provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against the occurrence of any material 
misstatement and loss.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board understands the principal risks of the business that the Group is involved in and accepts that business decisions 
require balancing of risk and return in order to facilitate the achievement of business objectives. Risk management 
framework remains an integral part of the Group’s arsenal of risk management tools, especially in the assessment, 
mitigation and monitoring of inherent and emerging risks to safeguard the interests of the Group. KTC continues to apply 
the ISO 31000 risk management process that was adopted in the previous year. Within such framework, the Group has an 
established and structured process for the identification, assessment, communication, monitoring as well as continual 
review of risks and effectiveness of risk mitigation strategies and controls at the entity and operational levels.

Statement of Risk Management 
and Internal Control
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RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK (cont’d)

The ARMC and the Board continue to set the strategic direction for risk management, roles and responsibilities as well as 
risk reporting structures. The periodic reporting to both the ARMC and the Board on risk management activities undertaken 
by Management keeps the ARMC and the Board informed and advised on all aspects of risks of the business.

The risk management process implemented within the Group continues to define, highlight, report and manage the key 
business and operational risks faced by the businesses within the Group. The risk management process applies to all 
levels of activity in the Group, with the objective of establishing accountability for both risks and mitigation at the sources 
of risk.

During the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024, the ARMC has engaged an outsourced professional service provider to 
facilitate the Group’s Risk Assessment (“GRA”) updates. Result of GRA updates and the updated key risks profiles were 
presented to the ARMC and subsequently to the Board.

On a periodic basis, the ARMC and the Board reviews the Group’s enterprise risk management framework, system and 
processes with a view to ensure the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management framework.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises the importance of internal control system which is designed to manage and reduce risks that will 
hinder the Group from achieving its objectives. The internal control system is embedded within the Group’s operations and 
incorporated for effective control and monitoring. The Group’s internal audit function (“IAF”) is outsourced to a professional 
services firm to assist the ARMC in undertaking independent reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s 
system of internal control.

The outsourced IAF has a clear line of reporting to the ARMC and the ARMC determines the remit of the outsourced IAF. 
Regular audit reviews on the key business processes of the Group are conducted in accordance with the internal audit plan 
approved by the ARMC. Reports on the reviews conducted, incorporating management’s responses and actions plans, 
are tabled to the ARMC at least on a quarterly basis for their attention. Follow-up reviews on the implementation status of 
Management’s action plans are carried out to ensure that any internal control deficiencies or weaknesses highlighted have 
been addressed on a timely basis.

As part of its broader effort to ensure adequate system of check and balance are operating as designed, the IAF, which is 
independent of Management and operations, provides assurance on the adequacy and integrity on the system of internal 
control of the Group. Based on the internal audit reviews conducted, none of the weaknesses noted has resulted in any 
material losses, contingencies or uncertainties that would require a separate disclosure in this annual report.

In addition to the internal audit function, the ARMC also receives report from the external auditors that primarily focuses on 
financial controls. Where there are incidents of non-compliances or deficiencies, appropriate corrective actions have been 
taken and relevant procedures have been introduced.

The ARMC reviews any internal control issues identified by the IAF, the external auditors, regulatory authorities and 
Management, and evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems. The 
ARMC also reviews the internal audit function and quality of internal audits.

Statement of  R isk Management and Internal Control
(Cont’d)
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ASSURANCE STATEMENT BY KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM

The Board has received assurance from the Executive Director stating that the Group’s risk management and internal 
control systems have operated adequately and effectively, in all material aspects, for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 
2024 and up to the date of this Statement.

REVIEW OF THIS STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS

As required by Paragraph 15.23 of the Main LR, the external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Risk Management 
and Internal Control. Their review was performed in accordance with AAPG3, Guidance for Auditors on Engagements to 
Report on the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control, issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

The external auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that 
this Statement is inconsistent with their understanding in all material aspects that the Board has adopted in the review of 
the adequacy and integrity of internal control of the Group, or is factually inaccurate.

CONCLUSION

The Board is satisfied that the risk management framework and internal control system of the Group are effective and 
adequate. The Board shall remain committed in ensuring that appropriate initiatives are taken to enhance these systems 
in order to safeguard stakeholders’ interest and the Group’s assets.

This Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors 
dated 24 October 2024.
 

Statement of  R isk Management and Internal Control
(Cont’d)
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Additional 
Information

The information set out below is disclosed in compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad: 

1.	 NON-AUDIT FEES 

	 During the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024, the amount of audit fees and non-audit fees paid to the external 
auditors of the Company in relation to the services rendered for the Group are as follows:

Group
(RM)

Company
(RM)

Audit services 319,452 39,000

Non-audit services 101,879 14,000

	 The non-audit fees are for the review of interim financial information, review of statement of risk management and 
internal control and tax compliance services. 

2. 	 REVALUATION POLICY ON LANDED PROPERTIES 

	 Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially 
from the fair value of the leasehold land and buildings at the reporting date. 

3.	 MATERIAL CONTRACTS

	 There were no material contracts entered into by the Company and/or its subsidiaries during the Financial Year Ended 
30 June 2024 or entered into since the end of the previous financial year, which involves the interest of Directors and/
or major shareholders. 

4. 	 OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES 

There were no options, warrants or convertible securities issued during the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2024.
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Directors’ Responsibil ity 
Statement 

The Board is required by the Companies Act, 2016 to present the financial statements for each financial year which have 
been made out in accordance with the applicable approve accounting standards and give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs, the results and cash flows of the Group and the Company.

The Board is satisfied that in preparing the financial statements of the Group and the Company for the Financial Year Ended 
30 June 2024, the appropriate accounting policies were used and applied consistently, adopted to include new and revised 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS”) where applicable. The Board is also of the view that relevant approved 
accounting standards have been followed in the preparation of these financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records which enable the financial 
position of the Group and the Company to be disclosed with reasonable accuracy and which enable them to ensure that 
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act, 2016.

The Directors have overall responsibility for taking such steps that are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of 
the Group to prevent and detect fraud and irregularities.
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Directors’
Report

The Directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2024.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Results

				    Group	 Company
				    RM	 RM

Profit for the financial year attributable to:	 	 	 	
 Owners of the Company	 	 	 	 16,409,822	 5,315,166
 Non-controlling interests	 	 	 	 2,231,627	 –

				    18,641,449	 5,315,166

Reserves and provisions

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the financial year except as disclosed in the 
financial statements.

Dividends

No dividend has been paid, declared or proposed since the end of the previous financial year. The Directors do not 
recommend any dividends for the current financial year ended 30 June 2024.

Directors

The Directors who have held office during the financial year and up to the date of this report are:

Tun Richard Malanjum 
Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing 
Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin 
Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau 
Lim Hui Kiong 
Dr. Lindfay Laura Lau (Alternate Director to Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin)
Y. Bhg. Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor 
Phang Sze Fui 
Wong Wen Miin 
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Directors (cont’d)

Pursuant to Section 253 of the Companies Act, 2016, the Directors of subsidiary companies during the financial year and 
up to date of this report are as follows:

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing
Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin
Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau
Y. Bhg. Datuk Gan En Siong @ Fredian Gan 
Benedick Vicpaul Lau
Lim Hui Kiong
Dr. Lindfay Laura Lau 
Sharin Bin Alimin 
Woo Chung Heng
Phang Weei Horng
Haridji Noensie

Directors’ interests in shares
	
The holdings and deemed holdings in the ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations (other than wholly-
owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at the end of the financial year, as recorded in the Register of Directors’ 
Shareholding kept under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016 are as follows:

Interest in the Company

	 Number of ordinary shares
		  At			   At
Indirect interest:		  1.7.2023	 Bought	 Sold	 30.6.2024

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing	 *	 475,289,386	 –	 –	 475,289,386
Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin	 *	 475,289,386	 –	 –	 475,289,386
Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau	 *	 475,289,386	 –	 –	 475,289,386

Interest in the immediate holding company
- Kim Teck Cheong Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

	 Number of ordinary shares
		  At			   At
Direct interest:		  1.7.2023	 Bought	 Sold	 30.6.2024

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing		  31,426,920	 –	 –	 31,426,920
Lim Hui Kiong		  8,109,426	 –	 –	 8,109,426

Indirect interest:

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing	 *	 119,690,574	 –	 –	 119,690,574
Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau	 *	 119,690,574	 –	 –	 119,690,574

Directors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD62 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Directors’ interests in shares (cont’d)
	
The holdings and deemed holdings in the ordinary shares of the Company and its related corporations (other than wholly-
owned subsidiaries) of those who were Directors at the end of the financial year, as recorded in the Register of Directors’ 
Shareholding kept under Section 59 of the Companies Act, 2016 are as follows: (Cont’d)

Interest in the ultimate holding company
- Kim Teck Cheong Capital Sdn. Bhd.

	 Number of ordinary shares
		  At			   At
Direct interest:		  1.7.2023	 Bought	 Sold	 30.6.2024

Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing		  75,231	 –	 –	 75,231
Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin	 	 1,036	 –	 –	 1,036
Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau		  43,056	 –	 –	 43,056
Lindfay Laura Lau		  185	 –	 –	 185
					   
*     Shares held through company in which the Director has substantial financial interests.

By virtue of their interests in the ordinary shares of the Company and pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016 
in Malaysia, Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau Koh Sing @ Lau Kok Sing,  Y. Bhg. Datin Lim Fook Len @ Lim Su Chin and Y. Bhg. Datuk Lau 
Wei Dick @ Dexter Dick Lau are deemed to have interests in the ordinary shares of the subsidiaries to the extent that the 
Company has an interest.

Other than as stated above, the other Directors in office at the end of the financial year did not have any interest in ordinary 
shares of the Company and its related corporations during the financial year.

Directors’ benefits

Since the end of the previous financial year, no Director of the Company has received nor become entitled to receive any 
benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by Directors 
as disclosed in the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a contract 
made by the Company or a related corporation with the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member, or 
with a company in which the Director has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial 
statements.

There were no arrangements during and at the end of the financial year, which had the object of enabling the Directors of 
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any other body 
corporate.

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration paid to or receivable by the Directors of the Group and Company during the financial year is amounted 
to RM4,696,206 and RM4,176,767 respectively. 

 

Directors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)
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Indemnity and insurance for Directors, officers and auditors

There was no indemnity given to or liability insurance effected for any Director, officer or auditor of the Group or of the 
Company during the financial year.

Subsidiaries

The details of the Company’s subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Issues of shares and debentures

The Company did not issue any new shares or debentures during the financial year.

Options granted over unissued shares

No options were granted to any person to take up unissued shares of the Company during the financial year. 

Other statutory information 

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the Directors took reasonable steps to 
ascertain that:
	
(i)	 all known bad debts had been written off and adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and
	
(ii)	 any current assets which were unlikely to realise their book values in the ordinary course of business had been 

written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.  

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:
	
(i)	 which would render the amount written off for bad debts, or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the 

financial statements of the Group and of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; or  
	
(ii)	 which would render the value attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the 

Company misleading; or
	
(iii)	 which have arisen which render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and 

of the Company misleading or inappropriate; or
	
(iv)	 not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial statements, which would render any amount stated in the 

financial statements of the Group and of the Company misleading.

As at the date of this report, there does not exist:
	
(i)	 any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year which 

secures the liabilities of any other person except as disclosed in the financial statements; or
	
(ii)	 any contingent liability in respect of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year.

Directors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)
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Other statutory information (cont’d)

No contingent liability or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable, or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the Directors, will 
or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations as and when they fall due. 
	
In the opinion of the Directors, the financial performance of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 30 
June 2024 have not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature nor has 
any such item, transaction or event occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

Holding companies

The Directors regard Kim Teck Cheong Capital Sdn. Bhd. and Kim Teck Cheong Holdings Sdn. Bhd., all of which are 
incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, as the ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the Company 
respectively.

 
Auditors

The auditors, PKF PLT, have indicated their willingness to continue in office.

During the financial year, the total amount of fees paid to or receivable by the auditors as remuneration for their services as 
auditors of the Group and the Company amounted to RM304,152 and RM37,000 respectively.

Signed on behalf of the Board 
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

Y. BHG. DATUK LAU KOH SING @ LAU KOK SING
Director

Y. BHG. DATUK LAU WEI DICK @ DEXTER DICK LAU
Director

Dated  24 October 2024

Directors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)
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STATEMENT BY 
DIRECTORS

PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

In the opinion of the Directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 70 to 129 are drawn up in accordance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 
Company as at 30 June 2024 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year ended on that date.

Signed on behalf of the Board 
in accordance with a resolution of the Directors,

Y. BHG. DATUK LAU KOH SING @ LAU KOK SING
Director

Y. BHG. DATUK LAU WEI DICK @ DEXTER DICK LAU
Director

Dated 24 October 2024

STATUTORY 
DECLARATION

PURSUANT TO SECTION 251(1)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2016

I, TEH YONG KHIM, being the Officer primarily responsible for the financial management of KIM TECK CHEONG 
CONSOLIDATED BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 
70 to 129 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing 
the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by	 )  
the abovenamed TEH YONG KHIM 	 )
at Kota Kinabalu in the	 )
state of Sabah on 24 October 2024	 )

		
		  TEH YONG KHIM
		  MIA No. 36504
	

		  Before me,

DR. JOSEPH AHLAN
S115			 

	 	 COMMISSIONER FOR OATHS 
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INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD
Registration No: 201401037782 (1113927-H) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD, which comprise the statements 
of financial position as at 30 June 2024 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company 
for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting 
policies, as set out on pages 70 to 129.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of 
the Company as at 30 June 2024, and of their financial performance and their cash flows for the financial year then ended 
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRSs), International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on 
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Group and of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct 
and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) 
(“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company as a whole, and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Area of focus How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Group

Impairment assessment of goodwill

As disclosed in Note 16 to the financial 
statements, the Group has significant balances 
of goodwill. In accordance with paragraph 10 of 
MFRS 136 Impairment of Assets, an intangible 
asset with an indefinite useful life is required to 
be tested for impairment annually by comparing 
its carrying amount with its recoverable amount, 
irrespective of whether there is any indication that 
it may be impaired.

Significant judgements arise over the discount 
rates applied in the recoverable amount 
calculation and assumptions supporting the 
underlying cash flow projections, including 
forecast annual sales and net profit margin. 

	Our audit procedures focus on evaluating the cash flow projections 
and the Group’s projection procedures which included, among 
others:

•	 comparing and assessing the Group’s assumptions in 
relation to key inputs such as discount rates, forecast annual 
sales and net profit margin;

•	 testing the mathematical accuracy of the impairment 
assessment; and

•	 performing stress test and sensitivity analysis around the 
key inputs that are expected to be most sensitive to the 
recoverable amount.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)

Area of focus How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Group

Existence and valuation of inventories

As disclosed in Note 4(i) to the financial 
statements, the valuation of the Group’s 
inventories is stated at the lower of cost or 
net realisable value. The assessment of slow 
moving inventories is mainly based on Directors’ 
estimates.

We focused on the existence and valuation of 
inventories due to the significance of the value of 
inventories amounted to RM152,979,200 which 
represents 37% of the Group’s total assets and 
the multiple locations in which the inventories are 
located.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

•	 attending year end physical inventory count to observe 
physical existence and condition of the inventories during the 
count; 

•	 reviewing inventories ageing analysis, and assessing the right 
to return of expired inventories and adequacy of allowance 
for slow moving inventories by the management; 

•	 examining cost of the inventories to invoices issued by the 
suppliers to ascertain the costing of the inventories are 
computed based on the accounting policy adopted; and 

•	 reviewing selling price of the inventories to invoices issued 
after the financial year end and evaluating whether the 
inventories have been written down to their net realisable 
value for inventory items with net realisable value lower than 
their cost on selected inventory items.

Valuation of trade receivables

As disclosed in Note 18 to the financial 
statements, the Group has trade receivables 
amounted to RM105,559,221 which represents 
25% of the Group’s total assets and is exposed 
to significant credit risk arising from its trade 
receivables. Furthermore, the expected credit 
losses of trade receivables are subject to 
significant estimation uncertainties in analysing 
historical bad debts, customer creditworthiness 
and customer payment terms.

	

Our audit procedures included, among others:

•	 understanding of the Group’s control over the receivable 
collection process and significant credit exposures which 
were deemed to be in default through analysis of ageing 
reports and other collection reports prepared by the Group;

•	 obtaining confirmation of balances from selected samples of 
receivables; 

•	 reviewing subsequent receipts, customer correspondence, 
and considering level of activity with the customer and 
management explanation on recoverability with significant 
past due balances; 

•	 assessing the basis of computation of provision of expected 
credit losses by the management and reasonableness of the 
assumptions and input data used; 

•	 reviewing the ageing analysis of receivables and testing the 
reliability thereof;

•	 making enquiries of management regarding the action plans 
to recover overdue amounts; and

•	 evaluating the reasonableness and adequacy of the allowance 
for impairment recognised for identified exposures.

Independent Auditors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and of the Company and our 
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements of the Group and of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia. The Directors are also responsible for such 
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Group and 
of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, the Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the 
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(i)	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(ii)	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s and the 
Company’s internal control.

(iii)	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the Directors.

Independent Auditors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing, 
we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: (Cont’d)

(iv)	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group’s or the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements of the Group and of the Company or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group or the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

(v)	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Group and of the Company represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(vi)	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities 
within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements of the Group. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the current financial year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2016 in Malaysia, we report that the subsidiary company of 
which we have not acted as auditors, is disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements.

Other Matter	

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of the Companies 
Act, 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of 
this report. 

PKF PLT	 	 CHAU MAN KIT
202206000012 (LLP0030836-LCA) & AF0911	 	 02525/03/2026 J
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS		  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Kota Kinabalu

Dated 24 October 2024
 
 

Independent Auditors’ Repor t
(Cont’d)
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STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
	 Note	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Revenue	 5	 946,339,698	 729,389,513	 12,806,502	 8,512,005
Cost of sales		  (849,027,606)	 (635,748,009)	 –	 –

Gross profit		  97,312,092	 93,641,504	 12,806,502	 8,512,005
Other operating income	 6	 2,974,173	 4,069,065	 2,982,672	 2,085,541
(Impairment charge)/Reversal of 
 impairment on financial assets	 7	 (83,554)	 679,443	 (281,544)	 161,495
Administrative expenses		  (27,514,847)	 (26,156,740)	 (7,036,939)	 (9,578,197)
Selling and distribution expenses		  (39,857,062)	 (31,094,039)	 –	 –
Other expenses		  (2,757,669)	 (3,228,966)	 –	 –

Profit from operations	 10	 30,073,133	 37,910,267	 8,470,691	 1,180,844
Finance costs	 11	 (4,572,648)	 (3,431,216)	 (909,478)	 (575,511)

Profit before taxation 		  25,500,485	 34,479,051	 7,561,213	 605,333
Income tax expense	 12	 (6,859,036)	 (9,373,083)	 (2,246,047)	 (1,115,462)

Profit/(Loss) for the financial year		  18,641,449	 25,105,968	 5,315,166	 (510,129)

Other comprehensive income
Item that may be reclassified 
 subsequently to profit or loss:
 Exchange differences on translation of 
  a foreign operation	 	 166,386	 2,185,630	 –	 –

Other comprehensive income for the
 financial year, net of tax		  166,386	 2,185,630	 –	 –

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for 
 the financial year		  18,807,835	 27,291,598	 5,315,166	 (510,129)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company		  16,409,822	 21,801,530	 5,315,166	 (510,129)
Non-controlling interests		  2,231,627	 3,304,438	 –	 –

		  18,641,449	 25,105,968	 5,315,166	 (510,129)

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
 attributable to:
Owners of the Company		  16,421,505	 23,170,600	 5,315,166	 (510,129)
Non-controlling interests		  2,386,330	 4,120,998	 –	 –

		  18,807,835	 27,291,598	 5,315,166	 (510,129)

Earnings per share attributable to
 owners of the Company (sen per share)
Basic and diluted	 13	 2.41	 3.20

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2024

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
	 Note	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment	 14	 116,603,273	 114,898,285	 72,493	 128,319
Investments in subsidiary companies	 15	 –	 –	 94,635,344	 94,635,244
Goodwill on consolidation	 16	 4,642,260	 4,642,260	 –	 –

		  121,245,533	 119,540,545	 94,707,837	 94,763,563

Current assets
Inventories	 17	 152,979,200	 114,284,422	 –	 –
Trade and other receivables	 18	 130,569,676	 96,503,761	 82,135,141	 69,672,581
Tax recoverable  		  4,698,714	 2,962,722	 –	 –
Cash and bank balances	 19	 8,620,419	 14,149,167	 359,734	 414,744

		  296,868,009	 227,900,072	 82,494,875	 70,087,325

TOTAL ASSETS		  418,113,542	 347,440,617	 177,202,712	 164,850,888

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity attributable to owners 
 of the Company
Share capital 	 20	 100,947,120	 100,947,120	 100,947,120	 100,947,120
Other reserves	 21	 43,459,197	 43,447,514	 –	 –
Reorganisation deficit	 22	 (47,971,279)	 (47,971,279)	 –	 –
Retained profits/(Accumulated losses)	 23	 96,836,858	 80,427,036	 314,366	 (5,000,800)

		  193,271,896	 176,850,391	 101,261,486	 95,946,320
Non-controlling interests		  14,316,189	 11,929,859	 –	 –

TOTAL EQUITY		  207,588,085	 188,780,250	 101,261,486	 95,946,320

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 	 24	 24,284,637	 24,074,668	 –	 –
Deferred tax liabilities 	 25	 15,950,872	 15,857,648	 12,230	 25,000

		  40,235,509	 39,932,316	 12,230	 25,000

Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 	 24	 106,737,653	 71,867,619	 –	 –
Trade and other payables	 26	 61,306,252	 43,944,400	 74,989,983	 68,589,668
Taxation 		  2,246,043	 2,916,032	 939,013	 289,900

		  170,289,948	 118,728,051	 75,928,996	 68,879,568

TOTAL LIABILITIES		  210,525,457	 158,660,367	 75,941,226	 68,904,568

				  
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		  418,113,542	 347,440,617	 177,202,712	 164,850,888

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024
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			   	 (Accumulated 
				    losses)/	
			   Share	 Retained 	 Total
			   capital	 profits	 equity
 			   RM	 RM	 RM

Company

At 1 July 2022			   100,947,120	 (4,490,671)	 96,456,449
Total comprehensive loss for the financial year	 	 	 –	 (510,129)	 (510,129)

At 30 June 2023			   100,947,120	 (5,000,800)	 95,946,320
Total comprehensive income for the financial year	 	 –	 5,315,166	 5,315,166

At 30 June 2024			   100,947,120	 314,366	 101,261,486
	

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Statements of  Changes in Equity
(Cont’d)
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The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF
CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
	 Note	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before taxation 	 	 25,500,485	 34,479,051	 7,561,213	 605,333
Adjustments for:		
Bad debts written off		  –	 178,882	 –	 –
Depreciation of property, 
 plant and equipment	 	 6,602,198	 6,672,550	 55,826	 72,806
Gain on disposal of property, 
 plant and equipment	 	 (238,975)	 (188,495)	 –	 –
Gain on termination of lease liabilities		  (10,078)	 –	 –	 –
Goodwill written off		  –	 1,339,124	 –	 –
Impairment charge/(Reversal of 
 impairment) on financial assets	 	 83,554	 (679,443)	 281,544	 (161,495)
Impairment on inventories		  23,736	 –	 –	 –
Interest expenses		  4,572,648	 3,431,216	 909,478	 575,511
Interest income 		  (293,913)	 (385,727)	 (2,982,672)	 (2,085,541)
Inventories written off		  2,733,934	 1,710,960	 –	 –
Reversal of bad debts written off 		  (74,656)	 (896)	 –	 –
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange		  344,176	 3,152,622	 344,176	 3,152,622

Operating profit before 
 working capital changes		  39,243,109	 49,709,844	 6,169,565	 2,159,236
Change in inventories  		  (41,452,448)	 (33,595,514)	 –	 –
Change in receivables 		  (34,074,813)	 12,613,811	 (17,146)	 (4,072)
Change in payables		  17,017,676	 (6,752,159)	 (439,751)	 (2,953,417)

Cash (used in)/from operations		  (19,266,476)	 21,975,982	 5,712,668	 (798,253)
Income tax paid		  (11,294,224)	 (9,599,810)	 (1,679,824)	 (871,750)
Income tax refunded		  2,122,431	 2,622,156	 70,120	 -
Interest paid 		  (4,572,648)	 (3,431,216)	 (909,478)	 (575,511)
Interest received		  293,913	 385,727	 2,982,672	 2,085,541

Net cash (used in)/from 
 operating activities		  (32,717,004)	 11,952,839	 6,176,158	 (159,973)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, 
 plant and equipment*	 	 (2,982,461)	 (1,665,351)	 –	 –
Acquisition of subsidiary company,
 net of cash acquired	 15	 –	 –	 (100)	 –
Advances to subsidiaries		  –	 –	 (12,726,958)	 (27,299,300)
Placement of deposits with 
 a licensed bank	 	 (155,050)	 (294,478)	 –	 –
Proceeds from disposal of property, 
 plant and equipment	 	 302,496	 188,495	 –	 –

Net cash used in investing activities		  (2,835,015)	 (1,771,334)	 (12,727,058)	 (27,299,300)
			 
		  (35,552,019)	 10,181,505	 (6,550,900)	 (27,459,273)
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	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
	 Note	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Cash flows from financing activities

Net drawdown/(payment) of 
 bankers’ acceptances	 	 35,731,000	 (17,656,030)	 –	 –
Net (payment)/drawdown of 
 trust receipts	 	 (1,409,727)	 8,727,018	 –	 –
Repayment of lease liabilities		  (3,830,801)	 (2,723,712)	 –	 –
Repayment of term loans		  (1,241,564)	 (1,391,153)	 –	 –
Advances from immediate 
 holding company	 	 –	 2,500,000	 –	 2,500,000
Advances from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 6,495,890	 24,937,380

Net cash from/(used in) 
 financing activities		  29,248,908	 (10,543,877)	 6,495,890	 27,437,380

Net decrease in cash and
 cash equivalents		  (6,303,111)	 (362,372)	 (55,010)	 (21,893)
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations	 	 165,736	 2,175,813	 –	 –

Cash and cash equivalents at
 beginning of financial year		  13,854,689	 12,041,248	 414,744	 436,637

Cash and cash equivalents at 
 end of financial year	 19	 7,717,314	 13,854,689	 359,734	 414,744

Non-cash transactions

*     Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

	 During the financial year, the Group and the Company acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost 
of RM8,669,461 and RMNil (2023: RM10,835,683 and RMNil) respectively of which RM5,687,000 and RMNil (2023: 
RM9,170,332 and RMNil) respectively were acquired by means of leases. Cash payments of RM2,982,461 and RMNil 
(2023: RM1,665,351 and RMNil) respectively were made to acquire property, plant and equipment.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Statements of  Cash F lows
(Cont’d)
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Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Group			   Cash	 Non-cash	
		  1 July	 flows	 changes**	 30 June
2024		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Amount due to immediate holding company		  2,500,000	 –	 –	 2,500,000
Bankers’ acceptances		  36,318,970	 35,731,000	 –	 72,049,970
Lease liabilities		  14,084,654	 (3,830,801)	 5,377,518	 15,631,371
Term loans		  14,717,264	 (1,241,564)	 –	 13,475,700
Trust receipts		  30,821,399	 (1,409,727)	 –	 29,411,672

		  98,442,287	 29,248,908	 5,377,518	 133,068,713

2023				  
				  
Amount due to immediate holding company		  –	 2,500,000	 –	 2,500,000
Bankers’ acceptances		  53,975,000	 (17,656,030)	 –	 36,318,970
Lease liabilities		  7,638,034	 (2,723,712)	 9,170,332	 14,084,654
Term loans		  16,108,417	 (1,391,153)	 –	 14,717,264
Trust receipts		  22,094,381	 8,727,018	 –	 30,821,399

		  99,815,832	 (10,543,877)	 9,170,332	 98,442,287

Company			   Cash	 Non-cash	
		  1 July	 flows	 changes**	 30 June
2024		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Amounts due to subsidiaries		  64,538,770	 6,495,890	 –	 71,034,660
Amount due to immediate holding company		  2,500,000	 –	 –	 2,500,000

		  67,038,770	 6,495,890	 –	 73,534,660

2023
Amounts due to subsidiaries		  39,601,390	 24,937,380	 –	 64,538,770
Amount due to immediate holding company		  –	 2,500,000	 –	 2,500,000

		  39,601,390	 27,437,380	 –	 67,038,770
				  

**	 Included in non-cash changes of lease liabilities of the Group are non-cash acquisition and termination of lease 
liabilities amounted to RM5,687,000 and RM309,482 (2023: RM9,170,332 and RMNil) respectively.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Statements of  Cash F lows
(Cont’d)
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

1.	 General information

	 The Company is a public limited liability company that is domiciled and incorporated in Malaysia, and is listed on the 
Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The 
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements. 

	 The registered office and principal place of business of the Company are located at B08-02 @ One City Skypark Office 
Suites, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia and Lot 73, Jalan Kilang, SEDCO Light Industrial 
Estate, Mile 5 ½ Jalan Tuaran, 88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia respectively. 

	 The Directors regard Kim Teck Cheong Capital Sdn. Bhd. and Kim Teck Cheong Holdings Sdn. Bhd., both of which 
are incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, as the ultimate holding company and immediate holding company of the 
Company respectively.

	 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board 
of Directors dated 24 October 2024.

2.	 Basis of preparation 

(a)	 Statement of compliance 

	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 
Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued by Malaysian Accounting Standards Board 
(“MASB”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2016 in Malaysia.  

(b)	 Basis of measurement  

	 The material accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are consistent with those adopted in 
previous financial year unless otherwise stated. 

	 The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention, unless otherwise indicated in the material accounting policies.

(c)	 Functional and presentation currencies  

	 The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the 
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items 
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

(d)	 Adoption of new and revised MFRS

	 During the financial year, the Group and the Company have adopted the following amendments to standards 
issued by the MASB that are mandatory for current financial year:

•	 Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies
•	 Amendments to MFRS 108: Definition of Accounting Estimates
•	 Amendments to MFRS 112: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

	 The adoption of the amendments to standards did not have any significant impact on the financial statements 
of the Group and of the Company, other than changes in the accounting policy information disclosed in the 
financial statements in line with the amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure of Accounting Policies which require 
the disclosure of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant’, accounting policies.



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD78 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

2.	 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

(e) 	 Standards issued but not yet effective

	 Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been issued but not yet effective for 30 June 2024 
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Group and the Company. These standards are not 
expected to have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group and of the Company in the current 
or future reporting periods.

3.	 Significant accounting judgments and estimates 

	 The preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and 
the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or 
liability affected in the future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

	 The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that 
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year are discussed below:

(i)	 Income taxes

	 There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be different 
from the initial estimate. The Group and the Company recognise tax liabilities based on their understanding 
of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. 
Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such 
difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is 
made.

(ii)	 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

	 The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the property, plant 
and equipment are based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a result of technical 
innovations and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions.

	 The Group and the Company anticipate that the residual values of their property, plant and equipment will be 
insignificant. As a result, residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation of the 
depreciable amount. The management estimates the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment to be 
within two (2) to seventy-six (76) years. Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development 
could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation 
charges could be revised.

 (iii)	 Revaluation of leasehold land and buildings

	 Leasehold land and buildings of the Group are reported at fair value which is based on valuations performed by 
independent professional valuers.

	 The leasehold land and buildings were valued by reference to transactions involving properties of a similar 
nature, location and condition which involved judgement by the independent professional valuers that may 
affect the resulting valuation estimates. 
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

3.	 Significant accounting judgments and estimates (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(iv)	 Carrying value of investments in subsidiary companies	
	
	 Investments in subsidiary companies are reviewed for impairment annually in accordance with its accounting 

policy as disclosed in Note 4(k)(ii) to the financial statements, or whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

	 Significant judgment is required in the estimation of the present value of future cash flows generated by the 
subsidiaries, which involves uncertainties and are significantly affected by assumptions and judgments made 
regarding estimates of future cash flows and discount rates. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect 
the carrying value of investments in subsidiary companies. 

(v)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

	 When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an estimate of the 
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to 
determine the present value of those cash flows.

(vi)	 Impairment of goodwill	

	 The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any impairment of goodwill. For the purpose of 
assessing impairment, assets (including goodwill) are grouped at the lowest level where there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). The management determines the value-in-use of a cash-
generating unit for impairment of goodwill purposes based on annual revenue generated during the financial 
year for significant agencies existing during the acquisition of the subsidiaries that resulted in goodwill arising 
to the Group using reasonable and supportable inputs about discount rates, forecast annual sales and net profit 
margin based on past experience, current events and reasonably possible future developments. Cash flows 
that are projected based on those inputs or assumptions and the discount rate applied in the measurement of 
value-in-use may have a significant effect on the Group’s financial position and results if the actual cash flows 
are less than the expected.

	 The carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill and key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount 
for different cash-generating units, including sensitivity analysis, are disclosed in Note 16.

(vii)	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

	 Deferred tax implications arising from the changes in corporate income tax rates are measured with reference 
to the estimated realisation and settlement of temporary differences in the future periods in which the tax rates 
are expected to apply, based on the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. While 
management’s estimates on the realisation and settlement of temporary differences are based on the available 
information at the reporting date, changes in business strategy, future operating performance and other factors 
could potentially impact on the actual timing and amount of temporary differences realised and settled. Any 
difference between the actual amount and the estimated amount would be recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which actual realisation and settlement occurs. 
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

3.	 Significant accounting judgments and estimates (cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

(viii)	 Allowance for inventories

	 Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. These 
reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the 
valuation of inventories.

(ix)	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss 
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment 
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates 
at the end of each reporting period.  

(x)	 Leases

	 The measurement of the right-of-use asset and lease liability for leases where the Group is lessee requires the 
use of judgements and assumptions, such as lease term and incremental borrowing rate. In determining the 
lease term, the Group considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an 
extension option. Extension options are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be 
extended. The incremental borrowing rate is the interest rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow over 
a similar term, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar 
economic environment. Therefore, the incremental borrowing rate requires estimation, particularly when no 
observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. 
The Group estimates the incremental borrowing rate using observable inputs when available and is required to 
make certain entity-specific estimates.  

4.	 Material accounting policies

	 The Group adopted Amendments to MFRS101 Presentation of Financial   Statements – Disclosure of Accounting 
Policies for the first time from 1 July 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to the accounting 
policies themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed in the financial statements.

	 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’, rather than ‘significant’, accounting policies. The amendments 
also provide guidance on the application of materiality to the disclosure of accounting policies, assisting entities to 
provide useful, entity-specific accounting policy information that users need to understand other information in the 
financial statements.

	 Management reviewed the accounting policies and made updates to the information disclosed in Material accounting 
policies (2023: Significant accounting policies) in certain instances in line with the amendments.

	 Certain immaterial accounting policies have been voluntarily disclosed to ensure completeness in the financial 
statements of the Group.
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

4.	 Material accounting policies (cont’d)

(a)	 Basis of consolidation 

	 The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary 
companies as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the 
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company. 
Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. 

(i)	 Reorganisation

	 Acquisition of entities under a reorganisation scheme does not result in any change in economic 
substance. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of the Company are a continuation of the 
acquired entity and is accounted for as follows:

•	 the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity is recognised and measured in the consolidated 
financial statements at the pre-combination carrying amounts, without restatement to fair value;

•	 the retained profits and other equity balances of acquired entity immediately before the business 
combination are those of the Group; and

•	 the equity structure, however, reflects the equity structure of the Company and the differences 
arising from the change in equity structure of the Group will be accounted for in other reserves.

(ii)	 Subsidiaries 

	 Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included 
in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control 
ceases. 

	 Investments in subsidiaries are measured in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less 
any impairment losses, unless the investment is classified as held for sale or distribution. The cost of 
investments includes transaction costs.

(iii)	 Business combinations 

	 For each business combination, the Group elects whether it measures the non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 
acquisition date.

(iv)	 Loss of control

	 Upon the loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary, any-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the former subsidiary 
from the consolidated statement of financial position. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control 
is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in the former subsidiary, then such interest 
is measured at fair value at the date that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity 
accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a)	 Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

(v)	 Non-controlling interests

	 Non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting period, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable 
directly or indirectly to the equity holders of the Company, are presented in the consolidated statement 
of financial position and statement of changes in equity within equity, separately from equity attributable 
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group is presented in the 
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the profit 
and loss and the comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and the owners of 
the Company.

	 Losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controlling 
interests even if doing so caused the non-controlling interests to have a deficit balance.

(vi)	 Transactions with non-controlling interests

	 Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby, 
transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners. 

		 On acquisition of non-controlling interests, the difference between the consideration and the Group’ share 
of the net assets acquired is recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to non-controlling 
interests is recognised directly in equity.

(b)	 Foreign currencies 

(i)	 Foreign currency transactions  

	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or 	on translating monetary items at 
the reporting date are recognised in 	profit or loss except for exchange differences arising on monetary 
items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign 	operations, which are recognised initially in 
other comprehensive 	income and accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The 
foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from 	equity to profit or loss of the Group on disposal 
of the foreign operation. 

		 Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items 	carried at fair value are included 
in profit or loss for the period except 	for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items 
in 	respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. 	Exchange differences arising from 
such non-monetary items are also 	recognised directly in equity.	  

(ii)	 Foreign operations

	 The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
reporting date and income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 
The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to other comprehensive income. 
On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity under foreign currency translation reserve relating to that particular foreign 
operation is recognised in the profit or loss. 

	 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as 
assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign 
operations and translated at the closing rate at the reporting date.
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(c)	 Revenue recognition
 

		 Revenue from contracts with customers is measured at its transaction price, being the amount of consideration 
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, 
net of discounts. The transaction price is allocated to each distinct good or service promised in the contract. 
Depending on the terms of the contract, revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied, 
which may be a point in time or over time.

(i)	 Sale of goods 

		 Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net of taxes and upon transfer of control of ownership to 
the buyer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there are significant uncertainties regarding 
recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

(ii)	 Revenue from services

		 Revenue from services rendered is recognised net of taxes and discounts as and when the services are 
performed.

(iii)	 Management fee income

		 Management fee income is recognised when services are rendered.

(iv)	 Rental income

		 Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term of an ongoing lease.

(v)	 Interest income 
			 

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

(d) 	 Employee benefits

(i)	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Wages and salaries are usually accrued and paid on a monthly basis and are recognised as an expense, 
unless they relate to cost of producing inventories or other assets.

	 Paid absences (annual leave, maternity leave, paternity leave, sick leave, etc.) are accrued in each period 
if they are accumulating paid absences that can be carried forward, or in the case of non-accumulating 
paid absences, recognised as and when the absences occur.

	 Profit sharing and bonus payments are recognised when, and only when, the Group and the Company 
have a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payment as a result of past events and a 
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

(ii)	 Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plans)

	 The Group and the Company make statutory contributions to the approved provident funds and the 
contributions made are charged to profit or loss in the period to which they relate. When the contributions 
have been paid, the Group and the Company have no further payment obligations.
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e)	 Tax assets and tax liabilities

	 A current tax liability/(asset) is measured at the amount the entity expects to pay/(recover) using tax rates and 
laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date.

	 Deferred taxes are measured using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred taxes reflects the tax consequences that would 
follow from the manner in which the Group and the Company expect, at the end of the reporting period, to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets or liabilities.

(f)	 Earnings per share

	 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shares (“EPS”). Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS 
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares.

(g)	 Property, plant and equipment 

		 All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Subsequent to recognition, property, plant 
and equipment other than leasehold land and buildings are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses. 

		 Leasehold land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient 
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value of the leasehold land 
and buildings at the reporting date.

		 Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the 
asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset 
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation 
deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset 
carried in the asset revaluation reserve.

		 Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. The revaluation surplus included in 
the asset revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings on retirement or 
disposal of the asset.

		 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line basis to write off the cost or 
valuation of each asset to its residual value over the estimated useful life, at the following annual rates:

Right-of-use assets	 2 to 10 years
Leasehold land	 43.5 to 76 years
Leasehold buildings	 50 years
Office equipment, furniture and fittings and computers	 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles	 5 years
Plant and machineries	 10 years
Warehouse equipment	 5 to 10 years
Renovation	 5 to 10 years
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Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(h) 	 Goodwill

		 Goodwill arising from a business combination is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of 
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities. Following the initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated 
impairment losses.

	
(i)	 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

	 Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
 

•	 Trading inventories, raw materials and packaging materials: purchase costs on a first-in first-out basis.
•	 Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of direct materials and labour and a proportion of 

manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. These costs are assigned on a first-in 
first-out basis.

(j)	 Financial instruments

(i)	 Financial assets 

	 Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group and the 
Company have applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under 
MFRS 15. 

The Group and the Company only have financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).

	 	Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

	 The Group’s and the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade and other receivables 
and cash and bank balances.  

(ii)	 Financial liabilities
	
	 The Group and the Company only have financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

	 	The Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities measured at amortised cost include trade and other 
payables and loans and borrowings.  
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4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(k)	 Impairment 

(i)	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The Group and the Company recognise an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group and the 
Company expect to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The 
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements 
that are integral to the contractual terms. 

	 For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group and the Company apply a simplified approach in 
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group and the Company do not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group and the Company 
have established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for 
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 

	 For debt instruments considered to have low credit risk, the Group and the Company apply the low 
credit risk simplification. At every reporting date, the Group and the Company evaluate whether the debt 
instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is 
available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group and the Company reassess 
the internal credit rating of the debt instrument. 

	 In addition, the Group and the Company consider that there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
when contractual payments are more than one (1) year past due. It is the Group’s and the Company’s 
policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis. However, when there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. 

	 The Group and the Company consider a financial asset in default when contractual payments are one 
(1) year past due. However, in certain cases, the Group and the Company may also consider a financial 
asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Group and the Company 
are unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit 
enhancements held by the Group and the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 

(ii)	 Impairment of non-financial assets

		 The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is 
required, the Group and the Company make an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

(l)	 Equity instruments 

	 Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction 
costs. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as an appropriation of retained profits upon declaration, 
and are only taken up as liabilities upon the necessary approval being obtained.
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4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(m)	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of that asset.

	 All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing costs 
consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(n)	 Leases

(i)	 Classification

	 At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, 
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. 

	 At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease component on the basis of their relative 
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of properties in which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to 
separate non-lease components and will instead account for the lease and non-lease components as a 
single lease component. 

(ii) 	 Lease term

	 In determining the lease term, the Group considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic 
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option. Extension options (or 
periods after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to 
be extended (or not to be terminated). 

(iii)	 Recognition and initial measurement

As a lessee

	 The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted 
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred 
and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset 
or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

	 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at 
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the respective Group entities’ incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses 
its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

	 The Group has elected to use the recognition exemption that permits entities not to recognise right-of-use 
assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of twelve (12) months or less and 
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(n)	 Leases (Cont’d)

(iii)	 Recognition and initial measurement (Cont’d)

As a lessor

	 When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or 
an operating lease.

	 To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially 
all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the 
lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an operating lease.

	 If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Group applies MFRS 15 to allocate the 
consideration in the contract based on the stand-alone selling prices.

	 When the Group is intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease 
separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sublease with reference to the right-of-use asset 
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term 
lease to which the Group and applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sublease as 
an operating lease.

(iv)	 Subsequent measurement 

As a lessee

	 The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement 
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. 

	 If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the 
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the assets.

	 In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for 
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. 

	 The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured 
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is 
a revision of in-substance fixed lease payments, or if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the 
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment 
of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. 

As a lessor 

	 The Group recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term as part of “other operating income”. 
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4.	 Material accounting policies (Cont’d)

(o)	 Segment reporting

	 An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn 
revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s 
other components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating 
decision maker, which in this case is the Group Managing Director, to make decisions about resources to 
be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is 
available.

(p)	 Fair value measurement

	 The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use 
unobservable inputs.

	 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

(i)	 Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(ii)	 Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
(iii)	 Level 3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable

5.	 Revenue

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Revenue from contracts 
 with customers
Revenue from distribution of 
 consumer packaged goods	 	 800,826,287	 708,943,238	 –	 –
Revenue from distribution of 
 telecommunications products	 	 117,171,853	 –	 –	 –
Revenue from manufacturing of
 bakery products	 	 18,976,456	 18,530,319	 –	 –
Revenue from transportation 
 support service	 	 9,365,102	 1,915,956	 –	 –

			   946,339,698	 729,389,513	 –	 –
Revenue from other sources
Management fee from subsidiaries 		  –	 –	 12,806,502	 8,512,005

			   946,339,698	 729,389,513	 12,806,502	 8,512,005
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5.	 Revenue (cont’d)

Disaggregation of revenue

	 The Group reports the following major segments: distribution, manufacturing and others. For the purpose of 
disclosure for disaggregation of revenue, it disaggregates revenue into primary geographical markets, type of goods 
and timing of revenue recognition.

Group		  Distribution	 Manufacturing	 Others	 Total
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2024

Primary geographical markets
Sabah 		  559,718,139	 18,976,456	 7,180,675	 585,875,270
Sarawak		  237,811,259	 –	 637,807	 238,449,066
Others		  120,468,742	 –	 1,546,620	 122,015,362

			   917,998,140	 18,976,456	 9,365,102	 946,339,698

Type of goods or services
Consumer packaged goods		  800,826,287	 –	 –	 800,826,287
Telecommunications products		  117,171,853	 –	 –	 117,171,853
Bakery products		  –	 18,976,456	 –	 18,976,456
Transportation support service		  –	 –	 9,365,102	 9,365,102

			   917,998,140	 18,976,456	 9,365,102	 946,339,698

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time		  917,998,140	 18,976,456	 –	 936,974,596
Over time		  –	 –	 9,365,102	 9,365,102

			   917,998,140	 18,976,456	 9,365,102	 946,339,698
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5.	 Revenue (cont’d)

Disaggregation of revenue (Cont’d)

Group		  Distribution	 Manufacturing	 Others	 Total
			   RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

2023

Primary geographical markets
Sabah 		  399,310,271	 18,530,319	 1,915,956	 419,756,546
Sarawak		  185,046,695	 –	 –	 185,046,695
Others		  124,586,272	 –	 –	 124,586,272

			   708,943,238	 18,530,319	 1,915,956	 729,389,513

Type of goods or services
Consumer packaged goods		  708,943,238	 –	 –	 708,943,238
Bakery products		  –	 18,530,319	 –	 18,530,319
Transportation support service		  –	 –	 1,915,956	 1,915,956

			   708,943,238	 18,530,319	 1,915,956	 729,389,513

Timing of revenue recognition
At a point in time		  708,943,238	 18,530,319	 –	 727,473,557
Over time		  –	 –	 1,915,956	 1,915,956

			   708,943,238	 18,530,319	 1,915,956	 729,389,513
							     

				  
	 There are no unfulfilled performance obligations, whether satisfied or partially satisfied to be recognised over the 

subsequent periods.

 
6.	 Other operating income 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Interest income
- Amounts due from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 2,980,857	 2,074,096
- Cash at banks and deposits		  293,913	 385,727	 1,815	 11,445
Gain on disposal of property,
 plant and equipment	 	 238,975	 188,495	 –	 –
Gain on termination of lease liabilities		  10,078	 –	 –	 –
Rental income
- Motor vehicles		  133,583	 181,864	 –	 –
- Warehouses and offices	 	 217,800	 238,200	 –	 –
Reversal of bad debts written off		  74,656	 896	 –	 –
Supply chain income		  1,965,254	 2,917,157	 –	 –
Miscellaneous income		  39,914	 156,726	 –	 –

			   2,974,173	 4,069,065	 2,982,672	 2,085,541
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7.	 (Impairment charge)/Reversal of impairment on financial assets 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Impairment charge on: (Note 18)
- Trade receivables		  (578,405)	 (15,055)	 –	 –
- Amounts due from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 (281,544)	 –
Reversal of impairment on: (Note 18)
- Trade receivables		  459,772	 639,822	 –	 –
- Other receivables		  35,079	 54,676	 –	 –
- Amounts due from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 –	 161,495

			   (83,554)	 679,443	 (281,544)	 161,495

8.	 Employee benefits expense

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Salaries, wages, bonuses, allowances, 
 incentives, welfare and subsidy	 	 38,272,281	 28,378,861	 3,822,332	 3,769,019
Defined contribution plan	 	 3,516,297	 2,699,772	 186,493	 194,174
Employees Insurance System contributions	 59,195	 40,148	 159	 230
Human resources development fund		  237,255	 141,429	 –	 –
Social security contributions 		  525,589	 358,229	 2,872	 3,445

			   42,610,617	 31,618,439	 4,011,856	 3,966,868

	 Included in employee benefits expense of the Group and of the Company are Executive Directors’ remuneration 
amounting to RM3,957,269 (2023: RM3,779,148) and RM3,891,269 (2023: RM3,579,148) respectively as further 
disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. 

9.	 Directors’ remuneration

	 The details of remuneration received and receivable by Directors of the Group and of the Company during the financial 
year are as follows:

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Executive Directors’ remuneration: 
 (Note 8 2 and 27(c))	 	 	 	
- Fee 		 	 150,120	 150,120	 150,120	 150,120
- Salary		  2,244,468	 2,043,567	 2,244,468	 2,043,567
- Other emoluments 		  1,562,681	 1,585,461	 1,496,681	 1,385,461

			   3,957,269	 3,779,148	 3,891,269	 3,579,148
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9.	 Directors’ remuneration (cont’d)

	 The details of remuneration received and receivable by Directors of the Group and of the Company during the financial 
year are as follows: (Cont’d)

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration:
- Fee 		 	 296,160	 296,160	 260,160	 260,160
- Salary		  180,513	 172,458	 –	 –
- Other emoluments 		  262,264	 144,558	 25,338	 35,476

			   738,937	 613,176	 285,498	 295,636

Total Directors’ remuneration		  4,696,206	 4,392,324	 4,176,767	 3,874,784

10.	 Profit from operations 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Other than disclosed in Note 6, 7, 8 and 9, profit 
 from  operations is arrived at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
 - Statutory audit
  - Current year	 	 304,152	 258,734	 37,000	 35,000
  - Under provision in prior year	 	 15,300	 15,500	 2,000	 –
 - Other services	 	 101,879	 54,704	 14,000	 10,000
Bad debts written off		  –	 178,882	 –	 –
Depreciation of property, plant
 and equipment (Note 14)	 	 6,602,198	 6,672,550	 55,826	 72,806
Goodwill written off (Note 16)		  –	 1,339,124	 –	 –
Impairment on inventories (Note 17)		  23,736	 –	 –	 –
Inventories written off		  2,733,934	 1,710,960	 –	 –
Loss on foreign exchange
- Realised		  666,036	 456,222	 –	 –
- Unrealised		  344,176	 3,152,622	 344,176	 3,152,622
Management fee		  –	 –	 124,338	 13,194
Rental expenses* 
- Warehouses and offices	 	 1,909,682	 536,719	 –	 –
- Office equipment	 	 52,923	 53,759	 –	 –

* 	 Expenses relating to short-term lease accounted for applying the recognition exception of MFRS 16 Leases. 
There are no material expense relating to low value assets.
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11.	 Finance costs 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Interest expenses:

- Amounts due to subsidiaries		  –	 –	 909,478	 575,511
- Bank overdrafts 		  300,746	 264,939	 –	 –
- Bankers’ acceptances		  1,912,630	 1,166,150	 –	 –
- Lease liabilities		  531,842	 382,001	 –	 –
- Term loans		  621,473	 623,662	 –	 –
- Trust receipts		  1,205,957	 994,464	 –	 –

			   4,572,648	 3,431,216	 909,478	 575,511

12.	 Income tax expense 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Current taxation		  6,608,060	 9,199,176	 2,197,638	 1,087,413
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 25)		  93,224	 125,176	 (12,770)	 (14,204)

			   6,701,284	 9,324,352	 2,184,868	 1,073,209
Under provision in prior year
- Current taxation		  157,752	 48,731	 61,179	 42,253

			   6,859,036	 9,373,083	 2,246,047	 1,115,462

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to income 
tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and the Company is as follows:

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Profit before taxation 	 	 25,500,485	 34,479,051	 7,561,213	 605,333

Taxation at Malaysian statutory 
 tax rate of 24% (2023: 24%)	 	 6,120,116	 8,274,972	 1,814,690	 145,280
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions		  (348,628)	 (559,397)	 –	 –
Non-tax deductible expenses		  960,002	 1,999,858	 370,178	 975,189
Non-taxable income 		  (9,859)	 (13,122)	 –	 (47,260)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised 
 temporary differences	 	 (20,347)	 (377,959)	 –	 –

			   6,701,284	 9,324,352	 2,184,868	 1,073,209
Under provision in prior year
- Current taxation		  157,752	 48,731	 61,179	 42,253

			   6,859,036	 9,373,083	 2,246,047	 1,115,462
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13.	 Earnings per share

(a)	 Basic 

	 Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the financial year, net of tax, attributable 
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial 
year.

	 	 Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Profit net of tax attributable to owners of the Company		 	 16,409,822	 21,801,530

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 			   681,857,902	 681,857,902

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   Sen	 Sen

Basic earnings per share 				    2.41	 3.20

(b)	 Diluted 

	 There is no dilution in the earnings per share of the current and previous year end as there are no dilutive 
potential ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. 
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14.	 Property, plant and equipment (CONT’D)

Company				    Office equipment
					     and computers	
	  				    2024	 2023
Cost	  				    RM	 RM

At 1 July/30 June				    483,389	 483,389

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 July				    355,070	 282,264
Charge for the financial year (Note 10)	 	 	 	 55,826	 72,806

At 30 June				    410,896	 355,070

Net book value

At 30 June  				    72,493	 128,319

	 Leased assets of the Group pledged as security for the related lease liabilities as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial 
statements are as follows:

Group				    Accumulated	 Net book 
				    At cost	 depreciation	 value 
2024				   RM	 RM	 RM

Motor vehicles			   19,737,028	 (3,364,187)	 16,372,841

2023

Motor vehicles			   14,909,449	 (2,290,340)	 12,619,109

	
	 The right-of-use assets relate to the lease of warehouses and offices for a period ranging from two (2) years to ten 

(10) years.

	 Certain leasehold land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of RM55,703,243 (2023: RM57,313,120) 
had been pledged to licensed banks for banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries as disclosed in Note 24 to the 
financial statements.

	 The leasehold land and buildings of the Group were revalued during the previous financial year ended 30 June 2022 
by independent professional valuers using a combination of comparison method of valuation and depreciated 
replacement cost method.

	 Had the leasehold land and buildings been carried under the cost model, the carrying amount would have been 
RM27,677,744 (2023: RM28,578,535).

	 The title deeds to the leasehold land and buildings with carrying value at RM38,173,911 (2023: RM39,098,454) have 
yet to be issued by the relevant authorities.
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15.	 Investments in subsidiary companies 

		  Company	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Unquoted shares, at cost

At 1 July				    94,817,401	 94,817,401
Acquisition of subsidiary company				    100	 –

At 30 June				    94,817,501	 94,817,401
Less: Impairment loss				    (182,157)	 (182,157)

					     94,635,344	 94,635,244

Movement in the impairment account is as follows:

		  Company	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

At 1 July/30 June				    182,157	 182,157

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: 

Name of subsidiary 
 companies

Country of 
incorporation

Proportion of 
ownership interest

Principal activities
2024

%
2023

%

Kim Teck Cheong Sdn. Bhd. 
 (“KTC Sdn. Bhd.”)

Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of consumer 
 packaged goods

Kim Teck Cheong Niaga Sdn. Bhd. 
 (Formerly known as Kim Teck 
 Cheong Distribution Sdn. Bhd.) 
 (“KTC Niaga”)

Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of consumer 
 packaged goods

Kim Teck Cheong (Borneo) 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“KTC Borneo”)

Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of consumer 
 packaged goods

Kim Teck Cheong (Sarawak) 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“KTC Sarawak”)

Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of consumer 
 packaged goods

Kim Teck Cheong Retail 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“KTC Retail”)

Malaysia 100 100 Distribution of consumer 
 packaged goods

Creamos (Malaysia)  
 Sdn. Bhd. (“Creamos”)

Malaysia 100 100 Manufacture of bakery products

Gardenia Bakeries (East Malaysia) 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“Gardenia”)

Malaysia 100 100 Manufacture of bakery products
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15.	 Investments in subsidiary companies (CONT’D)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont’d)

Name of subsidiary 
 companies

Country of 
incorporation

Proportion of 
ownership interest

Principal activities
2024

%
2023

%

Kim Teck Cheong   Shipping 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“KTC Shipping”)

Malaysia 100 100 Transportation support activities

Kim Teck Cheong 
 Corporate Services Sdn. Bhd.  
 (“KTC Corporate Services”)

Malaysia 100 100
Corporate and  administrative
 services

Kim Teck Cheong Brands 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“KTC Brands”) Malaysia 100 100

Dormant

Kim Teck Cheong Academy 
 Sdn. Bhd. (Formerly known 
 as Kim Teck Cheong Agriculture 
 Sdn. Bhd.) (“KTC Academy”)

Malaysia 100 100
Dormant

Kim Teck Cheong Development 
 Sdn. Bhd. (“KTC Development”) Malaysia 100 100

Dormant

Kim Teck Cheong Technologies 
 Sdn. Bhd.  (“KTC Technologies”) Malaysia 100 –

Distribution of
 telecommunications products

Kim Teck Cheong Grandtop 
 Sdn. Bhd.  (“KTC Grandtop”)*

Brunei 60 60 Distribution of consumer
 packaged goods

PT Gardenia Bakeries Indonesia 
 (“Gardenia Indonesia”)**

Indonesia 99 99 Dormant

*	 Audited by firm of auditors other than PKF PLT.
**	 No legal requirement to appoint auditors.

Acquisition of subsidiary company

2024

	 The Company acquired 100% equity interests in KTC Technologies on 3 October 2023, being the date of incorporation 
of the said subsidiary for a total cash consideration of RM100.
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15.	 Investments in subsidiary companies (CONT’D)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiary

	 The financial information of the subsidiary of the Group that has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) is as 
follows:

Equity interest held by material non-controlling interests are as follows:

					     Ownership interest
	  			   Country of	 2024	 2023
Name of subsidiary company 			   incorporation	 %	 %

KTC Grandtop			   Brunei	 40	 40

Carrying amount of material NCI:
					     2024	 2023
Name of subsidiary company				    RM	 RM

KTC Grandtop				    14,287,955	 11,899,224

Profit allocated to material NCI:
					     2024	 2023
Name of subsidiary company				    RM	 RM

KTC Grandtop				    2,231,766	 3,304,508

Total comprehensive income allocated to NCI:
					     2024	 2023
Name of subsidiary company				    RM	 RM
						    
KTC Grandtop				    2,388,732	 4,119,588

	
Summarised financial information of material NCI

	 The summarised financial information (before intra-group elimination) of the subsidiary that has material NCI is as 
follows:

KTC Grandtop				    2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets				    1,208,292	 248,792
Current assets				    70,837,394	 71,360,961
Non-current liabilities				    (7,568)	 (10,052)
Current liabilities				    (35,924,139)	 (41,529,604)

Net assets 				    36,113,979	 30,070,097



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD 103ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

15.	 Investments in subsidiary companies (CONT’D)

Summarised financial information of material NCI (Cont’d)

KTC Grandtop				    2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM

Summarised statement of profit or loss 
 and other comprehensive income 

Revenue				    102,658,701	 107,291,761
Profit for the financial year	 	 	 	 5,579,416	 8,261,271
Total comprehensive income				    5,971,831	 10,298,971

Summarised cash flow information

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 			   (1,449,759)	 10,051,622
Net cash used in investing activities				    (1,258,119)	 (71,962)
Net cash used in financing activities	 	 	 	 (3,048,587)	 (5,983,373)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash 	equivalents			   (5,756,465)	 3,996,287

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests				   –	 –

16.	 Goodwill on consolidation

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Cost

At 1 July				    4,642,260	 5,981,384
Written off (Note 10)				    –	 (1,339,124)

At 30 June				    4,642,260	 4,642,260

Impairment of goodwill

	 Goodwill arising from business combination has been allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to the 
operating segments for impairment testing as follows:

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Distribution operation				    4,642,260	 4,642,260

	 For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the operating divisions of the Group which represent 
the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
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16.	 Goodwill on consolidation (Cont’d)

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations

	 Goodwill is tested for impairment on annual basis by comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable amount of 
the CGUs based on value-in-use. 

	 The Directors determined the value-in-use as at year end based on annual revenue generated during the financial 
year for significant agencies existing during the acquisition of the subsidiaries that resulted in goodwill arising to the 
Group.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are:

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023

Distribution operation

Net profit margin	 	 	 	 2%	 2%
Discount rate				    5.30%	 5.50%

Net profit margin – Net profit margin is based on past net profit margin achieved.

Discount rate - Discount rate is based on weighted average cost of capital of the Group.

Sensitivity to change in assumptions

	 With regard to the assessment of value-in-use calculation, the Directors of the Company believe that no reasonably 
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value to materially exceed its 
recoverable amount.
 

17.	 Inventories 

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Cost

Trading inventories 				    152,389,972	 112,870,516
Raw materials				    385,012	 1,123,358
Packaging materials				    168,206	 260,009
Finished goods	 	 	 	 59,746	 30,539

					     153,002,936	 114,284,422
Less: Impairment				    (23,736)	 –

					     152,979,200	 114,284,422
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17.	 Inventories (Cont’d)

Movement in the impairment account is as follows:

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

At 1 July 				    –	 –
Charge for the financial year (Note 10)	 	 	 	 23,736	 –

At 30 June				    23,736	 –

	 The amount of inventories recognised as an expense in cost of sales of the Group was RM849,027,606 (2023: 
RM635,748,009).

18.	 Trade and other receivables 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Trade receivables
Third parties		  107,033,197	 85,037,418	 –	 –
Less:	Allowance for impairment
	 - Third parties		  (1,473,976)	 (1,355,343)	 –	 –

Trade receivables, net		  105,559,221	 83,682,075	 –	 –

Other receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 82,781,330	 70,051,537
Third parties		  19,638,425	 11,476,672	 –	 –
Deposits 		  4,784,699	 943,774	 7,360	 7,360
Prepayments 		  587,696	 436,684	 18,023	 3,712 

			   25,010,820	 12,857,130	 82,806,713	 70,062,609

Other receivables
Less:	Allowance for impairment
	 - Amounts due from subsidiaries		  –	 –	 (671,572)	 (390,028)
	 - Third parties		  (365)	 (35,444)	 –	 –

			   (365)	 (35,444)	 (671,572)	 (390,028)

Other receivables, net		  25,010,455	 12,821,686	 82,135,141	 69,672,581

Total trade and other receivables		  130,569,676	 96,503,761	 82,135,141	 69,672,581



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD106 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

18.	 Trade and other receivables (Cont’d)
	

	 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the normal credit terms granted by the Group and the Company are 30 
to 90 (2023: 30 to 90) days from date of statement for the month invoice was issued. Other credit terms are assessed 
and approved on a case-by-case basis. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their 
fair values on initial recognition. 

	 The non-trade amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, bear interest at rate of 3.68% (2023: 3.68%) per annum 
and repayable on demand. 

	 Included in other receivables are amounts of RM18,329,113 (2023: RM10,513,071), being incentives and claims 
receivable from trade suppliers in relation to trade-related activities.

	 During the financial year, the following losses/(gains) were recognised in profit or loss in relation to impaired financial 
assets:

Group			   Trade	 Other	
				    receivables	 receivables	 Total
				    RM	 RM	 RM

At 1 July 2022			   1,980,110	 90,120	 2,070,230
Charge for the financial year (Note 7)	 	 	 15,055	 –	 15,055
Reversal during the financial year (Note 7)	 	 	 (639,822)	 (54,676)	 (694,498)

At 30 June 2023			   1,355,343	 35,444	 1,390,787
Charge for the financial year (Note 7)	 	 	 578,405	 –	 578,405
Reversal during the financial year (Note 7)	 	 	 (459,772)	 (35,079)	 (494,851)

At 30 June 2024			   1,473,976	 365	 1,474,341

Company					     Other 
						      receivables
						      RM

At 1 July 2022					     551,523
Reversal during the financial year (Note 7)	 	 	 	 	 (161,495)

At 30 June 2023					     390,028
Charge for the financial year (Note 7)	 	 	 	 	 281,544

At 30 June 2024					     671,572
				  
				  

	 Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and impairment losses for trade receivables is included in 
Note 30 to the financial statements.
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19.	 Cash and cash equivalents 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Cash in hand and at banks		  8,170,891	 13,854,689	 359,734	 414,744
Deposits with a licensed bank		  449,528	 294,478	 –	 –

Cash and bank balances		  8,620,419	 14,149,167	 359,734	 414,744
Less: Bank overdraft (Note 24)		  (453,577)	 –	 –	 –
	 Deposits pledged
	  as securities for
	  banking facilities	 	 (449,528)	 (294,478)	 –	 –

Cash and cash equivalents		  7,717,314	 13,854,689	 359,734	 414,744

	 Deposits with a licensed bank of the Group bear weighted average effective interest rate at 2.50% (2023: 2.50%) per 
annum and have a maturity of 1 (2023: 1) month.

	 Deposits with a licensed bank of the Group amounting to RM449,528 (2023: RM294,478) are pledged as securities 
for banking facilities granted to a subsidiary as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements. 

20.	 Share capital 

	 No. of shares	 Group/Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023

Issued and fully paid:

Ordinary shares

At 1 July/30 June		  681,857,902	 681,857,902	 100,947,120	 100,947,120

	 The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary 
shares carry one vote per share without restrictions and rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

21.	 Other reserves

Group			   Revaluation	 Exchange	
				    reserve	 reserve	 Total
				    RM	 RM	 RM

At 1 July 2022			   41,804,912	 273,532	 42,078,444
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations		  –	 1,369,070	 1,369,070

At 30 June 2023			   41,804,912	 1,642,602	 43,447,514
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations		  –	 11,683	 11,683

At 30 June 2024			   41,804,912	 1,654,285	 43,459,197
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21.	 Other reserves (Cont’d)
		
Revaluation reserve

	 This reserve includes the cumulative net change, net of deferred tax effects, arising from the revaluation of leasehold 
land and buildings.

Exchange reserve

	 The exchange reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of 
foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from that of the Group’s presentation currency. 

22.	 Reorganisation deficit

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

At 1 July/30 June				    (47,971,279)	 (47,971,279)

	 The Company completed its Pre-Initial Public Offer (IPO) Reorganisation on 1 July 2015 and has accounted for the 
acquisition of KTC Sdn. Bhd. as a continuation of the acquired entity. Therefore, the difference between the purchase 
consideration to acquire KTC Sdn. Bhd. and the share capital of KTC Sdn. Bhd. was reflected as a reorganisation 
deficit amounted to RM47,962,248.

	 The reorganisation deficit also included an amount of RM9,031 that represents the difference between carrying value 
of the assets and liabilities acquired to the cost of investment in respect of the acquisition of KTC Corporate Services 
as there is no change in control following the acquisition and therefore, the acquisition method of accounting 
pursuant to MFRS 3 Business Combinations does not apply.

23.	 Retained profits/(Accumulated losses)
	

	 The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to treat all gains and losses that pass through the statements of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income (i.e. non-owner transactions or events) as revenue reserves. Other than retained 
profits, all other revenue reserves are regarded as non-distributable in the form of cash dividends to shareholders. 
Accumulated losses are the opposite of retained profits and when an entity is in an accumulated loss position, it is 
prohibited from distributing cash dividends to shareholders.

24.	 Loans and borrowings  

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Non-current

Secured:
Lease liabilities				    11,926,228	 10,601,585
Term loans  				    12,358,409	 13,473,083

					     24,284,637	 24,074,668
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24.	 Loans and borrowings (Cont’d)

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Current

Secured:
Bankers’ acceptances				    72,049,970	 36,318,970
Bank overdraft				    453,577	 –
Lease liabilities				    3,705,143	 3,483,069
Term loans 				    1,117,291	 1,244,181
Trust receipts 				    29,411,672	 30,821,399

					     106,737,653	 71,867,619

Total loans and borrowings

Secured:
Bankers’ acceptances				    72,049,970	 36,318,970
Bank overdraft (Note 19)				    453,577	 –
Lease liabilities				    15,631,371	 14,084,654
Term loans 				    13,475,700	 14,717,264
Trust receipts				    29,411,672	 30,821,399

					     131,022,290	 95,942,287

Maturity structure of loans and borrowings

Within one year				    106,737,653	 71,867,619
Between one to five years	 	 	 	 16,768,592	 15,039,802
More than five years 	 	 	 	 7,516,045	 9,034,866

					     131,022,290	 95,942,287

The interest rate structures are as follows: 

		  Effective interest
		  rate per annum
	  			   2024	 2023

Bankers’ acceptances				    3.26% to 3.77%	 3.30% to 3.75%
Bank overdraft				    4.00%	 –
Lease liabilities				    3.07% to 4.76%	 3.07% to 6.38%
Term loans				    4.34% to 4.52%	 4.34% to 5.30%
Trust receipts				    4.00%	 4.00%
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24.	 Loans and borrowings (Cont’d)

The loans and borrowings are secured by the followings:

(i)	 Facilities agreement;
(ii)	 Legal charge over certain leasehold land and buildings, and leased assets of the Group as disclosed in Note 14 

to the financial statements;
(iii)	 Fixed and floating charge over all the present and future assets of the Group;
(iv)	 Assignment of fire insurance policies insuring the Group’s stock in trade and assets to the bank;
(v)	 Corporate guarantees by the Company;
(vi)	 Negative pledge; and
(vii)	 Deposits with a licensed bank as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial statements.  
 

25.	 Deferred tax liabilities

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

At 1 July		  15,857,648	 15,732,472	 25,000	 39,204
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 12) 	 	 93,224	 125,176	 (12,770)	 (14,204)

At 30 June		  15,950,872	 15,857,648	 12,230	 25,000

The components of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as follows:

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Deferred tax assets
Provision		  (848,044)	 (947,695)	 –	 –
Unabsorbed capital allowances		  (32,370)	 (8,831)	 –	 –
Unutilised tax losses		  (255,708)	 –	 –	 –
Temporary differences on qualifying 
 property, plant and equipment	 	 884,662	 316,631	 –	 –

			   (251,460)	 (639,895)	 –	 –

Deferred tax liabilities
Revaluation of property, 
 plant and equipment	 	 66,713,430	 66,713,430	 –	 –
Temporary differences on qualifying 
 property, plant and equipment	 	 –	 –	 50,959	 104,165

			   66,713,430	 66,713,430	 50,959	 104,165
		
			   66,461,970	 66,073,535	 50,959	 104,165

Tax rate		  24%	 24%	 24%	 24%

Deferred tax liabilities recognised		  15,950,872	 15,857,648	 12,230	 25,000
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25.	 Deferred tax liabilities (Cont’d)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised for the following items:

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Provision				    (625,932)	 (407,648)
Temporary differences on qualifying property, plant and equipment		  248,510	 244,189
Unabsorbed capital allowances				    (63,803)	 (58,425)
Unutilised tax losses				    (689,123)	 (823,687)

					     (1,130,348)	 (1,045,571)

Tax rate				    24%	 24%
					     (271,284)	 (250,937)

Year of expiry of unutilised tax losses is analysed as follows:

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Expired by 2028				    22,653	 22,653
Expired by 2029				    96,872	 96,872
Expired by 2030				    11,923	 11,923
Expired by 2031				    223,429	 357,993
Expired by 2032				    276,216	 276,216
Expired by 2033				    58,030	 58,030
Expired by 2034				    255,708	 –

					     944,831	 823,687

	 The unabsorbed capital allowances disclosed above are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable 
profits of the Group whereas the unutilised tax losses is available to be carried forward up to the maximum of ten 
(10) years, subject to no substantial change in shareholdings of these subsidiaries under the Income Tax Act, 1967 
and guidelines issued by the tax authority. 

	 Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable 
profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits.
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26.	 Trade and other payables

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Trade payables

Third parties 		  44,109,453	 30,391,803	 –	 –

Other payables
	
Amounts due to subsidiaries 		  –	 –	 71,034,660	 64,538,770
Amount due to immediate holding company 	 2,500,000	 2,500,000	 2,500,000	 2,500,000
Third parties		  7,998,314	 5,010,137	 1,366,373	 1,445,948
Deposits payable		  3,924,025	 3,312,061	 –	 –
Accruals 		  2,774,460	 2,730,399	 88,950	 104,950

			   17,196,799	 13,552,597	 74,989,983	 68,589,668

Total trade and other payable		  61,306,252	 43,944,400	 74,989,983	 68,589,668

	 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 (2023: 
30 to 90) days.

	 The non-trade amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, bear interest at rate of 3.68% (2023: 3.68%) per annum 
and repayable on demand.

Amount due to immediate holding company is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

	 Included in deposits payable of the Group are trade security deposits from customers amounting to RM3,305,041 
(2023: RM3,185,051).

	
27.	 Significant related party transactions

(a)	 Identities of related parties

	 Parties are considered to be related to the Group and the Company if the Group and the Company have the 
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making financial 
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject to common 
control or common significant influence. Related parties could be individuals or other entities. 
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27.	 Significant related party transactions (Cont’d)

(b)	 Related parties’ transactions 

The aggregate value of transactions of the related parties of the Group and the Company were as follows:

	 	 Transaction value
		  Type of	 2024	 2023
Name of related parties	 transactions	 RM	 RM

Group

Immediate holding company:

Kim Teck Cheong 	 Advances	 –	 (2,500,000)
 Holdings Sdn. Bhd.

Company

Subsidiaries:

KTC Sdn. Bhd.	 Interest expense	 –	 114,626
		  Interest income	 (567,271)	 (262,211)
		  Management fee income	 (5,644,964)	 (3,247,737)

KTC Niaga	 Interest income	 (109,452)	 (319,969)
		  Management fee income	 (8,968)	 (411,599)

KTC Borneo	 Interest income	 (959,972)	 (828,813)
		  Management fee income	 (2,619,284)	 (1,969,647)

KTC Sarawak	 Interest expense	 95,198	 –
		  Interest income	 (11,762)	 (87,441)
		  Management fee income	 (2,294,060)	 (1,061,447)

KTC Retail	 Interest expense	 199,875	 73,041
		  Management fee income	 –	 (3,204)

Creamos 	 Interest income	 (219,496)	 (118,109)
		  Management fee income	 (22,244)	 (50,762)

Gardenia	 Interest expense	 592,010	 367,256
		  Management fee income	 (284,305)	 (155,453)
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27.	 Significant related party transactions (Cont’d)

(b)	 Related parties’ transactions (Cont’d)

	 The aggregate value of transactions of the related parties of the Group and the Company were as follows: 
(Cont’d)

	 	 Transaction value
		  Type of	 2024	 2023
Name of related parties	 transactions	 RM	 RM

Company

Subsidiaries: (Cont’d)

KTC Shipping	 Interest income	 (772,210)	 (357,870)

KTC Corporate Services	 Interest income	 (297,119)	 (86,324)
		  Management fee expense	 124,338	 13,194
		  Reversal of impairment	 –	 (196,922)

KTC Brands	 Interest income	 (12,052)	 (10,949)
		  Impairment charge	 19,076	 30,976

KTC Academy	 Interest income	 (6,034)	 (2,410)
		  Impairment charge	 262,468	 4,451

KTC Development	 Interest expense	 22,395	 20,588

KTC Technologies	 Interest income	 (25,489)	 –
		  Management fee income	 (381,835)	 –

KTC Grandtop	 Management fee income	 (1,550,842)	 (1,612,156)

Immediate holding company:

Kim Teck Cheong 	 Advances	 –	 (2,500,000)
 Holdings Sdn. Bhd.



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD 115ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

27.	 Significant related party transactions (Cont’d)

(c)	 Compensation of key management personnel 

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the financial year was as follows: 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Short-term employee benefits	 	 4,752,211	 4,665,878	 2,394,588	 2,493,687
Other emoluments 		  1,884,866	 1,917,270	 1,496,681	 1,422,580

			   6,637,077	 6,583,148	 3,891,269	 3,916,267

Included in the key management 
 personnel are:

Directors’ remuneration (Note 9)		  3,957,269	 3,779,148	 3,891,269	 3,579,148
Key management personnels’
 remuneration 	 	 2,679,808	 2,804,000	 –	 337,119

			   6,637,077	 6,583,148	 3,891,269	 3,916,267

	 Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Group and of the Company either directly or indirectly, including 
any Director of the Group and of the Company.

The terms and conditions and prices of the above transactions are mutually agreed between the parties. 

28.	 Financial guarantees 

	 The fair value of financial guarantees provided by the Company to the banks to secure banking facilities granted 
to subsidiaries with nominal amount of RM124,852,490 (2023: RM89,203,548) are negligible as the financial 
guarantees provided by the Company did not contribute towards credit enhancement of the subsidiaries’ 
borrowings in view of the security pledged by the subsidiaries and it is unlikely that the subsidiaries will default 
within the guarantee provided, and the Company to third parties for supply of goods and services to certain 
subsidiaries of the Company with nominal amount of RM22,460,000 (2023: RM13,180,466) are  negligible as 
the probability of the financial guarantees being called upon is remote due to good financial standing of the 
said subsidiaries.

29.	 Commitments 

(a)	 Capital commitments

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Approved and contracted for:
- Property, plant and equipment				    27,319,464	 931,242



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD116 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Notes to the F inancial  Statements
(Cont’d)

29.	 Commitments (cont’d)

(b)	 Operating lease commitments

The Group as lessee

	 The Group has entered into lease arrangements for the lease of warehouses and office for lease terms ranging 
from two (2) to three (3) years.

Future minimum rental payable as at the reporting date is as follows:

		  Group	
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

Within one year 				    1,023,546	 567,524
Between one to five years  	 	 	 	 261,383	 318,340

					     1,284,929	 885,864

30.	 Financial instruments

(a)	 Categories of financial instruments 

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost	
Trade and other receivables		  129,981,980	 96,067,077	 82,117,118	 69,668,869
Cash and bank balances		  8,620,419	 14,149,167	 359,734	 414,744

Total financial assets 		  138,602,399	 110,216,244	 82,476,852	 70,083,613

Financial liabilities				  
				  
Measured at amortised cost
Trade and other payables		  61,306,252	 43,944,400	 74,989,983	 68,589,668
Loans and borrowings 		  131,022,290	 95,942,287	 –	 –

Total financial liabilities 		  192,328,542	 139,886,687	 74,989,983	 68,589,668
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30.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(a)	 Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d)

	 A reconciliation of trade and other receivables financial assets to the amounts reflected in the statements of 
financial position is as follows:

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Trade and other receivables

As reflected in the statements 
 of financial position (Note 18)	 	 130,569,676	 96,503,761	 82,135,141	 69,672,581
Less: Prepayments		  (587,696)	 (436,684)	 (18,023)	 (3,712)

Financial assets measured	 	 	 	
 at amortised cost	 	 129,981,980	 96,067,077	 82,117,118	 69,668,869

(b)	 Financial risk management  

	 The Group and the Company are exposed to financial risks arising from their operations and the use of financial 
instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

	 The Group’s financial risk management policies seek to ensure that adequate financial resources are available 
for the development of the Group’s businesses whilst managing its risks. The Board of Directors reviews and 
agrees to procedures and policies for management of these risks.

	 The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to the above-
mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and processes for the management of these risks.

(i)	 Credit risk

	 	Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty 
default on its obligations. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from 
trade and other receivables. For other financial assets (including cash and bank balances), the Group and 
the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

		 The Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to 
increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. 

	 	It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification 
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the 
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.  
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30.	 Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(b)	 Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(i)	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

		 As at the reporting date, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is represented 
by:

-	 the carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statements of financial 
position; and

-	 a nominal amount of RM124,852,490 and RM22,460,000 (2023: RM89,203,548 and RM13,180,466) 
relating to corporate guarantees provided by the Company to the banks to secure banking facilities 
granted to the subsidiaries and the Company to certain third parties respectively.

Trade receivables

	 At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether any of the trade receivables are credit impaired.

	 The gross carrying amounts of credit impaired trade receivables are written off (either partially or full) 
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that 
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay 
amounts subject to the write-off. Nevertheless, trade receivables and contract asset that are written off 
could still be subject to enforcement activities. 

	 As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables 
is represented by the carrying amounts in the statements of financial position.

	 The Group has taken reasonable steps to ensure that receivables that are neither past due nor impaired 
are stated at their realisable values. A significant portion of these receivables are regular customers that 
have been transacting with the Group. The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the 
receivables.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows: 

				    Gross 	 Expected 	 Carrying
				    amount	 credit losses	 value
2024				   RM	 RM	 RM

Not past due 			   74,600,288	 –	 74,600,288

Past due:

- less than 30 days			   28,829,003	 (203,835)	 28,625,168
- between 31 to 60 days			   2,602,189	 (391,327)	 2,210,862
- between 61 to 90 days			   215,967	 (146,834)	 69,133
- more than 90 days			   785,750	 (731,980)	 53,770

				    32,432,909	 (1,473,976)	 30,958,933

				    107,033,197	 (1,473,976)	 105,559,221
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30.	 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(b)	 Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(i)	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

Trade receivables (Cont’d)

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the reporting date is as follows: (Cont’d)

				    Gross 	 Expected 	 Carrying
				    amount	 credit losses	 value
2023				   RM	 RM	 RM

Not past due 			   51,200,220	 –	 51,200,220

Past due:
- less than 30 days			   27,055,278	 (93,423)	 26,961,855
- between 31 to 60 days			   5,573,874	 (157,774)	 5,416,100
- between 61 to 90 days			   304,938	 (201,038)	 103,900
- more than 90 days			   903,108	 (903,108)	 –

				    33,837,198	 (1,355,343)	 32,481,855

				    85,037,418	 (1,355,343)	 83,682,075
							     

			 
	 Impairment for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss. The 

expected credit losses on trade receivables includes both individual impairment for those that show 
objective evidence of impairment (stage 3 loss) and collective impairment (stage 2 loss). Collective 
impairment has been provided using the provisional matrix based on historical loss experience of the 
respective entities in the Group with reference to past due status of the debtor, as follows:

		  Expected credit loss rates
					     2024	 2023

Not past due				    0%	 0%

Past due:	
- less than 30 days				    0% - 1%	 0% - 1%
- between 31 to 60 days				    0% - 15%	 0% - 3%
- between 61 to 90 days				    0% - 68%	 0% - 66%
- more than 90 days 				    0% - 93%	 0% - 100%

	 The expected credit loss rates are based on the historical loss rates experienced by each entity in the 
Group as adjusted for forward looking element as necessary. 

	 As at the reporting date, the Group has significant concentration of credit risk in the form of outstanding 
balance due from 1 (2023: Nil) major customer representing 10% (2023: Nil%) of the total trade receivables 
of the Group.
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30.	 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(b)	 Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(i)	 Credit risk (Cont’d)

Other receivables

	 For other receivables, a lifetime expected credit loss is assessed for those counterparties that show 
significant increase in credit risk as at the end of the reporting period, and impairment made based on 
objective evidence of impairment.

Inter-company advances

	 The Company provides advances to subsidiaries. The Company monitors the ability of the subsidiaries 
to repay the advances on an individual basis and considers advances to subsidiaries to have low credit 
risks. 

	 The Company determines the probability of default for these advances individually using internal 
information available.

	 As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying 
amounts in the statement of financial position. Advances provided are not secured by any collateral or 
supported by any other credit enhancements.   

Cash and cash equivalents 

	 	The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks and financial institutions. As at the end of the reporting 
period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by their carrying amounts in the statements of 
financial position.

	 	These banks and financial institutions have low credit risks. Consequently, the Group and the Company 
are of the view that loss allowance is not material and hence, it is not provided for.

(ii)	 Liquidity risk

	 	Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group and the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial 
obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to liquidity risk arises 
primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s and the 
Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the 
use of stand-by credit facilities.

	 	As part of its overall liquidity management, the Group maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible 
investments to meet its working capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available 
banking facilities at a reasonable level to its overall debt position. As far as possible, the Group raises 
committed funding from financial institutions and balances its portfolio with some short term funding so 
as to achieve overall cost effectiveness. 
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30.	 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(b)	 Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(ii)	 Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

	 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities 
as at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest 
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting 
period):

Group			  Contractual	 Within	 One (1) to 	 Over
		  Carrying	 undiscounted	 One (1)	 Five (5) 	 Five (5)
		  amount	 cashflows	 year	 years 	 years
2024		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Financial liabilities
Trade and other 	 61,306,252	 61,306,252	 61,306,252	 –	 –
 payables	 	 	 	 	
Loans and borrowings 	 131,022,290	 134,392,662	 107,638,117	 18,680,909	 8,073,636

		  192,328,542	 195,698,914	 168,944,369	 18,680,909	 8,073,636

2023

Financial liabilities
Trade and other 	 43,944,400	 43,944,400	 43,944,400	 –	 –
 payables	 	 	 	 	
Loans and borrowings 	 95,942,287	 100,931,340	 72,953,274	 17,749,551	 10,228,515

		  139,886,687	 144,875,740	 116,897,674	 17,749,551	 10,228,515

Company		  Contractual	 Within	 One (1) to 	 Over
		  Carrying	 undiscounted	 One (1)	 Five (5) 	 Five (5)
		  amount	 cashflows	 year	 years 	 years
2024		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Financial liabilities
Trade and other 					   
 payables	 74,989,983	 74,989,983	 74,989,983	 –	 –
Financial guarantees*	 –	 147,312,490	 147,312,490	 –	 –

		  74,989,983	 222,302,473	 222,302,473	 –	 –

2023

Financial liabilities
Trade and other 
 Payables	 68,589,668	 68,589,668	 68,589,668	 –	 –
Financial guarantees*	 –	 102,384,014	 102,384,014	 –	 –

		  68,589,668	 170,973,682	 170,973,682	 –	 –

*	 The maximum amount of the issued financial guarantee contracts is allocated to the earliest period 
in which the guarantees could be called.
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30.	 Financial instruments (cont’d)

(b)	 Financial risk management (Cont’d)

(iii) 	 Interest rate risk

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. 

	 The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises mainly from its loans and borrowings. Most of the 
Group’s loans and borrowings are charged a fixed interest rate plus or minus the financial institutions’ 
base lending rate or cost of fund per annum. The fixed interest rate is reviewed annually. Whilst, the base 
lending rate and cost of fund used by the financial institutions vary according to the rates set by the 
respective financial institutions. Meanwhile, interest rates charged on leases are fixed at the inception of 
the lease arrangements.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

	 The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates as 
at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held constant:

	
		  Group
		  (Decrease)/Increase
	  			   2024	 2023
	  			   RM	 RM

	 Effects on profit after taxation

	 Increase of 60bp (2023: 60bp)				    (449,727)	 (396,801)
	 Decrease of 60bp (2023: 60bp)				   449,727	 396,801

(iv)	 Foreign currency risk
		
	 	Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of change in foreign exchange rate. 

		 The Group is exposed to currency translation risk arising from its net investment in subsidiaries in Brunei 
and Indonesia.

	 The Group does not hedge its investments in Brunei and Indonesia.

31.	 Fair value information

	 The financial assets and financial liabilities maturing within the next twelve (12) months approximated their fair 
values due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial instruments.

	 The carrying amount of the variable rate term loans approximated their fair value as the loans will be re-priced to 
market interest rate on or near reporting date.
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31.	 Fair value information (CONT’D)

As at the reporting date, the Group held the following at fair value in the statement of financial position:

2024			  Carrying			 
			   amount	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3
Non-financial assets		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Property, plant and equipment				  
- Leasehold land		  55,328,396	 –	 –	 55,328,396
- Leasehold buildings		  37,102,148	 –	 –	 37,102,148

			   92,430,544	 –	 –	 92,430,544

2023			  Carrying			 
			   amount	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3
Non-financial assets		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Property, plant and equipment				  
- Leasehold land		  56,343,698	 –	 –	 56,343,698
- Leasehold buildings		  38,633,074	 –	 –	 38,633,074

			   94,976,772	 –	 –	 94,976,772
					   

There have been no transfers between the levels during the current and previous financial years.

The valuation of leasehold land and buildings was based on the valuation technique as follows:

(i)   Comparison method

	 Sales prices of comparable leasehold land and buildings in close proximity were   adjusted for differences in 
key attributes such as date of transactions, location, condition, accessibility, size, shape, topography, tenure, 
title restrictions and surrounding developments. The most significant input into this valuation method was 
price per square metre of comparable properties.

(ii)	 Depreciated replacement cost method

	 The buildings and structures were assessed by the estimated cost of reinstating similar new buildings and an 
allowable depreciation was made and deducted based on the observed condition of the buildings. The most 
significant input into this valuation method was price per square metre of reinstatement cost.

Financial guarantees

	 The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on probability weighted discounted cash flow method. The 
probability has been estimated and assigned using the following key assumptions:

-	 The likelihood of the guaranteed party defaulting within the guaranteed period;
-	 The exposure on the portion that is not expected to be recovered due to the guaranteed party’s default; and
-	 The estimated loss exposure if the guaranteed party were to default.

	 The financial guarantees have not been recognised in the financial statements of the Group as the requirements to 
reimburse are remote and the Group does not expect to incur material losses under these corporate guarantees. As 
at 30 June 2024, there was no indication that the subsidiaries would default on payments.
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32.	 Capital management

	 The primary objective of the Group’s and of the Company’s  capital management is to build and maintain a strong 
capital base so as to maintain healthy capital ratios and at the same time be able to leverage on the capital to provide 
the Group and the Company with the funds to fund their expansion and growth.

	 The Group and the Company manage their capital structure, and make adjustment to it, in the light of changes in 
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payment to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, raise new debts and reduce existing debts.

	 The Group and the Company monitor capital using gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided 
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as borrowings plus payables less cash and bank balances.

The gearing ratio of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

	 Group	 Company	
		  2024	 2023	 2024	 2023
		  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Loans and borrowings 		  131,022,290	 95,942,287	 –	 –
Trade and other payables		  61,306,252	 43,944,400	 74,989,983	 68,589,668
Less: Cash and bank balances		  (8,620,419)	 (14,149,167)	 (359,734)	 (414,744)

Net debt		  183,708,123	 125,737,520	 74,630,249	 68,174,924

Total equity 		  207,588,085	 188,780,250	 101,261,486	 95,946,320

Gearing ratio		  88%	 67%	 74%	 71%
					   

	 The Group maintains a gearing ratio that complies with the applicable debt covenant as at the reporting date. The 
Group is not subject to any other externally imposed capital requirements.

33.	 Segment information  

(i)	 Operating segment 

	 For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on its products and services, and 
has three (3) reportable operating segments as follows:

Distribution Distribution of third party consumer packaged goods and telecommunications products
Manufacturing Manufacturing of bakery products
Others Investment holding, transportation support activities, corporate and administrative 

services

	 Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making 
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based 
on operating profit or loss which, in certain respects as explained in the table below, is measured differently 
from operating profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
Group financing (including finance costs) and income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not allocated 
to operating segments.
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33.	 Segment information (CONT’D)

(i)	 Operating segment (Cont’d)

Segment profit

	 Segment performance is used to measure performance as the Managing Director believes that such information 
is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within 
these industries. Performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss which is measured differently from 
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.

Segment assets

	 The total of segment asset is measured based on all of a segment, as included in the internal reports that are 
reviewed by the Managing Director.

Segment liabilities

	 The total of segment liabilities is measured based on all of a segment, as included in the internal reports that 
are reviewed by the Managing Director.
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33.	 Segment information (CONT’D)

(i)	 Operating segment (Cont’d)

(a)	 Inter-segment revenue are eliminated on consolidation.

(b)	 Other material non-cash expenses/(income) consist of the following items as presented in the respective 
notes:

					     2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM
	
Bad debts written off				    –	 178,882
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment		  (238,975)	 (188,495)
Goodwill written off				    –	 1,339,124
Impairment on inventories				    23,736	 –
Impairment charge/(Reversal of impairment) on financial assets	 	 83,554	 (679,443)
Inventories written off 				    2,733,934	 1,710,960
Reversal of bad debts written off			   (74,656)	 (896)
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange			   344,176	 3,152,622

					     2,871,769	 5,512,754

(c)	 The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment profit to arrive at profit after tax presented in 
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income:

					     2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM

Profit from inter-segment sales		 	 	 (47,614,695)	 (33,665,011)
Unallocated corporate expenses			   56,128,621	 35,507,432
Other income				    (8,977,162)	 (4,144,388)
Tax expenses				    (11,347)	 556,772

					     (474,583)	 (1,745,195)

(d)	 Additions to non-current assets (excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets) consist of:

					     2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM

Property, plant and equipment				    8,669,461	 10,835,683

(e)	 The following items are deducted from segment assets to arrive at total assets reported in the consolidated 
statement of financial position:

					     2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM

Inter-segment assets				    (326,356,118)	 (252,299,144)
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33.	 Segment information (CONT’D)

(i)	 Operating segment (Cont’d)

(f)	 The following items are deducted from segment liabilities to arrive at total liabilities reported in the 
consolidated statement of financial position:

					     2024	 2023
					     RM	 RM

Inter-segment liabilities				    (233,938,669)	 (160,428,460)

(ii)	 Geographical information 

	 The analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical segment is as disclosed in Note 5 to the financial 
statements.

	 The following is the analysis of non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred tax assets, 
which is analysed by the Group’s geographical location:

			   Sabah	 Sarawak	 Brunei	 Total
2024			  RM	 RM	 RM	 RM

Property, plant and equipment		  115,137,550	 257,410	 1,208,313	 116,603,273
Goodwill on consolidation		  2,897,776	 1,744,484	 –	 4,642,260

			   118,035,326	 2,001,894	 1,208,313	 121,245,533
		

2023

Property, plant and equipment		  114,202,753	 446,744	 248,788	 114,898,285
Goodwill on consolidation		  2,897,776	 1,744,484	 –	 4,642,260
		
			   117,100,529	 2,191,228	 248,788	 119,540,545

(iii)	 Major customers 

	 There is no major customer with revenue equal or more than ten percent (10%) of the revenue of the Group 
during the current and previous financial year.
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Group’s 
Properties
as at 30 June 2024

Registered/
Beneficial 
Owner Title/Address

Description/
Existing Use Tenure

Land/
Built-up 

Area sq ft
Date of Last 
Revaluation

Carrying 
Amount as 
at 30 June 

2024
RM

Creamos
Malaysia

Title
CL 15673355, 
District of 
Kota Kinabalu, 
State of Sabah

Address
Lot No.3, 
Industrial Zone 
4 (IZ4), Jalan 1F 
K.K.I.P Selatan, 
Kota Kinabalu 
Industrial Park, 
88460  Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah 
(“Lot 3”)

Description
Industrial land with 
1 unit 3-storey office 
cum single-storey 
warehouse building 
and 1 unit open-sided 
storage shed

Existing use
Office, warehouse 
storage and factory

Approximate 
age of the 
building
17 years

Tenure
99 years 

expiring on 
31 December 

2098

81,462/
24,756

30 June 
2022

10,833,488

KTC Niaga Title
CL 15673373, 
District of 
Kota Kinabalu, 
State of Sabah

Address
Lot No. 5, 
Industrial Zone 
4 (IZ4), Jalan 1F, 
K.K.I.P Selatan,  
Kota Kinabalu 
Industrial Park, 
88460 Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah
(“Lot 5”)

Description
Industrial land with 
2 units single-storey 
warehouse building 
(1 unit with cold room 
storage) and 1 unit 
covered loading/
unloading bay 

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building
11 years and 
6 years (for 
extended 

warehouse)

Tenure
99 years expiring 
on 31 December 

2098

105,630/
64,066

30 June 
2022

17,377,552

KTC 
Sdn Bhd

Title
CL 015379674, 
District of 
Kota Kinabalu, 
State of Sabah

Address
No. 22, Jalan 
Kilang, SEDCO 
Light Industrial
Estate, Mile 5 ½,
Jalan Tuaran, 
88450 Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah

Description
Industrial land with 
a detached double 
storey office building 
annexed with a 
single-storey 
warehouse and an 
extended warehouse

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building
41 years and 
37 years (for 

extended 
warehouse)

Tenure
60 years expiring 
on 31 December 

2079

53,580/
29,183

30 June 
2022

17,529,332
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Registered/
Beneficial 
Owner Title/Address

Description/
Existing Use Tenure

Land/
Built-up 

Area sq ft
Date of Last 
Revaluation

Carrying 
Amount as 
at 30 June 

2024
RM

KTC 
Sdn Bhd

Title
CL 015620701,
District of 
Kota Kinabalu, 
State of Sabah

Address
Lot 74A, Jalan 
Kilang, SEDCO 
Light Industrial 
Estate, Mile 5 ½,
Jalan Tuaran, 
88450 Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah

Description
Industrial land with 
a semi-detached 
2-storey showroom/
office-cum-single-
storey-warehouse

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building

19 years
 

Tenure
60 years expiring 
on 31 December 

2072

20,076/
11,474

30 June 
2022

6,960,620

KTC 
Sdn Bhd

Title
CL 015620710,
District of 
Kota Kinabalu, 
State of Sabah

Address
Lot 74B, Jalan 
Kilang, SEDCO 
Light Industrial 
Estate, Mile 5 ½,
Jalan Tuaran, 
88450 Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah

Description
Industrial land with 
a semi-detached 
2-storey showroom/
office-cum-single-
storey-warehouse

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building

19 years

Tenure
60 years expiring 
on 31 December 

2072

19,540/
11,474

30 June 
2022

6,864,620

KTC 
Sdn Bhd

Title
CL 015424423,
District of 
Kota Kinabalu, 
State of Sabah

Address
Lot 73, Jalan 
Kilang, SEDCO 
Light Industrial 
Estate, Mile 5 ½,
Jalan Tuaran, 
88450 Kota 
Kinabalu, Sabah

Description
Industrial land with 
a detached single-
storey warehouse cum 
double storey office 
building

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building

31 years

Tenure
60 years expiring 
on 31 December 

2070

42,856/
20,039

30 June 
2022

14,236,000

Group’s Proper t ies
(Cont’d)
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Registered/
Beneficial 
Owner Title/Address

Description/
Existing Use Tenure

Land/
Built-up 

Area sq ft
Date of Last 
Revaluation

Carrying 
Amount as 
at 30 June 

2024
RM

Gardenia Title
CL 105508601, 
CL 105508610, 
CL 105508629, 
District of Tawau, 
State of Sabah

Address
TB 9889, Lot 
1A, 2A and 3A, 
Perdana Square, 
KM 6, Jalan Apas, 
91000 Tawau, 
Sabah

Description
Three parcel of 
commercial lands 
with 2-storey office 
cum single-storey 
warehouse building

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building

14 years 

Tenure
99 years expiring 
on 31 December 

2101

35,761/
15,649

30 June 
2022

8,666,064

KTC 
Shipping

Title
01-SLF-014-008-
00726, District 
of Muara Tebos 
Land, State of 
Sarawak

Address
Lot 726, Block 8, 
Muara Tebas Land 
District, Demak 
Laut Industrial 
Park, Jalan Bako, 
93050 Kuching, 
Sarawak

Description
Industrial land with 
a double storey office 
annexed with a single 
storey warehouse 
and a detached single 
storey warehouse

Existing use
Office and warehouse 
storage

Approximate age 
of the building

16 years  

Tenure
60 years expiring 
on 14 June 2065

130,674/
44,666

30 June 
2022

11,458,045

Group’s Proper t ies
(Cont’d)
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ANALYSIS OF
shareholdings

AS AT 17 october 2024

share capital

Total Number of Issued Shares	 :	 681,857,902 Shares
Class of shares	 :	 Ordinary shares
Voting rights	 :	 Every member of the Company, present in person or by proxy, shall have on a show of  
		  hands, one (1) vote or on a poll, one (1) vote for each share held
Number of Shareholders	 :	 2,523

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

		  No. of		  No. of	
Size of Shareholdings 		  Holders	 %	 Shares	 %

1 -99		  19	 0.753	 498	 0.000	
100-1,000		  258	 10.225	 120,900	 0.017
1,00 - 10,000		  724	 28.695	 4,804,118	 0.704	
10,001- 100,000		  1,255	 49.742	 52,119,400	 7.643	
100,001- 34,092,895		  266	 10.543	 149,523,600	 21.928
34,092,895 AND ABOVE (**)		  1	 0.039	 475,289,386	 69.705

TOTAL :		  2,523	 100.000	 681,857,902	 100.000

REMARK :	 *	 -	 LESS THAN 5% OF ISSUED SHARES 
** 	 -	 5% AND ABOVE OF ISSUED SHARES	 	 	 	

LIST OF TOP 30 HOLDERS AS AT 17 october 2024				  
(Without Aggregating Securities from Different Securities Accounts Belonging to the Same Registered Holder)

No. Name of Shareholders No. of Shares %

1 KIM TECK CHEONG HOLDINGS SDN BHD 475,289,386 69.705

2 CITIGROUP NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
EXEMPT AN FOR CITIBANK NEW YORK (NORGES BANK 22)

18,500,000 2.713

3 WONG YOKE FONG @ WONG NYOK FING 18,500,000 0.984

4 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR OOI CHUANG LIAN (E-KLG)

5,780,500 0.847

5 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR YAP CHENG CHON (E-KLG

5,106,400 0.748

6 MAYBANK NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR GAN CHEONG POON

5,000,000 0.733

7 ERNEST LAI HENG WEI 4,089,900 0.599

8 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN KIM SENG (E-TSA/MSI)

3,400,000 0.498

9 VICTORIA JOY THAMBYRAJA 3,300,000 0.483

10 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LOH WAN XIAN (E-TAI)

3,000,000 0.439
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Analys is  of  Shareholdings
(Cont’d)

LIST OF TOP 30 HOLDERS AS AT 17 october 2024 (cont’d)
(Without Aggregating Securities from Different Securities Accounts Belonging to the Same Registered Holder)

No. Name of Shareholders No. of Shares %

11 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR TAN KIM SENG (7003782)

2,801,000 0.410

12 CITIGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
EXEMPT AN FOR OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED (CLIENT A/C-R ES)

2,608,500 0.382

13 WONG CHIAN YONG 2,095,500 0.307

14 NG CHOON CHUAN 2,082,200 0.305

15 SOH POH SOON 1,800,000 0.263

16 ALLIANCEGROUP NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LEE ENG SHAN (3030736)

1,790,700 0.262

17 LOW KAM FATT 1,600,000 0.234

18 CHEE SIEW FONG 1,220,000 0.178

19 LOO PANG HOW 1,200,000 0.175

20 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR LOH SHIN YEAN (E-TSA

1,123,000 0.164

21 YAP ENG KENG 1,120,000 0.164

22 PUBLIC NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR GOI GEK SAI (E-TSA

1,000,000 0.146

23 TAN CHEONG YEE 1,000,000 0.146

24 PHANG KOOI CHIN 999,600 0.146

25 YAP ZHE NING 948,800 0.139

26 PUBLIC NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITES ACCOUNT FOR PHANG MAH THIANG (E-LBG)

924,100 0.135

27 KOW BEH @ KOW KIAN 915,000 0.134

28 MAYBANK SECURITIES NOMINEES (ASING) SDN BHD 
MAYBANK SECURITIES PTE LTD FOR NG LAY PING

900,000 0.131

29 HLIB NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR JEAN NG CHIEN NEE (CCTS)

846,200 0.124

30 KENANGA NOMINEES (TEMPATAN) SDN BHD 
PLEDGED SECURITIES ACCOUNT FOR CHAI BAO YI

819,000 0.120

Total 557,974,286 81.831
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share buy-back 
statement

STATEMENT TO SHAREHOLDERS IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF AUTHORITY TO KIM TECK CHEONG 
CONSOLIDATED BERHAD TO PURCHASE ITS OWN ORDINARY SHARES OF UP TO TEN PERCENT (10%) OF ITS TOTAL 
NUMBER OF ISSUED SHARES OF THE COMPANY AT ANY GIVEN POINT IN TIME (“PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-
BACK”)

THIS STATEMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION.

If you are in any doubt as to the course of action you should take, you should consult your stockbroker, bank 
manager, solicitor, accountant or other professional advisers immediately. Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad takes 
no responsibility for the contents of this Statement, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and 
expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any 
part of the contents of this Statement.

DEFINITIONS

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following definitions shall apply throughout this Statement:

“Act” The Companies Act, 2016 as amended from time to time and any re-enactment thereof

“Board” The Board of Directors of KTC

“Bursa Securities” Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad

“CDS” Central Depository System

“Code” Malaysian Code on Take-Over and Mergers 2016 as amended from time to time

“Director”	 Shall have the same meaning given in Section 2(1) of the Capital Markets and Services 
Act, 2007 and includes any person who is or was within the preceding six (6) months 
of the date on which the terms of the transaction were agreed upon, a Director of the 
Company, its subsidiary or holding company or a Chief Executive Officer of the Company, 
its subsidiary or holding company

“AGM” Extraordinary General Meeting

“EPS” Earnings Per Share

“KTC ” or “the Company” Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad (Registration No. 201401037782 (1113927-H))

“KTC Group” KTC and its subsidiaries

“KTC Share(s)” Ordinary shares in KTC

“Issued Share Capital” 681,857,902 ordinary shares in KTC

“Listing Requirements” Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, including any amendments made 
in respect thereof from time to time

“Market Days” A day which Bursa Securities is open for the trading of securities

“LPD” 18 October 2024, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this Statement



KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD136 ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)

DEFINITIONS (cont’d)

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following definitions shall apply throughout this Statement: (Cont’d)

“NA” Net Assets

“Purchased Shares” Shares purchased by KTC pursuant to Section 127 of the Act

“Proposed Renewal of Share 
Buy-Back Authority / Proposed 
Share Buy-Back Authority / 
Proposed Share Buy-Back”

A proposal of the Company to grant its Directors a general mandate to exercise the 
authority to carry out a share buy-back of its own shares up to a maximum of 10% of its 
Issued Share Capital (excluding treasury shares)

“RM” or “Sen” Ringgit Malaysia and sen respectively

“SC” Securities Commission Malaysia

“Shareholders” Shareholders of KTC 

“Substantial Shareholder(s)” A person who has interest or interests in one or more voting shares in the Company and 
the nominal amount of that share, or aggregate of the nominal amount of those shares, 
is not less than 5% of the aggregate of the nominal amount of all the voting shares in 
the Company

“Treasury Shares” The KTC Share purchased by the Company that can be retained, distributed as dividend 
or resold and/or subsequently cancelled

“WAMP” Weighted Average Market Price

Words incorporating the singular shall, where applicable, include the plural and vice versa and words incorporating the 
masculine gender shall, where applicable, include the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa. Reference to persons 
shall include a corporation, unless otherwise specified.

Any reference in this Statement to any enactment is a reference to that enactment as for the time being amended or 
re-enacted. Any reference to a time of a day in this Statement shall be a reference to Malaysian time, unless otherwise 
specified.

1.	 INTRODUCTION

	 At the Ninth AGM of the Company held on 8 December 2023, the shareholders of KTC approved the grant of authority 
to the Company to purchase up to ten per centum (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company, subject 
to the prevailing laws and relevant regulations, rules and guidelines as may be issued by the relevant authorities 
and the availability of retained profits of the Company. The said authorisation shall, in accordance with the Listing 
Requirements, expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming Tenth (“10th”) AGM of the Company. 

	 On 24 October 2024, the Board announced that the Company proposed to seek its shareholders’ approval for the 
Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back at the forthcoming 10th AGM. 

	 The purpose of this Statement is to provide you with details of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority and to seek 
your approval on the ordinary resolution pertaining to the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority to be tabled 
at the forthcoming AGM.

	 SHAREHOLDERS OF KTC ARE ADVISED TO READ AND CONSIDER THE CONTENTS OF THIS STATEMENT 
CAREFULLY BEFORE VOTING ON THE ORDINARY RESOLUTION PERTAINING TO THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF 
SHARE BUYBACK AUTHORITY AT THE FORTHCOMING AGM
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Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)

2.		 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK AUTHORITY

	 The Board proposes to seek the approval from the shareholders of the Company to purchase from time to time up to 
ten per cent (10%) of its total number of issued shares.

	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back is subject to compliance with the Act, the Company’s Constitution, the Listing 
Requirements and any prevailing laws, guidelines, orders, rules and regulations issued by the relevant authorities at 
the time of purchase.

	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back would be effective immediately upon the passing of the ordinary resolution relating to 
the Proposed Share Buy-Back at the forthcoming AGM and shall be valid until:

a)	 the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company following at which time the authority will lapse unless by 
ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is renewed, either unconditionally or subject to terms 
and conditions;

b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company is required by law to be held; or

c)	 revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in the general meeting,

	 whichever occurs first but shall not prejudice the completion of purchase(s) by the Company of its own Shares before 
the aforesaid expiry date and, in any event, in accordance with the Listing Requirements and any applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, order, guidelines and requirements issued by any relevant authorities.

2.1	 Quantum

	 The maximum aggregate number of Shares, which may be purchased by the Company, shall not exceed ten per 
cent (10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company at any point in time.

	 As at LPD, the total number of ordinary shares issued by KTC is 681,857,902 shares. Assuming no further KTC 
Shares are issued, the maximum number of KTC Shares which may be purchased and/or held the Company will 
not more than 68,185,790 KTC Shares.

	 The actual number of Shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to the Proposed Share Buy-Back 
Authority, will depend on, inter alia, market conditions and sentiments of Bursa Securities as well as the retained 
profits, share premium and financial resources available to the Company at the time of the purchase(s).

2.2	 Sources of Funds

	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back will be funded by internally generated funds and/or external borrowings. The 
amount of internally generated funds and/or external borrowings to be utilised will only be determined later 
depending on, amongst others, the availability of internally generated funds, actual number of KTC Shares to 
be purchased and other relevant factors. The actual number of KTC Shares to be purchased and/or held, and 
the timing of such purchases will depend on, amongst others, the market conditions and sentiments of the 
stock markets as well as the retained profits and financial resources available to the Company. In the event 
that the Proposed Share Buy-Back is to be partly financed by external borrowings, the Board will ensure that the 
Company has sufficient funds to repay the external borrowings and that the repayment will not have a material 
effect on the cash flow of the Group.

2.3	 Treatment of Purchased Shares

Pursuant to Section 127 of the Act, the Directors may deal with the Purchased Shares in the following manner:

i)	 to cancel all or part of the Purchased Shares;

ii)	 to retain the Shares so purchased as treasury shares which may be distributed as share dividends to the 
shareholders of KTC and/or be resold on Bursa Securities in accordance with the relevant rules of Bursa 
Securities and/or be cancelled subsequently; or

iii)	 a combination of (i) and (ii) above.
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2.		 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK AUTHORITY (cont’d)

2.3	 Treatment of Purchased Shares (Cont’d)

	 If such Purchased Shares are held as treasury shares, the rights attaching to them in relation to voting, dividends 
and participation in any other distribution or otherwise would be suspended and the treasury shares would 
not be taken into account in calculating the number or percentage of shares or of a class of shares in the 
Company for any purposes including the determination of substantial shareholdings, take-overs, notices, the 
requisitioning of meetings, the quorum for meetings and the result of a vote on resolution(s) at meetings.

	 As at the date of this Statement, the Board has yet to make any decision with regard to the treatment of the 
Shares to be so purchased and will take into consideration the effects of such treatment on the Group in 
arriving at its decision. An immediate announcement will be made to Bursa Securities upon each purchase, 
cancellation and/or resale of Shares pursuant to the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority.

2.4	 Purchase/Resale Price

	 Pursuant to the Listing Requirements, the Company may only purchase its own Shares at a price which is not 
more than fifteen percent (15%) above the weighted average market price (“WAMP”) for KTC Shares for the five 
(5) Market Days immediately before the date of any purchase(s).

	 In the case of resale or transfer of treasury shares, the Company may only resell the treasury shares on Bursa 
Securities or transfer treasury shares pursuant to Section 127(7) of the Act, at:

a)	 a price which is not less than the weighted average share price of KTC Shares for the five (5) Market Days 
immediately preceding the date of the purchase: and

b)	 a discounted price of not more than five (5%) to the weighted average share price of KTC Shares for the 
five (5) Market Days immediately prior to the resale provided that:

(i)	 the resale or transfer takes place no earlier than thirty (30) days from the date of purchase; and
(ii)	 the resale or transfer price is not less than the cost of purchase of the shares being resold or 

transferred.

2.5 	 Implications Relating to the Code

	 Based on the Register of Substantial Shareholders as at 18 October 2024, the following substantial shareholders 
of the Company, has a shareholding of 475,289,386 KTC Shares, through its direct shareholdings, representing 
approximately 69.705% equity interest in KTC.

As at the LPD After the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back (a) 
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Substantial
Shareholders

No. of 
Shares %

No. of 
Shares %

No. of 
Shares %

No. of 
Shares %

Kim Teck Cheong
Holding Sdn. Bhd.

475,289,386 * 69.705 – – 475,289,386 63.368 – –

Kim Teck Cheong
Capital Sdn. Bhd.

– – 475,289,386 * 69.705 – – 475,289,386 77.45

Total 475,289,386 * 69.705 475,289,386 * 69.705 475,289,386 63.368 475,289,386 77.45

	 The Board does not anticipate any implication relating to the Code on KTC and its Shareholders in the event the 
Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority of up to ten percent (10%) of the issued and paid-up capital of the Company 
is carried out in full.

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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2.		 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSED RENEWAL OF SHARE BUY-BACK AUTHORITY (cont’d)

2.6	 Public Shareholding Spread

	 As at LPD, the public shareholding spread of the Company was 30.29%. The Company will not undertake any 
share buy-back if that will result in breach of Listing Requirements which required the Company to maintain 
a shareholding spread of at least twenty-five percent (25%) of its total listed shares. The Board is mindful of 
the shareholding spread requirement and will continue to be mindful of the requirement when making of any 
purchase of KTC Shares by the Company.

                                    
2.7	 Purchase made in the Previous Twelve (12) Months

	 KTC has not purchased any of its own Shares, retained its Shares as Treasury Shares or resale its Treasury 
Shares or cancelled its shares in the preceding twelve (12) months.

2.8	 Potential Advantages and Disadvantages of the Proposed Share Buy-Back

The potential advantages of the Proposed Share Buy-Back are as follows:

a)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back would enable the Company to utilise its financial resources more efficiently 
especially where there is no immediate use and it may strengthen the consolidated EPS of the Group.

b)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back will also provide the Company with opportunities for potential gains if the 
Purchased KTC Shares which are retained as Treasury Shares are resold at prices higher than their cost 
of purchase.

c)	 In any event, the Treasury Shares may also be distributed as share dividends to the shareholders as a 
reward.

d)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back may also stabilise the supply and demand of KTC Shares traded on Bursa 
Securities and reduce the volatility of the share prices. The stability of KTC Shares price is important to 
maintain investors’ confidence and may also assist in facilitating future fund raising via the equity market.

The potential disadvantages of the Proposed Share Buy-Back are as follows:

a)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back if implemented is expected to temporarily reduce the immediate financial 
resources of KTC Group.

b)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back may also result in the Group foregoing better investment opportunities 
which may emerge in the future and/or any income that may be derived from other alternative uses of 
such funds such as deposit in interest bearing instruments.

c)	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back may also reduce the amount of resources available for distribution to the 
shareholders of the Company in the form of dividends as funds are utilised to purchase its own Shares.

	 Nevertheless, the Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority is not expected to have any potential material 
disadvantages to the Company and its shareholders, as it will be implemented only after careful consideration 
of the financial resources of the Group and its resultant impact. The Board is mindful of the interest of the 
Company and the shareholders and will be prudent with respect to the above exercise.

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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3.		 RATIONALE FOR THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK AUTHORITY

	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back will enable the Company to utilise its surplus financial resources which is not 
immediately required for other uses to purchase its Shares from the market. It may stabilize the supply and demand 
of its Shares traded on Bursa Securities, thereby supporting its fundamental value.

	 Depending on the funding cost for the purchase of the KTC Shares, the Share Buy-Back may strengthen the EPS 
of KTC and if so, it is expected to have a positive impact on the market price of the Shares, further benefiting the 
shareholders of KTC.

	 The purchased of KTC Shares may be held as treasury shares and resold on Bursa Securities at a higher price 
with the intention of realising a potential gain in the reserves. The treasury shares may also be distributed to the 
shareholders as share dividends.

4.		 EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK

	 The effects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back on share capital, NA, working capital, earnings and shareholdings of 
Directors and Substantial Shareholders of the Company are set out below:

4.1	 SHARE CAPITAL

	 The effect of the Proposed Share Buy-Back on the issued share capital of the Company will depend on whether 
the Purchased KTC Shares are cancelled or retained as treasury shares. The Proposed Share Buy-Back will 
result in a reduction of the issued share capital of the Company if the Purchased KTC Shares are cancelled.

	 Based on the Company’s issued share capital as at LPD, the effect of the Proposed Share Buy-Back, assuming 
that the Purchased KTC Shares will be cancelled, are as follows:

No. of 
Shares

Number of KTC shares as at LPD

Less :-
Maximum number of ordinary shares which may be purchased and cancelled pursuant 
to the Proposed Share Buy-Back (assuming all Purchased KTC Shares are fully 
cancelled)	

681,857,902

68,185,790

Resultant number of KTC shares 613,672,112

	 However, the Proposed Share Buy-Back will have no effect on the issued share capital of the Company if all the 
Purchased KTC Shares are to be retained as treasury shares, resold or distributed to the shareholders.

                         

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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4.		 EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK (Cont’d)

	 The effects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back on share capital, NA, working capital, earnings and shareholdings of 
Directors and Substantial Shareholders of the Company are set out below: (Cont’d)

4.2	 NA

	 The effects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back on the NA of the Group will depend on the purchase price and 
number of purchased Shares, the effective funding cost to KTC to finance the purchased Shares or any loss in 
interest income to KTC.

	 The Proposed Share Buy-Back will reduce the consolidated NA per share at the time of purchase if the purchase 
price exceeds the consolidated NA per share and conversely will increase the consolidated NA per share at the 
time of purchase if the purchase price is less than the consolidated NA per share.

	 Should the Purchased Shares be resold, the consolidated NA will increase if the Company realizes a capital 
gain from the resale, and vice-versa. However, the quantum of the increase in NA will depend on the selling 
prices of the Purchased Shares and the number of Purchased Shares resold.

4.3	 WORKING CAPITAL, CASH FLOW AND GEARING

	 The share purchased will result in an outflow of cash and thereby reduce working capital of the Group, the 
quantum of which is dependent on the purchase prices and number of the Purchased Shares as well as the 
funding cost, if any. However, the working capital and cash flow of the Company will increase upon reselling 
of the Purchased Shares which are retained as treasury shares. Again, the quantum of the increase in working 
capital and cash flow will depend on the actual selling price of treasury shares and the number of treasury 
shares resold.

4.4	 DIVIDENDS

	 Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority is not expected to have 
any impact on the policy of the Board in recommending dividends, if any to shareholders of KTC. However, any 
future dividend to be declared and paid will depend on, amongst others, the actual results of the KTC Group, its 
cash reserves, capital commitment and future funding requirements.

	 The Board may have the option to distribute future dividends in the form of treasury shares purchased pursuant 
to the Proposed Share Buy-Back.

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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4.		 EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK (Cont’d)

	 The effects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back on share capital, NA, working capital, earnings and shareholdings of 
Directors and Substantial Shareholders of the Company are set out below: (Cont’d)

 4.5	 INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR AND/OR SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSON CONNECTED TO 
THEM 

	 The effect of the Proposed Share Buy-Back Authority on the shareholdings of the Directors and the substantial 
shareholders of KTC based on the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings and the Register of Substantial 
Shareholders as at the LPD assuming the Proposed Share Buy-Back is undertaken in full by KTC, are as follows:

(a)	 Directors’ Shareholdings 

As at the LPD After the Proposed Share Buy-Back (a) 
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Directors No. of Shares % No. of Shares % No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
Tun Richard 
Malanjum

– – – – – – – –

Datuk Lau Koh Sing 
@ Lau Kok Sing

– – 475,289,386* 69.705 – – 475,289,386* 77.45

Datin Lim Fook Len 
@ Lim Su Chin

– – 475,289,386** 69.705 – – 475,289,386** 77.45

Datuk Lau Wei Dick 
@ Dexter Dick Lau

– – 475,289,386** 69.705 – – 475,289,386** 77.45

Lim Hui Kiong – – 475,289,386** 69.705 – – 475,289,386** 77.45
Phang Sze Fui – – – – – – – –
Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim 
Bin Mohd Nor

– – – – – – – –

Wong Wen Miin – – – – – – – –
Lindfay Laura Lau  
(Alternate Director 
to Y. Bhg. Datin Lim 
Fook Len @ Lim Su 
Chin)

– – 475,289,386** 69.705 – – 475,289,386** 77.45

Notes:
(a)	 Assuming the maximum of 68,185,790 Shares are bought-back by the Company and cancelled 

pursuant to the Proposed Share Buy-Back.
(b)	 *Deemed interested by virtue of its/his shareholdings in Kim Teck Cheong Holdings Sdn Bhd pursuant 

to Section 8 of the Act.
	 **Deemed interested by virtue of his/her family member’s shareholdings in Kim Teck Cheong Holdings 

Sdn Bhd and Kim Teck Cheong Capital Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 197 of the Act.

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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4.		 EFFECTS OF THE PROPOSED SHARE BUY-BACK (Cont’d)

	 The effects of the Proposed Share Buy-Back on share capital, NA, working capital, earnings and shareholdings of 
Directors and Substantial Shareholders of the Company are set out below: (Cont’d)

4.5	 INTEREST OF DIRECTORS, MAJOR AND/OR SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSON CONNECTED TO 
THEM (CONT’D)

(b)	 Substantial Shareholders of KTC 

As at the LPD After the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back (a) 
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect

Substantial
Shareholders No. of Shares % No. of Shares % No. of Shares % No. of Shares %
Kim Teck Cheong
Holding Sdn. Bhd.

475,289,386 * 69.705 – – 475,289,386 63.368 – –

Kim Teck Cheong
Capital Sdn. Bhd.

– – 475,289,386 * 69.705 – – 475,289,386 77.45

Total 475,289,386 * 69.705 475,289,386 * 69.705 475,289,386 63.368 475,289,386 77.45

Notes:
(a)	 Assuming the maximum of 68,185,790 Shares are bought-back by the Company and cancelled 

pursuant to the Proposed Share Buy-Back.
(b)	 *Deemed interested by virtue of its/his shareholdings in Kim Teck Cheong Holdings Sdn Bhd pursuant 

to Section 8 of the Act.

5.	 INTEREST OF DIRECTORS / MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS

	 Save for the proportionate increase in percentage of shareholdings and/or voting rights of shareholders of the 
Company as a result of the Proposed Share Buy-Back, none of the Directors and Substantial Shareholders of the 
Company and/or persons connected with them have any interests, direct or indirect, in the proposed purchase of 
shares or resale of treasury shares, if any in the future.

6. 	 APPROVAL REQUIRED

The Proposal Share Buy-Back is subject to the approval of our shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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7.	 HISTORICAL SHARE PRICES

	 The monthly highest and lowest prices of KTC Shares traded on Bursa Securities for the past 12 months from March 
2021 to February 2022 are as follows: -

Highest (RM) Lowest (RM)
2023
October 0.280 0.245
November 0.270 0.225
December 0.230 0.200
2024
January 0.225 0.210
February 0.235 0.210
March 0.220 0.200
April 0.240 0.205
May 0.255 0.225
June 0.240 0.220
July 0.245 0.230
August 0.235 0.200
September 0.215 0.195
Last transacted market price of KTC Shares as at the LPD 0.210 0.195

(Source: Bursa Malaysia)

8.	 DIRECTORS’ RECOMMENDATION

	 The Board, after having considered all aspects of the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority, is of the opinion 
that the Proposed Share Buy-Back is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders.

	 Accordingly, your Board, recommends that you vote in favour of the ordinary resolution pertaining to the Proposed 
Share Buy-Back to be tabled at the forthcoming AGM.

9.	 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

	 The ordinary resolution to vote on the Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority is set out in the Notice of AGM. 
The AGM will be conducted virtually at the Broadcast Venue located at Meeting Room, Lot 73, Jalan Kilang, Sedco 
Light Industrial Estate, Mile 5 1/2, Jalan Tuaran, 88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah on Friday, 15 December 2024 at 9.30 
a.m., for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the ordinary resolution pertaining to the Proposed 
Share Buy-Back. 

	 If you are unable to attend and vote in person at the AGM, you are requested to complete, sign and return the Form of 
Proxy, in accordance with the instructions printed therein as soon as possible so as to arrive at the registered office 
of KTC at B08-02 @ One City Skypark Office Suites, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan not 
less than twenty-four (24) hours before the time appointed for the taking of poll at the meeting or adjourned meeting.

	 The completion and return of Form of Proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the AGM 
should you subsequently wish to do so.

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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10.	 FURTHER INFORMATION

(a)	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

	 This Statement has been seen and approved by the Directors of KTC and they individually and collectively 
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information given in this Statement and confirm that after 
having made all reasonable enquiries, and to the best of their knowledge and belief, there are no material facts, 
the omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

(b)	 MATERIAL LITIGATION

	 Neither KTC nor its subsidiaries are engaged in any material litigation, claims or arbitration, either as plaintiff, 
defendant or as third party, which has a material effect on the financial position of KTC or its subsidiaries, and 
the Directors of KTC are not aware of any proceedings, pending or threatened, or of any facts likely to give rise 
to any proceedings which may materially affect the financial position or business of KTC or its subsidiaries.

(c) 	 MATERIAL CONTRACTS 

	 Neither KTC nor its subsidiaries have entered into any contracts which are or may be material, not being 
contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, within the past two (2) years up to the date of this 
Statement.

(d)	 DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

	 Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the registered office of KTC at B08-02 @ One 
City Skypark Office Suites, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan during normal business 
hours between Monday and Friday (except public holidays) from the date of this Statement up to and including 
the date of the AGM:

(i)	 Constitution of KTC ; 

(ii)	 Audited financial statements of KTC for the past two (2) financial years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 
2024 respectively; and

(iii)	 the unaudited consolidated financial results of KTC for the quarter ended 30 June 2024.

 

Share Buy-Back Statement
(Cont’d)
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NOTICE OF TENTH 
annual general meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Tenth Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad 
(“KTC” or “Company”) will be conducted fully virtual at the Broadcast Venue located at Meeting Room,  Lot 73, Jalan Kilang, 
Sedco Light Industrial Estate, Mile 5 1/2, Jalan Tuaran, 88450 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah on Monday, 2 December 2024 at 9.30 
a.m. 

The following are the business to be transacted at the Tenth AGM :

ORDINARY BUSINESS:- 

1.	 To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2024 together 
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon. 

Please refer to 
Note 1

2.	 To approve the following payments to Non-Executive Directors:

(i)	 Directors’ fees of RM285,498 for the financial year ended 30 June 2024; 
(ii)	 Directors’ fees of up to RM430,000 from 1 July 2024 up to the next Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held in 2025; and
(iii)	 Meeting allowance of RM40,000 from 1 July 2024 up to the next Annual General Meeting 

of the Company to be held in 2025.

Resolution 1 
Resolution 2

Resolution 3

3.	 To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation pursuant to Clause 97 of the Company’s 
Constitution:

(i)	 Mr. Lim Hui Kiong
(ii)	 Madam Wong Wen Miin
(iii)	 Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor

Madam Wong Wen Miin who also retires by rotation with accordance with Clause 97 of the 
Company’s Constitution, has expressed her intention not to seek re-election. Hence, she will 
retain office until the conclusion of the Tenth Annual General Meeting.

Resolution 4
Resolution 5
Resolution 6

4.	 To re-appoint Messrs. PKF PLT as the Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to 
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration. 

Resolution 7

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-

To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modifications, the following Ordinary Resolution:-

5.	 ORDINARY RESOLUTION
• 	 Authority for Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to Section 75 & 76 of the 

Companies Act, 2016

The ordinary resolution set out below shall be proposed to the Members for approval: - 

	 “THAT pursuant to Section 75 & 76 of the Companies Act, 2016 and subject always to the 
approvals of the relevant authorities, the Directors be and are hereby authorised to allot and 
issue shares in the Company from time to time at such price, upon such terms and conditions, 
for such purposes and to such person or persons whomsoever as the Directors may, in their 
absolute discretion,   deem fit,   provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued 
pursuant to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the 
Company for the time being AND THAT the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain the 
approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad and that such authority shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of 
the next  Annual General Meeting of the Company.” 

Resolution 8
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6.	 Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back

	 “THAT subject to the Companies Act 2016 (“Act”), the Company’s Constitution, the Main 
Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities (“MMLR”) and all other prevailing laws, rules, 
regulations and orders issued and/or amended from time to time by the relevant regulatory 
authorities, the Company be and is hereby authorised to purchase and/or hold up to ten percent 
(10%) of the total number of issued shares of the Company (“Proposed Share Buy-Back”) as 
may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to time through Bursa Securities 
upon such terms and conditions as the Directors of the Company may deem fit and expedient 
in the best interest of the Company and an amount not exceeding the retained profits of the 
Company, be allocated by the Company for the Proposed Share Buy-Back.	

	 AND THAT upon completion of the purchase by the Company of its own shares, the Directors 
of the Company be and are hereby authorised to cancel such shares or retain such shares as 
Treasury Shares or a combination of both. The Directors of the Company are further authorised 
to resell the Treasury Shares on Bursa Securities or distribute the Treasury Shares as dividends 
to the shareholders of the Company or subsequently cancel the Treasury Shares or any 
combination of the three.	

	 AND FURTHER THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to carry out 
the Proposed Share Buy-Back immediately upon the passing of this resolution until:-

(a)	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company at which time the 
authority shall lapse, unless by ordinary resolution passed at the meeting, the authority is 
renewed, either unconditionally or subject to the conditions; or

(b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting is required by 
law to be held; or

(c)	 revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company in a 
general meeting

	 whichever occur first but not so as to prejudice to the completion of purchase(s) by the 
Company before the aforesaid expiry date and to take all steps as are necessary and/or to do 
all such acts and things as the Directors of the Company deem fit and expedient in the interest 
of the Company to give full effect to the Proposed Share Buy-Back with full powers to assent 
to any conditions, modifications, amendments and/or variations as may be imposed by the 
relevant authorities.”

Ordinary 
Resolution 9

Please refer to 
Explanatory 

Note 9

ANY OTHER BUSINESS:-

7.	 To transact any other business for which due notice shall have been given in accordance with 
the Company’s Constitution and the Companies Act, 2016. 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TEO HUI LING  
MIA 17988 / SSM PC No.: 202008001267
Company Secretary

Dated: 30 October 2024
Kota Kinabalu

Notice of Annual General  Meet ing
(Cont’d)
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NOTES:
1.	 Item 1 of the Notice is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 248(2)  of the Companies Act, 2016 does 

not require a formal approval of shareholders for the Audited Financial Statements and hence, is not put forward for 
voting.

2.	 A member (other than an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) 
Act 1991) entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and 
vote on his behalf. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company.

3.	 Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his 
holdings to be represented by each proxy.

4.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds shares in the Company for multiple 
beneficial owners in one securities account (“Omnibus Account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central 
Depositories) Act 1991, there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in 
respect of each omnibus account it holds.

5.	 The Form of Proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the member is a 
corporation, must be executed under its common seal or by its duly authorised attorney or officer.

6.	 The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a 
notarially certified copy of that power or authority must be deposited by hand at the Registered Office of the Company 
not less than 24 hours before the time set for the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

7.	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 27 November 
2024 (General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the meeting or appoint 
proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

8.	 Explanatory Notes on Special Business 

Resolution 8 pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2016 

	 The proposed Resolution 8 is intended to renew the authority granted to the Directors of the Company at the Ninth 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 8 December 2023 to issue and allot shares at any time to such persons 
in their absolute discretion without convening a general meeting provided that the aggregate number of the shares 
issued does not exceed 10% of the issued and paid-up share capital of the Company for the time being. This authority 
will, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General 
Meeting.

	 The Company did not issue any share pursuant to a mandate granted to the Directors at the last Annual General 
Meeting held on 8 December 2023.

	 The general mandate for the issue of shares will provide flexibility to the Company for any possible fund raising activities, 
including but not limited to further placing of shares for purpose of funding future investment, working capital and/or 
acquisition(s).

9.	 Ordinary Resolution 9 - Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for Share Buy-Back

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will empower the Directors to purchase the Company’s shares of up to 
10% of the total number of issued shares of the Company by utilising the funds allocated which shall not exceed the 
total retained earnings of the Company. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will expire at the 
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company. Please refer to the Statement to Shareholders dated 
30 October 2024 for further details.

Notice of Annual General  Meet ing
(Cont’d)
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STATEMENT ACCOMPANYING NOTICE OF THE 
TENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

1.	 The Directors seeking for re-election/re-appointment at the Tenth Annual General Meeting of Kim Teck Cheong 
Consolidated Berhad are as follows :

Clause 97

(i)	 Mr. Lim Hui Kiong
(ii)	 Madam Wong Wen Miin
(iii)	 Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor

	 The Board of Directors, taking into the recommendation of Nomination Committee, supported the above-mentioned 
Directors of their re-election as Director of the Company. 

	 Based on the assessment and evaluation conducted by the Nomination Committee, the retiring Director met the 
performance criteria required of an effective and a high-performance Board. In addition, all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors have also provided annual declaration/confirmation of independence respectively.

	 The profiles of the Directors who are standing for re-election is set out on pages 18, 20 and 21 of this Annual Report. 

2.	 The details of attendance of the Directors of the Company at Board of Directors’ Meetings held during the financial 
year ended 30 June 2024 are disclosed in the respective profiles of the Directors.

3.	 The details of the Tenth Annual General Meeting are as follows: 

Date of Meeting Time of Meeting Place of Meeting

Monday, 2 December 2024 9.30 a.m. Broadcast Venue located at Meeting Room, Lot 
73, Jalan Kilang, Sedco Light Industrial Estate, 
Mile 5 1/2, Jalan Tuaran, 88450 Kota Kinabalu, 
Sabah
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KIM TECK CHEONG CONSOLIDATED BERHAD
Registration No. 201401037782 (1113927-H)

FORM OF PROXY

I/We 
(name of shareholder as per NRIC, in capital letters)

NRIC No./Passport No./Company No.  (New)  (Old)  

of  (full address)

being a Member/Members of Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad hereby appoint 

 NRIC No.  (New) 
(name of proxy as per NRIC, in capital letters) 

 (Old) of  
	 (full address)

or failing of him/ her the Chairman of the meeting as my/ our proxy to vote on my/ our behalf at the Tenth Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be conducted fully virtual at the Broadcast Venue, Meeting Room, Lot 73, Jalan Kilang, Sedco 
Light Industrial Estate, Mile 5 1/2, Jalan Tuaran, 88450 Kota Kinabalu, on Monday, 2 December 2024 at 9.30 a.m.

I/We direct my/our proxy to vote for or against the resolution to be proposed at the meeting as hereunder indicated.

Ordinary Resolutions For Against

1 To approve the following payments to Non-Executive Directors:
Directors’ fees of RM260,160 for the financial year ended 30 June 2024

2 To approve the following payments to Non-Executive Directors:
Directors’ fees of up to RM260,160 from 1 July 2024 up to the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2025

3 To approve the following payments to Non-Executive Directors:
Meeting allowance of RM40,000 from 1 July 2024 up to the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2025

4 Re-election of Director – Mr. Lim Hui Kiong

5 Re-election of Director - Madam Wong Wen Miin

6 Re-election of Director –  Dato’ Mohd Ibrahim Bin Mohd Nor

7 To re-appoint Messrs. PKF Malaysia as the Auditors and to authorise the Board of 
Directors to fix their remuneration

8 Authority to Issue Shares Pursuant to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2016

9 Proposed Renewal of Share Buy-Back Authority

CDS ACCOUNT NO.
NUMBER OF 

SHARES HELD

Dated this  day   2024

For appointment of two proxies, percentage of shareholdings 
to be represented by the proxies:

Percentage

Proxy 1 %
Proxy 2 %
Total 100%

Signature/Common Seal



Fold This Flap For Sealing

1st Fold Here

2nd Fold Here

AFFIX
STAMP

The Company Secretary
Kim Teck Cheong Consolidated Berhad
B08-02 @ One City Skypark Office Suites
Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya
Selangor Darul Ehsan 
Malaysia

NOTES :

1.	 A member (other than an exempt authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991) entitled to attend and 
vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy may but need not be a member of the 
Company.

2.	 Where a member appoints two (2) proxies, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportions of his holdings to be represented by each 
proxy.

3.	 Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities 
account (“omnibus account”) as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, there is no limit to the number of proxies which 
the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

4.	 The Proxy Form shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the member is a corporation, must be executed under its 
common seal or by its duly authorised attorney or officer.

5.	 The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that 
power or authority must be deposited by hand at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 24 hours before the time set for the Meeting or any 
adjournment thereof.

6.	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 27 November 2024 (General Meeting Record of 
Depositors) shall be eligible to attend, speak and vote at the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.
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